BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH

TELEPHONE: 020 8464 3333 CONTACT: Graham Walton
graham.walton@bromley.gov.uk

THE LONDON BOROUGH DIRECT LINE: 020 8461 7743
www.bromley.gov.uk FAX: 020 8290 0608 DATE: 26 January 2018
To: Members of the
EXECUTIVE

Councillor Colin Smith (Chairman)

Councillors Graham Arthur, Peter Fortune, William Huntington-Thresher, Kate Lymer,
Peter Morgan and Diane Smith

A meeting of the Executive will be held at Bromley Civic Centre on WEDNESDAY 7
FEBRUARY 2018 AT 7.00 PM

MARK BOWEN
Director of Corporate Services

Copies of the documents referred to below can be obtained from
http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING THE MEETING

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, questions to this Committee must be
received in writing 4 working days before the date of the meeting. Therefore please
ensure questions are received by the Democratic Services Team by 5pm on Thursday
1% February 2018.

4 TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 10TH JANUARY 2018
(Pages 3 - 30)

5 PROGRESS IN IMPLEMENTING CHILDREN'S SERVICES IMPROVEMENTS

6 2018/19 COUNCIL TAX
(Pages 31 - 74)


http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING Q3 2017/18 & CAPITAL STRATEGY 2018
TO 2022
(Pages 75 - 92)

LOCALLY ADMINISTERED BUSINESS RATES RELIEF SCHEME
(Pages 93 - 98)

BROMLEY MARKET REORGANISATION UPDATE
(Pages 99 - 114)

Bromley Town Ward

SCADBURY PARK MOATED MANOR
(Pages 115 - 132)

Chislehurst Ward

MAYORAL COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (MCIL2) DRAFT CHARGING
SCHEDULE CONSULTATION
(Pages 133 - 140)

BROMLEY'S RESPONSE TO THE DRAFT LONDON PLAN CONSULTATION
(Pages 141 - 222)

CONSIDERATION OF ANY OTHER ISSUES REFERRED FROM THE EXECUTIVE
AND RESOURCES POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT
(ACCESS TO INFORMATION) (VARIATION) ORDER 2006 AND THE FREEDOM
OF INFORMATION ACT 2000

The Chairman to move that the Press and public be excluded during consideration of
the items of business listed below as it is likely in view of the nature of the business to
be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if members of the Press and public
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information.

Items of Business Schedule 12A Description

UPDATE ON COMMUNITY CONTRACT AWARD Information relating to the

(Pages 223 - 230) financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including
the authority holding that
information)

CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING Q3 Information relating to the
2017/18 AND ANNUAL CAPITAL STRATEGY financial or business affairs of
2018 TO 2022 - APPENDIX F: CAPITAL any particular person (including
RECEIPTS the authority holding that

(Pages 231 - 232) information)



Agenda ltem 4

EXECUTIVE
Minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2018 starting at 7.00 pm
Present:

Councillor Colin Smith (Chairman)

Councillors Graham Arthur, Peter Fortune,

William Huntington-Thresher, Kate Lymer, Peter Morgan
and Diane Smith

Also Present:

Councillor Nicholas Bennett J.P., Councillor Simon
Fawthrop and Councillor Angela Wilkins

380 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence.
381 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Simon Fawthrop declared that he was an employee of British
Telecom.

382 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING
THE MEETING

Five questions had been received for oral reply and three questions for written
reply. Copies of the Questions and replies are attached in Appendices A and
B to these minutes.

383 TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON
1ST, 6TH & 15TH DECEMBER 2017
Report CSD18006

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings held on 1%, 6™ and 15"
December 2017 be confirmed.

384 PROGRESS IN IMPLEMENTING CHILDREN'S SERVICES
IMPROVEMENTS

The Executive Director of Education, Care and Health Services and Deputy
Chief Executive gave an update on progress with implementing improvements
to Children’s Services. The Executive Director emphasised three issues —

(i) The next Ofsted monitoring visit was due in March 2018 and officers were
working hard to ensure that this was as positive as previous visits.

Page 3



Executive
10 January 2018

(i) The Caseload Promise was being met in all but one team. The target was
to reach 90% permanent staff, and further recruitment activities were planned
to target agency social workers.

(i) Working with HR, officers were finalising a strategy for social workers. A
key focus would be on retention.

The Executive Director also commended a member of staff, Linda Whybrow,
who had just retired from his Department after forty-seven years — the Leader
added his thanks to her for this remarkable service.

Questioned by Members, the Executive Director explained that there were
around 120 frontline staff, with about 30-35 additional permanent staff since
May 2017. The Council had been particularly effective at recruiting managers,
and very few permanent social workers had left.

In terms of the Adoption Service, an action plan was in place to improve the
service and reduce delays, but the Executive Director cautioned against
focussing too much on statistics. Bromley would persist in finding the right
family for children, even if this appeared as a delay in the statistics.

The Portfolio Holder for Education, Children and Families reported that there
would be a celebration of the achievements of looked after children on 15™
February — all Members would be invited and he encouraged Members to
attend.

The Leader thanked the Portfolio Holder for Education, Children and Families
and the Executive Director and his team, and encouraged them to continue
their hard work.

385 DRAFT 2018/19 BUDGET AND UPDATE ON COUNCIL’S
FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2019/20 TO 2021/22
Report FSD18001

The Executive considered the initial draft 2018/19 Budget including the full
year effect of changes agreed as part of the 2017/18 Council Tax report
including savings approved during the year with the resultant impact on the
Council’'s medium term budget gap. A key part of the financial strategy was to
highlight the budget issues that would need to be addressed by the Council
over the coming financial years, by forecasting the level of available resources
from all sources and budget pressures relating to revenue spending. Details
of the capital programme would be reported to the Executive separately.

The report provided details of the third year of the four year local government
finance settlement (2018/19 to 2019/20), the impact of the Chancellor’s
Autumn budget 2017 and the provisional local Government Financial
Settlement 2018/19. There were still outstanding issues and areas of
uncertainty remaining. Any further updates would be reported to the
Executive’s next meeting.

Page 4



Executive
10 January 2018

The views of all PDS Committees would be sought prior to the Executive
making recommendations to Council on the 2018/19 Council Tax and Adult
Social Care precept levels.

The report had been scrutinised by the Executive and Resources PDS
Committee on 4" January 2018. The Committee had supported the
recommendations with two additional suggestions — that the Council should
consider raising the empty homes premium to 100% of Council Tax, and to
note that action will need to be taken by Chief Officers to fund increasing
costs through alternative savings in the event that inflation exceeds the
budget assumptions. It was accepted that raising the empty homes premium
could not be implemented for 2018/19 but Members agreed that this should
be fully investigated for possible implementation for 2019/20.

The Portfolio Holder for Resources drew attention to the benefits of a four
year financial settlement, and emphasised how the Council was now looking
for opportunities and innovations, rather than just efficiencies. He confirmed
that he was assuming a 2% pay increase for staff in 2018/19 — he would make
a full statement on this to Council.

In view of the reservations about the London Business Rates pilot pooling
arrangements it was suggested that the Executive should only agree to the
proposals “in principle.” However, officers advised that this would not provide
sufficient authority, and would require a further meeting of the Executive to
provide final approval. Members were reassured that the delegation
arrangements provided sufficient protection and the Leader accepted that
advice. It was also confirmed that the arrangement committed the Council for
one year only.

RESOLVED that

(1) The initial draft 2018/19 Budget as detailed in Appendix 7 of the
report be agreed.

(2) The initial draft 2018/19 budget for each portfolio be referred to the
relevant PDS Committees for their consideration.

(3) The financial projections for 2019/20 to 2021/22 be noted.

(4) It is noted that there are still areas of financial uncertainty which will
impact on the final 2018/19 Budget and future year forecasts.

(5)The setting of the School Budget, mainly met through Dedicated
Schools Grant, be delegated to the Education, Children and Families
Portfolio Holder, allowing for consultation with head teachers,
governors and the Schools Forum (section 12 of the report).

(6) It is noted that the outcome of consultation with PDS Committees will
be reported to the next meeting of the Executive.

Page 5



Executive
10 January 2018

(7) The outcome of the public consultation meetings detailed in
Appendix 10 be noted.

(8) The proposed contribution of £248,033 in 2018/19 to the London
Boroughs Grants Committee (as in section 11 of the report) be agreed.

(9) The outcome of the Provisional Local Government Financial
Settlement 2018/19 as detailed in the report be noted.

(10) The significant budget gap remaining of an estimated £38.7m per
annum by 2021/22 be noted, and that any decisions made for the 2018/19
Budget will have an impact on the future year projections.

(11) It is noted that any final decision by the Executive on recommended
Council Tax and Social Care Precept levels will normally be undertaken
at the next meeting of the Executive.

(12) Authority be delegated to the Director of Finance in consultation
with the Director of Corporate Services, the Leader of the Council and
the Resources Portfolio Holder in relation to the operational details of
the London Business Rates pilot pooling arrangements with the
participating authorities.

(13) It is agreed that the Council enters into a Memorandum of
Understanding with the participating authorities as may be necessary to
implement and/or regulate the pool and to delegate authority to the
Director of Finance in consultation the Resources Portfolio Holder and
with the agreement of the Leader of the Council to finalise the
arrangement on behalf of the Council.

(14) It is noted that action will need to be taken by Chief Officers to fund
increasing costs through alternative savings in the event that inflation
exceeds the budget assumptions.

(15) The option of raising the empty homes premium to 100% of Council
Tax be investigated for possible implementation in 2019/20.

386 GATEWAY REPORT 1 - MEMBERS REPORT: REVIEW OF
CORPORATE CUSTOMER SERVICES IT SYSTEMS
Report CSD17165

(Having declared an interest as an employee of British Telecom, the
Chairman of the Executive and Resources PDS Committee left the Chamber
for this item and took no part in proceedings.)

On 14™ September 2016 the Executive had agreed expenditure of £50k to
fund a review of alternative options for the Customer relationship
Management (CRM) system both in the short and long terms. The report
updated Members on progress and the options considered. British Telecom
(BT) had been commissioned, as part of the current IT Support contract, to

Page 6



Executive
10 January 2018

develop a new IT strategy, and upgrading the CRM system would not be in
conflict with this strategy.

The Environment Portfolio Holder commented that with the re-tendering of the
environmental services contracts the new contractor might want to implement
a more cost-effective system.

The Renewal and Recreation Portfolio Holder reported that, in relation to the
comments in the report about maximising digital uptake, he was investigating
what needed to be done to overcome the problems that residents in some
areas had with obtaining broadband.

The report had been scrutinised by the Executive and Resources PDS
Committee on 4th January 2018 and the Committee had supported the
proposals.

RESOLVED that

(1) The need to upgrade the current CRM system is noted as outlined in
this report.

(2) BT be commissioned by variation to their existing contract to
upgrade to Dynamics Version 2011 to avoid critical service interruption
for the reasons set out in section 6 of the report.

(3) BT be commissioned by variation to their existing contract to provide
a fully costed options appraisal for the longer term provision of IT
services currently delivered by the current CRM system, as set out in
section 7 of the report.

(4) The addition of £480k to the capital programme, funded from a £37k
reduction to the existing capital scheme for the website upgrade, and
£443k from capital receipts, be agreed.

387 CONTINGENCY DRAWDOWN: HOMELESSNESS AND
TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION PRESSURES
Report CS18116

The report updated Members on homeless pressures during 2017/18 and the
range of initiatives undertaken to try and reduce the rising budget pressures
wherever possible and forthcoming challenges arising from the introduction of
the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 and the roll out of universal credit in
Bromley.

A drawdown of £844K was requested from the central contingency for
homelessness and welfare reform pressures, together with the Homeless
Reduction Act New Burdens funding and flexible homelessness support grant
introduced in 2017/18 to replace the management fee element for temporary
accommodation previously claimed through housing benefit.

Page 7



Executive
10 January 2018

The Leader noted the ongoing trend in this difficult area and commented
positively in respect of the Administration’s forward financial planning, which
had ensured sufficient contingency funding had been set in place to meet the
additional demand.

The Renewal and Recreation Portfolio Holder reported that he was aware of
concern from a landlord about not being able to get his property back at the
end of a fixed term lease, and in a suitable state of repair. Officers confirmed
that this should not be the case.

It was noted that in paragraph 3.10, bullet point 4 of the report the missing
figure relating to the refurbishment of Benedict House was 40 units of
temporary accommodation.

The report had been scrutinised by the Care Services PDS Committee on 9th
January 2018 and the Committee had supported the proposals.

RESOLVED that
(1) £844K for 2017/18 be released from central contingency set aside to

offset the current homelessness and temporary accommodation budget
pressures.

(2) Drawdown of the ring fenced grants as set out below be agreed:

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

£ £ £
Homeless Reduction Act New 254,713 233,317 220,697
Burdens
Homelessness Reduction 9,022

ACT IT upgrade for new
reporting requirements

Homelessness flexible 2,106,890 2,359,717
support grant

(3) The forecast pressures going forward in relation to homelessness,
welfare reform, temporary accommodation and the new duties arising
from the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 be noted.

(4) The release of the additional resources required for implementation
and administration of the new statutory duties contained within the
Homelessness Reduction Act be approved.

388 FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR BANBURY HOUSE, CHISLEHURST
The Executive considered a report updating them on the feasibility

assessment undertaken in respect of Banbury House for refurbishment and
use as temporary accommodation to meet statutory housing need. It was

Page 8



Executive
10 January 2018

concluded that proceeding with a refurbishment scheme would not be
economically viable.

The report was scrutinised by the Executive and Resources PDS Committee
on 4™ January 2018; the Committee supported the recommendations, subject
to an additional recommendation that Officers be asked to investigate whether
modular homes would be a possibility once the site has been cleared. It was
confirmed that all options would be explored.

RESOLVED that

(1) The outcome of the feasibility assessment for use of Banbury House
as temporary accommodation and the decision not to proceed with
refurbishment as this does not offer an economically viable scheme and
demonstrate best use of the site be noted.

(2) The demolition of the existing building to ensure the site is secured
and prepared for future use to maximise future development
opportunities be approved.

(3) Officers be authorised to complete a final feasibility options appraisal
to be reported back in May for decision on future use of the site to meet
housing need or for methods for marketing and disposal of the site to
secure best value.

(4) The estimated cost of £166k be added to the Council’s Capital
Programme for demolition and site preparation - this sum will be funded
from any future sale proceeds, or added to any future capital scheme for
alternative use of the site.

389 UPDATE ON SERVICE PROPOSALS AND PROCUREMENT
STRATEGY FOR MODULAR HOMES

Bromley, along with all London local authorities was experiencing a significant
increase in demand for assistance and accommodation. Members had
received regular reports detailing the current pressures in the Housing
Division including the significant increase in the number of placements and
associated costs with night paid temporary accommodation.

The Council spent more than £4.5m (net) procuring temporary
accommodation (TA) for homeless households every year and demand for
this service was forecast to increase.

The Executive on 24th May 2017 had agreed to the principle of inviting bids
from potential suppliers for the development and management of a modular
constructed site on York Rise, subject to further market engagement to inform
the tender and specification and feasibility study of the site considering both
suitability and potential length of use.

Page 9



Executive
10 January 2018

The report provided an update on the market engagement undertaken and a
feasibility analysis, and requested permission to progress to formal tender to
appoint a supplier for modular homes (as set out in paragraphs 3.6-3.10.) The
final cost, and whether the units were purchased outright or leased, would be
determined by the tenders received — Members expected that the scheme
would produce savings and a better return than disposing of the site.

Members commented that the quality of modular homes had vastly improved,
and suggested that all members be invited to a site visit to view them in situ in
a neighbouring borough. Officers confirmed that arrangements were being
made.

The report had been scrutinised by the Care Services PDS Committee on 9"
January 2018; the Committee supported the recommendations, subject to
proposing that support for the proposals should be “subject to appropriate
planning permission being agreed.” Comments from ward councillors had
been submitted to the PDS Committee and were tabled for the Executive.
These are attached as Appendix C to these minutes.

RESOLVED that

(1) The proposals proceed to formal tender for provision of modular
build accommodation together with a management contract for a period
of 15 years as set out in paragraph 3.6 of the report.

(2) The use of the identified site at York Rise for the use of modular
constructed accommodation be approved.

(3) It is agreed in principal that officers look to identify other suitable
sites for use of modular homes which will be reported back to the
Executive as and when identified.

(4) It is noted that capital funding may be required for the preparation,
construction and planning of any modular home site and this will be
dealt with in the award report.

390 HEALTH SUPPORT TO SCHOOL AGE CHILDREN
Report CS18114

At its meeting on 30" November 2016, the Council’s Executive agreed to fund
a new service to support the health of school age children for 2 years, funded
by the Better Care Fund to a total value of £606k. The first £303k was
released for the new service in 2017/18. The new service started 1% April
2017. The drawdown of a further £303k for 2018/19 was subject to a further
report to the Executive.

Bromley CCG had procured the service from Bromley Healthcare on behalf of
the Council under a Section 75 agreement.

Page 10



Executive
10 January 2018

An evaluation of the new “Health Support to Schools Service” in October 2017
showed that the small team were only able to offer very limited safeguarding
support due to capacity. The Designated Safeguarding leads in Bromley CCG
and Public Health worked together to identify the gaps and risks to
safeguarding in the new service.

Five of the proposed six additional posts were for safeguarding. Schools had
indicated that they would not be willing to pay for statutory School Nurse
functions such as safeguarding. The contribution from schools to the Health
Support to Schools Service would be explored in a paper to the Executive in
spring/summer 2018.

Officers explained that the new contract was a more modern and responsive
service built around the needs of children and schools; the provision of data
from schools was much improved. Health partners recognised the need to
provide additional resources and their role with the Council in jointly
safeguarding children. The Leader drew attention to the recommendation
which was to release up to £300k, and commented that if all the money was
not needed it should be diverted to other services.

The report had been scrutinised by the Care Services PDS Committee on 9th
January 2018 and the Committee had supported the proposals.

RESOLVED that

(1) The drawdown of £303k from the Better Care Fund for continuing the
existing service into 2018/19 be agreed.

(2) The drawdown of up to an additional £300k from the Better Care Fund
to appoint an additional 6 nurses for the remainder of the existing Health
Support to Schools contract, to end March 2019, be agreed (in line with
paragraph 1.4 and the issues outlined in Section 3 of the report.)

391 CONTRACT AWARD FOR ADVOCACY SERVICES - PART 1
Report CS18118-1

The Executive considered a request to approve a contract award for a single
Advocacy Service for all client groups, replacing seven contracts with four
different providers. This would ensure better access to Advocacy Services
through a single point of access. This was a three year contract with a 1+1
year extension option to start on 1% April 2018. A part 2 report had also been
provided with additional details, including the evaluation of the tenders
received.

The report had been scrutinised by the Care Services PDS Committee on 9th
January 2018 and the Committee had supported the proposals.

RESOLVED that

(1) The contract award for Advocacy services for a period of 3 years
starting 1 April 2018 with the option of two one year extensions (3+1+1)

9
Page 11



Executive
10 January 2018

at a whole life contract value of £1,430,635 be approved as
recommended.

(2) Authority be delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive and Executive
Director of Education, Children and Families, in consultation with the
Portfolio Holder for Care Services, the Director of Commissioning, the
Director of Finance and the Director of Corporate Services, to extend
this contract for the two one year extension options.

392 CONSIDERATION OF ANY OTHER ISSUES REFERRED FROM
THE EXECUTIVE AND RESOURCES POLICY DEVELOPMENT
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

There were no additional items reported from Executive and Resources PDS
Committee.

393 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION)
(VARIATION) ORDER 2006 AND THE FREEDOM OF
INFORMATION ACT 2000

RESOLVED that the Press and public be excluded during consideration
of the items of business referred to below as it is likely in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings
that if members of the Press and public were present there would be
disclosure to them of exempt information.

The following summaries
refer to matters
involving exempt information

394 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 1ST AND
6TH DECEMBER 2017

RESOLVED that the exempt minutes of the meetings held on 1% and 6"
December 2017 be confirmed.

395 CONTRACT AWARD FOR ADVOCACY SERVICES - PART 2

The Executive considered exempt information relating to the proposed award
of a contract for Advocacy Services — see minute 391 above.

The Meeting ended at 8.16 pm

Chairman

10
Page 12



Appendix A
EXECUTIVE
10™ January 2018
QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
(A) Questions for oral reply

1. From Jane Ward to the Care Services Portfolio Holder

Will the Council be reflecting on the new legislation on Homeless reduction
coming into use in April 2018 when considering changes to their Homeless
strategy?

Reply:
The Council already has and will continue to reflect on the new legislation that
you refer to.

Supplementary Question:
Ms Ward asked for a more specific response.

Reply:

The draft Homelessness Strategy which is currently published for formal
consultation already reflects the key changes and requirements coming into
force under the Homelessness Reduction Act in April 2018.

The outcome of the consultation will directly feed into and closely influence
Bromley’s overarching and evolving Housing Strategy which is due to come to
Members for discussion and approval during Q2 2018.

The early intervention initiative is part of the range of activities being
undertaken to prepare for the requirements of the Homeless Reduction Act
and to address the current cost pressures in relation to temporary
accommodation provision.

2. From Diana Evans to the Care Services Portfolio Holder

How many homeless households have been rehoused outside of the borough
in the last four years and why?

Reply:

The total number over the last four years is 2,904.

Page 13



The reasons include personal choice, safety concerns, access to specialist
medical, family or employment support or outright necessity in cases where
no suitable local housing exists to meet an individual client’s needs.

| would add that the situation is not being helped in any way by better funded
neighbouring London Boroughs, who can afford to do so, paying higher
private landlord rates than Bromley can afford, forcing rent levels higher whilst
at the same time reducing the available housing stock for Bromley residents
more locally.

This marks yet another reason for us all, as to why the ongoing discussions
for ‘Fairer Funding’ for Bromley Council must be heard and fully responded
to.

Supplementary Question:
Mrs Evans asked whether the Portfolio Holder considered this to be a failure
of the system.

Reply:
The Portfolio Holder responded that, like other Councils pan-London, the
Council was acting out of necessity at the current time.

From Stephen Evans to the Leader of the Council

Will the Leader invite the Secretary of State of the Department for
Communities and Local Government (now Housing, Communities and Local
Government) to attend a public meeting in the borough to explain how the
Government's housing policies will benefit the people of Bromley?

Reply:

We?eya genuine wider local interest to do so demonstrate itself by all means,
although being somewhat presumptuous, | suspect were he to do so or be
here today, he would point to measures and facts as he has recently done
elsewhere, which include:

e The number of new homes in England has increased by more than
217,000 last year, the highest level of net additions since the depths of the
recession and the first time in almost a decade that the 200,000 milestone
has been reached.

e Allowing housing associations to be reclassified as private sector
organisations, freeing them from the shackles of public sector
bureaucracy, enabling them to concentrate on their core, crucial
missionwhich is building homes and providing them with £2bn to do
SO.

e Avyearon year rise in 2017 of 27% in the number of new affordable
homes over the year before.

e £9 billion being invested in affordable housing.

Page 14



¢ A doubling of the housing budget to deliver a million more homes,
including hundreds of thousands of affordable homes.

e Reformed planning rules, leading to record levels of planning permissions
being granted.

e The freeing up of unprecedented levels of public sector land to build on.

e The provision of hundreds of millions of pounds of finance for small and
innovative builders to accelerate construction speeds.

e Tens of thousands of derelict homes being brought back into use

e The ongoing need to identify more suitable Brownfield sites

e The need to scope new Garden Cities, which is clearly going to be a very
serious discussion.

| believe that he would also claim that this has only proved possible because
this is a government of deeds, not words. A government that is getting things
done, whilst at the same time acknowledging there is still much work still to be
done in terms of building more homes.

Supplementary Question:
Mr Evans asked if the Leader would condemn the management of public
sector housing?

Reply:

The Leader stated that he would condemn nothing, but that there was a pan-
London housing crisis and it was up to all Councils to meet their current
housing targets. Bromley achieved its targets, but not all other Councils did.
The market was the market — unfortunately Bromley did not have the money
to provide housing that other boroughs did, and this was forcing up rents.

From Jane Ward to the Resources Portfolio Holder

How do the Council see the proposed cuts to housing benefit for vulnerable
tenants in supported housing, and its proposed replacement with ring fenced
funding, affecting the support and housing contribution costs that are currently
being provided in the borough to vulnerable tenants?

Reply:

The latest consultation on funding for supported housing only recently closed.
This included the current proposals which would come into effect in 2020. As
we have not yet received the final proposals we are unable to say exactly
what impact there may be. However, overall the government has undertaken
that the changes should not result in any reduction to funding. The Director of
Housing has indicated that the latest consultation proposed that sheltered,
extra care housing and long-term supported housing continue to be funded
through the welfare system, as such a grant would not replace existing
arrangements. The key issue here will be to provide sufficient detail to ensure
that rental levels able to be paid through the welfare system are reflective of
the true costs. The government has indicated that they will consult extensively
before setting maximum levels payable.

Page 15



For short term supported housing a ring fenced grant will be introduced. The
government has stated that this will be reflective of costs, take into account
current and future needs and give greater security to providers. As no detalil
has as yet been provided on how this will be administered or likely levels of
funding it is not possible to assess the overall impact, but we continue to work
closely with government to try and develop a funding formula which achieves
these goals ensuring there is no reduction to the housing and support
contributions.

Supplementary Question:

Ms Ward asked whether the Council would be lobbying the Government for
full consultation to protect vulnerable tenants, and what form the consultation
would take?

Reply:

The Portfolio Holder responded that the Council regularly lobbied Ministers —
leading members had met with two Ministers in the previous month to explain
the implications for Bromley people of the Government’s policies.

From Jane Ward to the Resources Portfolio Holder

What is the expectation of Bromley Council as Universal Credit continues to
be rolled out this year of the impact on homelessness in the borough, and will
the Council make representations to the government to halt these measures
and prevent the escalation of homelessness for families on lower incomes
and pressure on local council funding and housing services?

Reply:

Ths IE/eader wrote to the Secretary of State about the changes needed to
Universal Credit on 20" November 2017 and | am pleased that many positive
changes have been made to reduce the impact on homelessness (the
response will be circulated with the minutes). The Council will continue to
endeavour to seek the best funding settlement possible towards supporting
people on universal credit to prevent homelessness. It is not possible to
identify the full impact on homelessness of the roll out of Universal Credit but
some of the recent changes already made by the Government made have
been helpful.

The Council will also continue to use its Discretionary Housing Fund which is
available to support people on low incomes who need support with housing
Ccosts.

Page 16



7R Ministerial
- Correspondence 0207 340 4000

Caxton House
Department Tothill Street www.gov.uk
for Work & LONDON
Pensions St

ministers @dwp.gsi.gov.uk

Councillor Colin P Smith

Leader of the Council Our ref: POS(2)4065/52
London Borough of Bromley

Room P15, Old Palace, Civic Centre

Stockwell Close, Bromley

S S 1 8 DEC 2017

h.__ u\r ngUL,

Thank you for your letter of 20 November to the Secretary of State about
Universal Credit. | am replying as the Minister responsible for this area of
the Department’s work.

We have listened to recent concerns about Universal Credit and have now
announced a number of further improvements to Universal Credit. These
will begin to be delivered over the coming months. This package of
measures not only addresses concerns raised around the first assessment
period and the budgeting issues faced by some claimants at the start of
their claim, but also supports the vast majority of claimants transitioning
onto Universal Credit. -

We are making advances in Universal Credit more generous in three key
ways. We are increasing the repayment period to 12 months from the
current six months, increasing the maximum amount people can claim up
to 100 per cent of their estimated monthly entitiement and making
advances available to apply for online. This will make it even easier for
claimants to receive the support that they need.

We are also removing the seven-day waiting period that some claimants
have at the start of their Universal Credit claim. In addition, for claimants
already receiving support towards their housing costs, we are providing an
additional payment of two weeks of their Housing Benefit to support them
as they transition onto Universal Credit.

From April 2018, we will also change how claimants in temporary |
accommodation receive support for their housing costs. This will ensure
local authorities can recover more costs and can therefore continue to offer

Page 17



this valuable support to the most vulnerable. In addition, from December
2017, there will be new guidance for our staff to ensure we offer managed
payments to landlords for claimants in the Private Rented Sector, who
already receive this for their Housing Benefit.

It is also important to mention that the Department’s research shows that
the majority of people claiming Universal Credit are comfortable managing
their budget and Jobcentre work coaches discuss budgeting support with
all claimants in their very first work search interview.

Finally, we recognise that there are areas for improvement in the service,
but with every release of new software and every new office that goes live
with the Universal Credit full digital service, enhancements are made that
improve the experience for claimants.

If | can be of further assistance please do not hesitate to contact me.

/)O'AW“L?
Jans [

~ Damian Hinds MP
Minister for Employment =

Page 18



Appendix B
EXECUTIVE

10™ January 2018

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

(B) Questions for Written Reply

(1)

(2)

From Colin Willetts to the Environment Portfolio Holder

With regard to the Priory, Could you tell us when (i) the broken bridge railings
& warning tape will be removed from the pond itself? (ii) does this require
additional/better warning precautions for the public to cross in safety? & (iii)
when will the bridge be repaired?

Reply:

| can confirm that the broken rails and barrier tape have been removed from
the site and that the site is monitored routinely to replace and repair damage
to temporary barriers that have been installed. The bridge is currently closed
as it is deemed unsafe until it has been surveyed to ensure it is structurally
sound. Arrangements have been made to have the structure surveyed next
week and the results will inform the subsequent repairs required, including the
further use of the bridge and the time it will take to undertake repairs.

From Colin Willetts to the Care Services Portfolio Holder

Having forwarded complaints regarding levels of care given to an

Alzheimer's resident (including staff shortages!) by Caremark, the lack of
quality here (elsewhere?) is serious indeed, (i) could you investigate our
concerns case wise? (ii) given additional ASC Precept funding can the Council
source a 'worthy' provider in this case and Borough wide if necessary?

Reply:

The case in question has been raised as a concern and is being followed up
by the Care Manager working with the family and the provider to resolve their
concerns.

The most recent CQC rating for Caremark is Good; the provider is regularly
monitored by the Contracts Compliance Team, including staffing levels,
complaints and concerns raised by service users. The Contracts Compliance
Team considers the provider to be responsive to all such input and appear
committed to continuous improvement.

Page 19



3)

From Colin Willetts to the Environment Portfolio Holder

With regard to our question 11/12/17, your reply of improvement design of bus
stop facility outside 297 Chipperfield Road is welcome news indeed, could you
send us asap a hard copy of consultation/diagram for our comments to 2
Longbury Close, Orpington BR5 2LB?

Reply:

Please find attached a pdf of the plan for the proposed bus stop improvements
outside property No. 297 Chipperfield Road. We will be consulting with local
residents this week.

Page 20



hardstanding areas.
Raised kerb to 150mm over/

2m x 1.2m approx. blacktop or
whole length of hardstanding

similar approved type surfacing.

Similarly 2m x 2.5m extension to
Proposed extension to bus stop

Shorten bus cage by 4m approx
at northern end
Proposed taper (dropper)
hardstanding on southern end. \
v
cage & clearway marking

_— Proposed extension to bus stop 'S’
type kerbs ‘
"f ' Relocate bus stop post to 2m from
end of new hardstanding area.
Also relocate existing waste bin to >
a suitable nearby location

o Proposed taper (dropper)
b type kerbs
«Q
Q)
N
H
© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey 100017661.
Job Title: Drawing Title Scale @ A4 Environmental Services
1:200 Fé Civic Centre, Stockwell Close,
O/S 297 CHIPPERFIELD ROAD | PROPOSED BUS STOP - t%;% S, B S0
061117 | g™ : )
O obon Fax: 0208313 -4555 .
ORPI NGTON IMPROVEMENTS Drawn by: 1) ) : Email : www.bromley.gov.uk
Rev Date Description B
-' Nigel Davies A " P !
Checked by: Executive Director of Environment & A Drawing Number Rev
D.B. Community Services 12597-02 -

Services\Ti g ,AD\Drawings\C leted\Archive 12500-12599\12597_Chi

Rd jct Longbury Drive.Bus stop imps\12597-02.dwg USER: Joyce, John FILE SIZE = 1.52




This page is left intentionally blank



Appendix C
EXECUTIVE

10™ January 2018

10. UPDATE ON SERVICE PROPOSALS AND PROCUREMENT STRATEGY FOR
MODULAR HOMES — WARD COUNCILLOR COMMENTS TO CARE SERVICES
PDS COMMITTEE ON 9™ JANUARY 2018

(a) From CllIr Charles Joel (7" January 2018)

My fellow Ward Councillor Bob Evans passed onto me a copy of the above that you
will be considering at the forthcoming meeting. Unfortunately | will not be able to
attend to make a presentation to the committee but | would esteem it a favour if a
copy of my email could be distributed with your agreement to each member on that
committee.

I have the following observations to make on this project.

RECOMMENDATIONS (Page 183 - Executive Agenda; Page 105 - Care Services
Agenda)

ltem 2.1:

(1) Why only fifteen years?

(iv) Surely Capital funding will be required, not may.

FINANCIAL (Page 185 - Executive Agenda; Page 107 - Care Services Agenda)
Item 4
(4) A breakdown of the budget of £3,783.370 should be given to justify this amount.

CUSTOMER IMPACT (Page 185 - Executive Agenda; Page 107 - Care Services
Agenda)

Page 185

Can it be explained and justified the initial assessment of the site where it suggests
that between 30 and 36 units could be provided.

WARD COUNCILLORS VIEWS (Page 185 - Executive Agenda; Page 107 - Care
Services Agenda)

Item 1: Comments not applicable, why not?

Item 2: | have made a few comments regarding my views at this stage but has any
preliminary consultations taken place with the planning, highways and environmental
departments at the Council?

COMMENTARY (Page 186 - Executive Agenda; Page 108 - Care Services Agenda)
Item 3.4

It states that in a previous report to the Executive Meeting held on 24" May 2017 that
the executive agreed for officers to proceed with a further analysis. | feel that the
report that is before you should have contained more detailed information and not
just a two line statement as addressed in Item 3.5.

THE PROPOSAL (Page 186 - Executive Agenda; Page 108 - Care Services Agenda)

1
Page 23



| have already queried the period of fifteen years but | will reserve my rights to make
further comments as | consider the comments made in Items 3.7 and 3.8 to be again
a loose statement.

CUSTOMER PROFILE (Page 187 - Executive Agenda; Page 109 - Care Services
Agenda)

What about the provisions for disabled persons units?

OUTLINE STRATEGY AND CONTRACTING PROPOSALS (Page 189 - Executive
Agenda; Page 111 - Care Services Agenda)

Item 8.2

From the schedule it would seem the earliest an appointed developer could make a
start on the project would be early 2019. Then no provision has been made in the
period time needed to prepare and submit formal applications under Town & Country
Planning Acts and Building Regulation Acts, see item 11.5

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS (Page 190 - Executive Agenda; Page 112 - Care
Services Agenda)

ltem 11.4

I do not like the statement made contained in the second paragraph

CONCLUSION:

1. Has the Council considered selling off the site to a private developer?

2. It has been mentioned in the past that the area of land in question was
an underground operational shelter that was built during the early
period of WW2.

3. With the proposal that is before the committee has any consideration
been given to the following:-

1)  Will car parking spaces be needed

i) Refuse/cycle storage areas

iif) Awkward site access

iv) If residential management should be in place

v) Problems for children to attend local schools and if local GPs can
take on additional patients

vi) With the development this would need to comply with the current
Building Regulation Acts. In fifteen years time the
structure/elements could be out of date hence some of the fabric
could not be reused, also wear and tear of the materials

4. | can conclude that in the past | have made representations regarding
this site and that it would be ideal as the land is in the ownership of the
Council to enter into a joint venture with a developer and mortgage
company to build affordable starter homes for first time buyers.

Page 24



5. | am still of the opinion that local residents mainly living in York Rise
should be consulted that the Council are contemplating building
homeless family dwellings on this site.

| ask that copies of this email be circulated to members attending the meeting and a
copy attached to the minutes for the record purposes.

(b) From ClIr Tim Stevens (9" January 2018)

Sorry this is late please can my comments below be put to the Committee this
evening.

Firstly | agree with pretty much everything that Clir Joel has said
It is extraordinary that ward members have not been consulted to date this is not
acceptable.

| also query why we are agreeing a fifteen year contract this makes this a permeant
site and not a temporary one it was agreed at the Executive and resources PDS that
the York Rise which is in a prime location next to the station could be sold off and |
would agree with this and should be for first time buyers like the rest of the estate
which was built in 1985 which | bought my first house in, studio flats or one and two
bed houses would be a good use for this site.

As a ward member | would like a full breakdown of the financial position for this
project.

| am also concerned at the number of Modular units proposed for this site 30-36
seems excessive especially if they are going to be multi level and | would ask for a
full consultation with residents from York rise, Yeovil close whose residents over look
this site and Crofton Road as well as local residents associations who will all have
huge concerns. No mention is made of parking provision for these modular homes or
traffic on what | already a very busy road - please can this be considered?

In conclusion | believe this to be the wrong place for such building and think this site
should be used for first time buyers instead there are many unanswered questions at
this time both financial and if there will be disable provision provided if this scheme
goes ahead.

Please can | ask Committee that this matter is deferred tonight to allow proper
consultation and discussion?

Page 25



This page is left intentionally blank



Report No. London Borough of Bromley
CSD18016

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: EXECUTIVE

Date: 7" February 2018

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Executive Non-Key
Title: MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS
Contact Officer: Graham Walton, Democratic Services Manager

Tel: 0208 461 7743 E-mail: graham.walton@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Mark Bowen, Director of Corporate Services

Ward: N/A

1. Reason for report

1.1 Appendix A updates Members on matters arising from previous meetings.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 The Executive is invited to consider progress on matters arising from previous meetings.

Non-Applicable Sections: | Impact on Vulnerable Adults and
Children/Policy/Financial/Personnel/Legal/Procurement
Background Documents: Minutes of previous Executive meetings

(Access via Contact
Officer)

1 Page 27



Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: Not applicable

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy: The Executive receives an update on matters arising from
previous meetings at each meeting.

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council:

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: No Cost:

2 Ongoing costs: Not Applicable:

3 Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Services
4.  Total current budget for this head: £343,810

5 Source of funding: 2017/18 Revenue Budget

Personnel
1. Number of staff (current and additional): 8 posts (6.87fte)

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: Monitoring the Executive’s matters
arising takes at most a few hours per meeting.

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: None:

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications: Not Applicable

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): This report is intended
primarily for the benefit of Executive Members

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments: Not Applicable

2 Page 28



Appendix A

Minute Executive Update Action by Completion
Number/Title Decision/Request Date
22"% March 2017
201 Members requested a | This issue will be Head of March 2018
Operational report on the position | included in a report | Strategic
Building with regard to the on Asset Property
Maintenance sale of former public | Management.
Budgets and toilet buildings.
Planned
Programme 2017/18
13™ September 2017
317 Members requested | Improved Director of March 2018
Housing Supply more detailed information will be | Housing
information, including | incorporated into
comparative data with | the next report.
neighbouring
boroughs, in the next
report.
7™ November 2017
344/1 Members requested Following the Head of March 2018
Phase 2 works at further investigation award of contract | Strategic Place
Beacon Academy, and clarification the successful Planning

Orpington

regarding the
provision of
sprinklers.

contractor were
asked to provide
an outline cost for
the provision of
sprinklers to
Beacon Academy
Orpington to
include (a) the new
build elements of
the scheme only
and (b) the whole
school. The outline
price is expected
at the end of
January. Following
the receipt of costs
the Council will
have the option of
developing these
into fully costed
proposals on
which a decision
would need to be
taken by the end of
March 2018.

3

Page 29




6" December 2017

362 A further report was A further report will | Head of Youth | September
Bromley Youth requested for the 2" | be prepared in due | Offending and | 2018
Employment or 3" quarter of 2018 | course Youth Services
Scheme Project defining outcomes
Extension more clearly so that

funding can be

considered in the

2019/20 budget.
10™ January 2018
389 All Members to be Visits are being Director of February 2018
Update on Service | invited to a site visit arranged — further | Housing

Proposals and

to see modular

details will be

Procurement homes in a available shortly.
Strategy for neighbouring
Modular Homes borough.

Page 30




Report No.
FSD18016

Agenda Iltem 6

London Borough of Bromley

PART 1 - PUBLIC

Decision Maker:

Date:

Decision Type:

TITLE:

Contact Officer:

Director:

Ward:

Executive

7th February 2018

Non-Urgent Executive Key

2018/19 Council Tax

Peter Turner, Director of Finance
Tel: 020 8313 4338 E-mail: peter.turner@bromley.gov.uk

Director of Finance

Borough wide

1. REASON FOR REPORT

1.1 This report identifies the final issues affecting the 2018/19 revenue budget and seeks
recommendations to the Council on the level of the Bromley element of the 2018/19
Council Tax and Adult Social Care precept. Confirmation of the final GLA precept will be
reported to the Council meeting on 22nd February 2018. The report also seeks final
approval of the ‘schools budget’. The approach reflected in this report is for the Council to
not only achieve a legal and financially balanced budget in 2018/19 but to have measures
in place to deal with the medium term financial position (2019/20 to 2021/22).

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Executive is requested to recommend to Council that it:

(@) Approves the schools budget of £76.696m which matches the estimated level
of Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), after academy recoupment;

(b) Approves the draft revenue budgets (as in Appendix 2) for 2018/19;

(c) Agrees

that Chief Officers identify alternative savings within their

departmental budgets where it is not possible to realise any savings reported
to the previous meeting of the Executive held on 10" January 2018;

(d) Approves a contingency sum of £14,857k (see section 5);

Page 31



(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

()

(k)

Approves the following provisions for levies for inclusion in the budget for
2018/19;

£000
Local Pension Partnership * 487
London Boroughs Grant Committee 248
Environment Agency (Flood defence etc.) * 250
Lee Valley Regional Park * 380
Total 1,398

* Provisional estimate at this stage

Notes the latest position on the GLA precept, which will be finalised in the
overall Council Tax figure to be reported to full Council (see section 11);

Considers the “Bromley element” of the Council Tax for 2018/19 to be
recommended to the Council, including a general increase and the Adult
Social Care Precept, having regard to possible ‘referendum’ issues (see
section 15);

Approves the approach to reserves outlined by the Director of Finance (see
Appendix 4);

Notes that the final Local Government Finance Settlement 2018/19 is still
awaited and the late information from the Valuation Office Agency could also
have an impact on the final 2018/19 Budget position {see 4.1 (f)};

Notes that any decision on final council tax level will also require additional
“technical” recommendations, to meet statutory requirements, which will be
completed once the final outcome of levies are known at the full Council
meeting (see 15.9);

Agrees that the Director of Finance be authorised to report any further changes
directly to Council on 26th February 2018.

Page 32



Corporate Policy

Policy Status: Existing Policy

BBB Priority: Excellent Council

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: N/A

2. Ongoing Costs: Recurring costs — impact in future years detailed in Appendix 1
3. Budget head/performance centre: Council wide

4. Total budget for this head £151m Draft 2018/19 Budget (excluding GLA precept)

5. Source of funding: See Appendix 2 for overall funding of Council’s budget

Staff

1. Number of staff (current and additional): total employees — full details will be available with
the Council’s 2018/19 Financial Control Budget to be published in March 2018

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours — N/A

Legal

1. Statutory requirement: The statutory duties relating to financial reporting are covered within
the Local Government Act 1972; the Local Government Finance Act 1998; the Local
Government Act 2000; the Local Government Act 2002 and the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 .

2. Call-in is applicable

Customer Impact

Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected) - the 2018/19 budget
reflects the financial impact of the Council’s strategies, service plans etc. which impact on
all of the Council’s customers (including council tax payers) and users of the services.

Ward Councillors Views

1. Have ward councillors been asked for comments? N/A

2. Summary of Ward Councillor comments: Council wide

Page 33



3.1

3.2

4.1

PREVIOUS REPORTING TO MEMBERS

There was a presentation for the Members Finance Seminar on 10th July 2017 which
provided some detailed financial context. There has been a separate seminar on Welfare
Reform on 27" November 2017. The presentations are available on ‘One Bromley’.

The ‘Draft 2018/19 Budget and Update on the Council’s Financial Strategy 2019/20 to
2021/22’ was reported to the Executive on 10" January 2018. Key matters reflected in the
report included:

(Please note appendices and sections shown below refer to the report to the meeting of
the Executive on 10" January 2018)

(a) Approach to Budgeting, Financial Context and Economic Situation which can impact
on Public Finances (Section 3 and Appendix 1);

(b) Autumn Budget 2017 and Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 2018/19
(Appendix 2);

(c) Council Tax Levels, Government Funding and Spend Levels (Appendix 3);

(d) Changes since the 2017/18 Budget that impact on the Financial Forecast (Section 4);

(e) Joining the London Business Rate Pilot Pool (see Section 4.7 and Appendix 4);

() Latest Financial Forecast including real changes (Section 6 and Appendices 5-6);

(g) Detailed Draft 2018/19 Budget (Section 7 and Appendix 7);

(h) Options being undertaken with a “One Council” approach (Section 8);

() ldentifying further savings (Section 9);

() Future Local Authority Landscape (Section 10);

(k) The Schools’ Budget (section 12);

() Issues for Future Years (Section 14);

(m)Consultation (Section 17 and Appendix 10);

(n) Risk Areas within each Portfolio (Section 18 and Appendix 11)

All of the above should be considered with this report as part of finalising the 2018/19
Budget and council tax levels.

2018/19 DRAFT BUDGET AND CHANGES SINCE LAST MEETING OF THE
EXECUTIVE

The last report to the Executive identified a significant ‘budget gap’ over the four year
financial planning period. The main updates are shown below:

(@) There has been upward pressure on inflation since the 2017/18 Budget
was set and the 2018/19 Draft Budget and financial forecast assumes increased
costs of 3.5% per annum for 2018/19 and 2019/20 reducing to 2.5% per annum
from 2020/21. The inflation mainly relates to contract price increases. The main
measure used for contract price increases is RPIX. The Autumn Budget 2017
reported that inflation (RPI) is expected to be 3.1% in 2018/19, 2.8% in 2019/20
and 2.9% in 2020/21 and 2021/22. Since the last meeting of the
Executive the latest annual increase in RPIX (Dec.’17) is 4.2% which
compares with 4.0% in the previous month. At the previous meeting of
the Executive, members agreed that action will need to be taken by Chief
Officers to fund increasing costs through alternative savings in the event that
inflation exceeds the budget assumptions;

Page 34



(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(f)

@

There was an announcement in the Provisional Local Government Financial
Settlement 2018/19 that additional funding would be available for Unaccompanied
Asylum Seeker Children. One off funding of £231k in 2018/19 was announced for
Bromley on 16™ January 2018. The grant conditions are awaited;

The Resources Portfolio Holder announced at the last meeting of the Executive that

the Council is proposing a pay award of 2% for Council staff. Further details are
being reported to General Purposes and Licensing Committee on 6" February
2018. The financial impact of this proposal has been included in the Draft 2018/19
Budget;

The final allocations for Public Health Grant have been announced and, compared
with the current funding of £15.1m there will be funding reductions of £388k in
2018/19 with further reductions of £388k in 2019/20 (total of £776k per annum from
2019/20). The funding reduction previously assumed were £410k and £820k
respectively;

The Provisional Local Government Financial Settlement 2018/19 was announced
on 19" December 2017 and the final outcome following the consultation period is
expected to be announced in February. A verbal update will be provided at the
meeting to cover any further changes arising from the awaited final settlement and
from any other significant changes;

After the Provisional Local Government Financial Settlement 2018/19, the Valuation

Office Agency published updated revaluation data to change the information used
to calculate the Settlement totals. The lateness of these revisions creates a degree
of uncertainty on the final Settlement position. It is not clear, at this stage, whether
the corrections will impact on the Council’s 2018/19 Budget.

There is also uncertainty around the treatment of Section 31 grants following the

introduction of the London Business Rate Pool and the increased level of retained
business rates — clarification is awaited. The additional income of £2.9m, included
in the 2018/19 Budget, from the Pool is based on London Councils’ provisional
estimates which are currently being updated.

Page 35



4.2 A summary analysis of key variations in the Draft 2018/19 Budget, compared with the
2017/18 Budget, are shown in Appendix 1 and summarised below.

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Variations Compared with 2017/18 Budget £m £m £m £m
Grant Loss 8.5 14.0 18.4 22.2
Cost Pressures

Inflation (including impact of National Living Wage) 9.1 19.1 27.5 34.4

Welfare Reforms and Impact on Homelessness 2.0 4.3 5.8 7.8

Homelessness Reduction Act 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7

Environmental Services contract & other key contracts 0.0 2.0 4.0 4.0

Full year effect of adult social care spend not funded

by IBCF 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

Children's Social Care 11 1.1 11 11

Real Changes (see Appendix 6) 2.0 1.6 2.0 2.5
Total Additional Costs 14.9 29.8 42.1 51.5
Income / Savings

Savings from Office Accommodation Review 0.0 -0.6 -0.6 -0.6

Acquisition of Residential Properties to Accommodate

Homeless (Mears) -1.0 -1.9 -1.9 -1.9

Additional Income Opportunity (Amey) -0.5 -0.7 -0.9 -0.9

Additional Income from Business Rate Share 0.0 -0.6 -0.9 -0.9

Impact of London Pilots of Business Rates -2.9 0.0 0.0 0.0

Interest on balances - additional income -0.6 -0.2 -0.1 0.0

Release general provision in contingency for significant

uncertainty/variables -2.0 -2.0 -2.0 -2.0

Savings from recommisioning/retendering of

various contracts -1.1 -11 -1.2 -1.2

Fall out of Comissioning Programme funding -0.5 -0.5 -0.5 -0.5

Savings from Childrens Social Care linked to Invest

to Save funding 0.0 -0.3 -0.8 -1.0
Total Income / Savings -8.6 -7.9 -8.9 -9.0
Other Changes (includes use of non-recurring funds)

New Homes Bonus - Support for Revenue Budget -1.9 0.8 2.8 3.8
Total Other Changes -1.9 0.8 2.8 3.8
Council Tax

Increase in Council Tax Base to reflect additional properties

and increased collection rates -1.6 -2.3 -2.9 -3.6

Impact of 3.99% Increase in Council Tax

(including Adult Social Care Precept) -5.7 -11.6 -17.8 -24.2
Total Council Tax -7.3 -13.9 -20.7 -27.8

Use of non-recurring Collection Fund surplus to support
the revenue budget

Collection Fund Surplus 2014/15

(set aside to meet funding shortfall in 2018/19) -4.9 0.0 0.0 0.0

Collection Fund surplus 2015/16 (£6,401k carry forward to

2018/19 and 2019/20) -0.7 -5.7 0.0 0.0

Collection Fund surplus 2016/17 -7.9

Collection Fund surplus 2016/17 set aside to support

the 2019/20 Budget 7.9 -7.9 0.0 0.0

Projection of future year collection fund surplus 0.0 -4.0 -3.0 -2.0
Total use of non-recurring Collection Fund surplus -5.6 -17.6 -3.0 -2.0
Remaining "Budget Gap" 0.0 5.2 30.7 38.7

Page 36



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

5.1

These variations are subject to any final decision on Council Tax levels. Appendix 2
derives an illustrative ‘Bromley element’ Council Tax of £1,158.48 (1.99% general
increase plus 2% adult social care precept) and Appendix 3 includes the Draft 2018/19
Central Contingency Sum. Appendix 2 is based on draft portfolio budgets, the draft
contingency provision and the latest assumptions for levies. This sum excludes the GLA
precept.

The above table highlights that, although it has been possible to achieve a balanced
budget for the next year through a combination of front loading savings in previous
years, proactively generating investment income and prudent financial management.
There remains a ‘budget gap’ of £5.2m in 2019/20 rising to £38.7m in 2021/22. The
remaining budget gap highlights that the Council, on a roll forward basis, has a ‘structural
deficit’ as the ongoing budget has increasing costs relating to inflation and service
pressures as well as the ongoing loss of Government grants. These changes are not
being fully funded by a corresponding growth in income from council tax, Adult Social
Care Precept or other sources of income. The ‘budget gap’ may increase or reduce as a
result of a number of variables in future years. The projections in later years have to be
treated with some caution, particularly as the Government’s next spending review is
expected to be implemented from 2020/21 which will include the revised levels of funding
for individual local authorities following the ‘Fair Funding’ review. The Government is
consulting on the early stages of the ‘Fair Funding’ review.

The Council has to continue to plan for several years of strong financial restraint. The
future year’s financial projections shown in Appendix 1 includes the Government’s
provisional allocations of ongoing reductions in Government funding in 2019/20 with
further reductions assumed for 2020/21 and 2021/22. Any projections over the next four
years need to be treated with caution as there remains significant uncertainty relating to
any future changes arising from new welfare reforms and future new burdens. The
Council is participating in the London Business Rate Pool in 2018/19 and the full
devolution of business rates by 2020/21 will create new risks as well as opportunities for
the Council. It is important to recognise that the downside risks remain as well as limited
opportunities for improvement in the overall financial position in future years.

Further changes will be required, prior to the report to full Council on 26th February for the
finalisation of the Council Tax, to reflect latest available information on levies, and the
GLA precept.

The key net cost pressures consist of inflation, including impact of National Living Wage
(£9.1m), impact of grant reductions (£8.5m) and various growth pressures (£5.8m)
totalling £23.4m in 2018/19. This sum increases to an estimated £73.7m per annum by
2021/22. If further growth pressure continues in these areas, as well as other areas, the
future years ‘budget gap’ could increase.

DRAFT 2018/19 CENTRAL CONTINGENCY SUM

Details of the 2018/19 Draft Contingency Sum of £14,857k have been included in
Appendix 3. This sum allows for proper financial planning and ensures the council is
prepared for changes in financial circumstances. It is important to recognise that this
includes various significant costs not allocated to Portfolio budgets at this stage.
Therefore, there may be further changes to the Central Contingency to reflect allocations
to individual Portfolio Budgets which will be reflected in the 2018/19 Financial Control
Budget. This will ensure that budget holders will have all their individual budgets updated

Page 37



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.1

8.1

8.2

early in the financial year. Such changes will not impact on the Council’s overall 2018/19
Budget.

EARMARKED RESERVES

As reported to the Executive previously, the Council has reduced its level of general
reserves (general fund reserves in 1997 were £131 million). Part of the reduction reflects
the funding towards the Invest to Save Fund, Growth and Investment Fund. These funds
will help support the achievement of sustainable savings/income to the Council.

Reserves are one off monies and are utilised to resource investment in schemes that will
deliver long terms savings, support economic development, create employment
opportunities and enable income opportunities as well as have sufficient resources to
manage financial risks during this unprecedented period of austerity. It is not financially
sustainable to use Council reserves as part of the revenue budget to fund ongoing service
costs.

The position on reserves is reported to Executive as part of the final accounts report in
June each year as well as the Council Tax report to Executive in February each year.
Bromley’s overall reserves are expected to remain at about average for London and have
to be considered in the context of an underlying ‘budget gap’ of £38.7m per annum by
2021/22.

The Council had general reserves remaining of £20m as at 31/3/2017. A full breakdown
of reserves including earmarked reserves is detailed in Appendix 4.

If the existing general reserves are released now to fund service initiatives, delay
savings or reduce council tax there would be a resultant ‘opportunity cost’ relating to a
corresponding loss in interest earnings/investment opportunities and further acceleration
of the anticipated exhaustion of reserves which is not recommended. Any increase in
service levels or initial protection would only be very short term. Reserves can only be
used as a one-off contribution to revenue spending and would not provide a sustainable
solution to maintaining local government services.

2017/18 BUDGET MONITORING

The most recent budget monitoring position was reported to Executive on 6™ December
2017. The report identified an overall net underspend of £289k but highlighted full year
costs of £3.3m The majority of these costs related to Care Services (£3.1m) and have
been included in the 2018/19 Budget. Funding of £2m from the Improved Better Care
Fund has been used towards these costs in 2018/19.

THE SCHOOLS BUDGET

Since 2003/04, the Council has received funding for the Schools Budget element of
Education services through a ring fenced grant, more recently through the Dedicated
Schools Grant (DSG).

The introduction of the National Funding Formula (NFF) will begin in 2018/19. Funding
has been split into four blocks; Schools, High Needs, Early Years and Central spend
DSG. The funding has now become more rigid with meaning that the scope for transfer
between blocks is limited.

Page 38



8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

9.1

10.

10.1

Final allocations have been announced and are driven mainly by pupil numbers. The
Early Years block has also increased due to the extension of the 15 hours entitlement
which added £2m to the block. This will be offset by additional expenditure. The High
Needs Block is seeing pressure coming through the system with expenditure rising at a
faster rate than the grant allocation.

To this end the Council applied to DfE for a disapplication request to transfer £1m from
the Schools Block element of the DSG to the High Needs Block. DfE have approved this
request.

The Schools Budget includes the delegated budgets for individual maintained schools and
also other pupil led services such as Special Educational Needs, pre-school provision and
pupils excluded from schools. The ring fenced Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) funds this
in the main although £1m of Council funds has been allocated to High Needs spend to
cover the shortfall in funding arising from the NFF.

The ring fencing of this grant results in a continuation of minimal scope to redirect
resources from the Schools Budget to other services.

For the first two financial years of the NFF (2018/19 and 2019/20), the Council is
permitted to move towards to the NFF formula of distribution of funds to Schools or
continue to use the existing Bromley Funding Formula (BFF).

The use of DSG was subject to consultation with the Schools Forum and also went to the
Education, Children and Families Budget and Performance Monitoring Sub-Committee on
the 17™ January 2018. The Sub-Committee recommended the use of the NFF as the
methodology to pass funding to Schools. At the time of writing this report, this is subject to
the formal agreement of the Education, Children and Families Portfolio Holder.

Although it is difficult to predict, the 2018/19 Draft Budget assumes ongoing conversion of
remaining maintained schools to academies. The grant allocation is recalculated on a
guarterly basis, so the grant will reduce in-year as more schools convert.

LEVIES

Miscellaneous levies must be charged to the General Fund and shown as part of
Bromley’s expenditure on the Council Tax bill. The levy figures in Appendix 2 are based
on the latest information but many are still provisional. Any changes will be reported at the
meeting of the Council on 26th February 2018 and will impact on the final council tax
level. The London Boroughs Grants Committee is required to apportion its levy on a
population basis but the other levying bodies must use the Council Tax base.

COLLECTION FUND

It is a statutory requirement to maintain a Collection Fund at arm’s length from the
remainder of the Council’'s accounts.

10.2 The Council has a non-recurring collection fund surplus of £9.8m reflected in the

‘2016/17 Provisional Final Accounts’ report to Executive on 20" June 2017. The surplus
income is mainly due to good debt recovery levels despite the previous recessionary
period, an increase in new properties in the borough and the successful impact of
actions following the data matching exercise on single person discounts. The
financial impact of the council tax support scheme was also lower than budgeted. A

Page 39



10.3

11.

111

12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

sum of £2.0m will be allocated to the GLA and £7.8m to the Council. As part of
medium term financial planning, the financial forecast assumes that the surplus will be
used towards reducing the Council’s ‘budget gap’ in 2019/20.

There have been no changes to the council tax base since the previous meeting of the
Executive.

THE GREATER LONDON AUTHORITY PRECEPT

The GLA’s 2018/19 Draft Budget has been issued for consultation and includes proposals
for an increase of 5.1% in existing GLA precept levels for 2018/19. The final GLA precept
for 2018/19 is expected to be announced after the Assembly has considered the Mayor’s
draft consolidated budget on 22nd February 2018.

COUNCIL’S CAPITAL PROGRAMME, UTILISATION OF GENERAL RESERVES AND
BUILDING MAINTENANCE

The latest estimated general fund (revenue) balance at 31%' March 2018, as shown in the
‘Budget Monitoring 2017/18’ report to the 6™ December 2017 meeting of Executive, is
provided below:

2017/18
Projected
Outturn
£Million
General Fund Balance as at 1% April 2017 20.0
Impact of net projected underspends reflected in the 2017/18 +0.3
budget monitoring report
Adjustment to Balances: Carry forwards (funded from -0.6
underspends in 2016/17)
Estimated General Fund Balance at 31% March 2018 (end of 19.7
year)

Bromley’s Capital programme is mainly funded by external government grants and
contributions from TfL. There are, however, a number of schemes funded from capital
receipts.

The ‘Capital Programme Monitoring 2011/12 and Annual Capital Review 2012 to 2016’
report to the February 2012 meeting of the Executive identified the long term
financial implications of the capital programme. The report identified that abandoning
the previously agreed strategy (fund rolling programmes through capital and
reinstating general fund contribution to support the revenue budget of £3.5m) would
have resulted in the Council’s entire general reserves being utilised in the medium term.
This illustrates the benefits of the strategy that Members have adopted since 2006/07.
However, given the ongoing financial constraints and limited opportunities to reduce
costs in the medium term, this approach was reconsidered to provide capital funding for
investment in planned highways maintenance funded by capital receipts (details included

in ‘Highways Investment’ report to Executive on 18" October 20186).

Page 40



12.4

12.5

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

14.

14.1

14.2

Alongside the introduction of the prudential code for capital spending, the Director of
Finance is required to report to the council on the appropriateness of the level of reserves
held by the council and the sustainability of any use of reserves to support the revenue
budget. The detailed advice is contained in Appendix 4.

Details of the Council’s Building Maintenance Programme and associated costs will be
reported to the next meeting of the Executive. No significant changes in the overall cost of
the programme have been assumed in the 2018/19 Budget, at this stage.

CONSULTATION

Executive, at its meeting on 10™ January 2018, requested that the ‘Draft 2018/19 Budget
and Update on Council’'s Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22’ report proposals are
considered by individual PDS Committees. PDS Committees comments relating to the
report in January will be circulated separately. Such consideration will enable the
Executive to take into account those views as part of agreeing its final recommendations
to the Council meeting on 26th February 2018 where the 2018/19 Budget and Council Tax
will be agreed.

Two separate resident association meetings were held on 20th November 2017 and
28" November 2017 and a wider public meeting on 15" December 2017
relating to ‘ Talking About Our Borough’ and ‘Bromley Council 2018-19 and Beyond'. The
outcome was reported to the previous meeting of the Executive.

A meeting has recently taken place with the Schools Forum to consider the Draft DSG
2018/19 Budget. Head Teachers and Governors were consulted on the transfer of funding
from the Schools Block to the High Needs Block. Although the Schools Forum refused the
request, the Council submitted a disapplication request to DfE which was subsequently
approved. There was also consultation with the Schools Forum as to the methodology of
funding Schools (detailed in paragraph 8). Following consultation, spending decisions will
be taken by the Education, Children and Families Portfolio Holder following on from the
recommendation to move towards the NFF at the Sub-Committee meeting on the 17"
January 2018.

Consultation papers have been sent to Bromley Business Focus, Federation of Small
Businesses (Sevenoaks & Bromley Branch) and the 20 largest business ratepayers in the
borough. At the time of writing this report no responses have been received.

POSITION BY DEPARTMENT — KEY ISSUES/RISKS

There remain risks arising from the future scale of budget savings required to address the
budget gap as well as the cost pressures arising from new burdens, inflation and the
impact of Government policy changes including welfare reforms and the new Living
Wage. Action will need to be taken to contain, where possible these cost pressures,
managing the implementation of savings or seeking alternative savings where required.

Details of the potential risks which will be faced in future years, as part of finalising the
2018/19 Budget, were reported to the previous meeting of the Executive. The level of
balances held and provisions set aside in the central contingency provide significant
safeguards against any adverse financial pressures.

Page 41



15.

15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

15.5

15.6

15.7

COUNCIL TAX LEVEL 2018/19

The GLA’s 2018/19 Draft Budget was issued for consultation and includes proposals
for an increase of 5.1% in existing GLA precept levels for 2018/19. The final GLA
P recept for 2018/19 is expected to be announced after the Assembly has considered
the Mayor’s draft consolidated budget on 22nd February 2018.

The current overall Council Tax (Band D equivalent) includes the “Bromley element’
relating to the cost of the council’s services and various levies of £1,114.02 in 2017/18
and a further sum of £280.02 for the GLA precept (providing a total Band D equivalent
Council Tax of £1,394.04).

For 2018/19 every £1m change in income or expenditure causes a 0.7% variation in
the ‘Bromley element’ of the Council Tax. Each 1% council tax increase generates
ongoing annual income of £1.4m.

As part of the Localism Act, any council tax increase of 3% or above in 2018/19 will
trigger an automatic referendum of all registered electors in the borough. If the
registered electors do not, by a majority, support the increase then the Council would
be required to meet the cost of rebilling of approximately £100k. The one off cost of a
referendum is estimated to be £400k.

The Adult Social Care Precept on council tax was originally set at 2% per annum for
2016/17 to 2019/20. The terms of the precept have changed and local authorities had
the option to increase the precept by up to 3% per annum from 2017/18 which must
not exceed a total of 6% over a three year period (2017/18 to 2019/20). The Council had
an increase of 2% in 2017/18. The Council is able to levy a combined adult social care
precept (maximum of 2%) and increase in council tax (maximum of 2.99%) of up to
4.99% without holding a referendum in 2018/19.

If the Council chose to agree a Bromley element 3.99% council tax increase, including
the 2% Adult Social Care Precept, and the GLA Precept was increased by 5.1% there
would be an overall combined council tax increase of around 4.2%.

The table below identifies the changes required to the draft 2018/19 Budget to achieve
different levels of increases in the Bromley element of the council tax. An increase of
3.99%, including 2% for the Adult Social Care Precept, has been assumed in the 2018/19
Draft Budget at this stage.

Increases in Council Tax Levels

Bromley Element % Increase in 2017/18 including Additional Income
Adult Social Care Precept 2018/19

£'m

Freeze NIL

1.0 1.4

2.0 2.8

3.0 4.2

3.99* 5.6

4.99 7.0

6.0" 8.4

*Assumed in draft 2018/19 Budget. Adult social care precept of 2% equates to additional income
of £2.8m per annum. ~Would be subject to a council tax referendum
Page 42



15.8

15.9

15.10

15.11

15.12

16.

16.1

Any decision on council tax levels will need to be based on a medium term view and
therefore not only consider the financial impact on 2018/19 but also the longer term
impact over the four year forecast period.

The Council Tax Referendum Principles are expected to be confirmed, as part of the final
Local Government Finance Settlement 2018/19, in February. Any final recommendations
on council tax levels will need to take into account any changes to statutory requirements.

Bromley has the second lowest settlement funding per head of population in the whole
of London in 2017/18. Despite this Bromley had the third lowest council tax in outer
London (other low grant funded authorities tend to have higher council tax levels).
This has been achieved by having one of the lowest costs per head of population in
outer London. Despite being a low cost authority, Bromley has achieved general
savings of over £90m since 2010/11 but it becomes more challenging to achieve
further savings with a low cost base. Further details were reported to the previous
meeting of the Executive.

As part of the Local Government Finance Settlement 2018/19, the Government provided
indicative two year funding which assumed that the Council would raise funding from
council tax increases and utilise the Adult Social Care Precept.

Members are asked to consider the impact of the latest draft budget on the level of
Council Tax for 2018/19, having regard to all the above factors, including the Director of
Finance comments in Appendix 4.

FUNDING SETTLEMENT

Details of the Council’s representation ahead of the Autumn Budget 2017 was reported to
the last meeting of the Executive — Appendix 9 of that report. Details of the Provisional
Local Government Finance Settlement 2018/19 were also reported to that meeting and
the final settlement is expected by mid- February. The Council previously secured non—
recurring transitional grant funding of £4.2m in 2016/17 and 2017/18 in recognition of the
funding issues faced by the Council (second highest in London).

16.2 The Council continues to seek ‘fairer funding’ from Government. The Leader, Resources

16.3

Portfolio Holder, Chief Executive and Director of Finance met with Sajid Javid, Secretary
of State, DCLG on 20" December 2017 to seek a fairer funding deal for Bromley and its
residents. The Council’'s consultation response to the Provisional Local Government
Finance Settlement 2018/19 and the letter to Sajid Javid are included in Appendix 5.

A significant number of points have been raised including, for example, concerns
relating to the higher than average reduction in funding, ‘lock in’ of previous low
funding levels, no transitional protection, no recognition that lower cost authorities
such as Bromley have less scope to achieve further savings and no account is taken
of London related additional cost pressures (e.g. homelessness and increasing
population). The changes also resulted in a reduction in the future allocation of Better
Care Fund which the Council previously proposed should continue to be distributed using
the national adult social care formula.

Page 43



17.
17.1

17.2

17.3

17.4

17.5

17.6

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

The detailed approach of the Council towards budgeting over the medium to longer term
was reported to Executive on 10™ January 2018 and the draft 2018/19 Budget and future
years' forecasts reflect the impact of this approach.

Although the London Business Rate Pilot provides additional income in 2018/19, there is
uncertainty on the impact of the full devolution of business rates and the outcome of the
Government’s ‘Fairer Funding’ review which may result in new responsibilities for the
Council and associated risks. The changes are not expected to be implemented
until at least 2020/21 whilst austerity for local government is expected to continue
beyond that period and a possible future recession provides significant financial risks.
The continuation of long term financial planning as part of the Medium Term Financial
Strategy remains essential to ensure that any future service changes are managed
effectively.

The Council will continue to seek a fairer financial settlement on behalf of the residents of
the Borough and the report has referred to some of the work undertaken in the current
financial year. The contribution of local MPs has also assisted in this arrangement.

For financial planning purposes, the financial forecast assumes a council tax increase of

3.99% per annum over the next four years to compensate for the higher proportion of
funding reductions, to meet inflationary costs on social care and provide funding to meet
increasing social care costs, demographic cost pressures and to meet the ongoing
“budget gap”. As part of the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 2018/19,
the Government’s funding reductions assume that Councils could raise alternative
funding, to partly offset grant reductions, from council tax increases and utilisation of
the Adult Social Care precept. The financial forecast reflects that approach.

The Budget Strategy has to be set within the context of a reducing resource base, with
Government funding reductions likely to continue beyond 2020 — the on-going need to
reduce the size and shape of the organisation to secure priority outcomes within the
resources available. There is also a need to build in flexibility in identifying options to
bridge the budget gap as the gap could increase further. The overall updated strategy
has to be set in the context of the national state of public finances, with austerity
continuing given the level of public sector debt, and the high expectation from
Government that services should be reformed and redesigned with devolution
contributing to the transformation of local government.

The Council has had to take significant action to reduce the cost base while protecting
priority front line services and providing sustainable longer term solutions. Council T ax
has been kept low compared with other Councils. A combination of front loading of
savings in previous years, pro-actively generating investment income and prudent
financial management have provided an opportunity to provide a balanced budget for
next year with potential opportunity to balance the budget in 2019/20 assuming any
further cost pressures are contained and relentless cost control is undertaken. To
illustrate the benefit of the investment approach the Council has undertaken, budgeted
income totaling £14.2m from a combination of treasury management income and rents
from investment properties is expected to be realised. Without this income, equivalent
service reductions may be required. Investment in economic growth (Growth Fund) will
also be key to generate additional business rate income. The Council will continue to
explore using low cost treasury management monies to support future joint venture
opportunities with the aim to generate investment returns over a 3 to 5 year period.
This could include, for example, funding of joint venture opportunities to support land
disposal/key investments. The Council recently undertook secure lending to a developer

Page 44



17.7

17.8

17.9

18.

18.1

19.

19.1

19.2

20.

20.1

which generates interest income of 6% per annum and also supports a homelessness
initiative.  The Council remains debt free and has resources to encourage and invest in
innovation and new types of investment for the future.

There will be significant challenges as the Council is a low cost authority and the position
will need to be regularly reviewed particularly as there are risks relating to recent
increases in inflation, compared with the previous year’s forecast, and further
cost pressures/new burdens. Apart from early identification of options to address the
future years budget gap (2020/21 and beyond) including any significant transformation
and income generating opportunities, it remains essential that Chief Officers identify
mitigating action to address any in year cost pressures/new burdens to remain within
their ‘cash envelope’.

Stewardship and delivering sustainable finances are increasingly important whilst the
Government’s austerity measures continue. It is important to consider actions now that
address the “budget gap” in the medium term.

The council has previously taken a prudent approach to identify and deliver front loading
efficiency savings. This, together with being debt free and having healthy reserves places
the council in a stronger position to respond to the challenges that will undoubtedly arise.
The strategy needs to remain flexible and the Council’s reserves resilient to respond to
the impact of volatile external events and the structural budget deficit during this austerity
period.

IMPACT ON VULNERABLE ADULTS WITH CHILDREN

The Draft 2018/19 Budget reflects the Council’s key priorities which includes, for
example, supporting vulnerable adults with children and being ambitious for all our
children and young people.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The Council launched the updated “Building a Better Bromley 2016-2018” and the
budget proposals reflect the Council’s priorities. “Building a Better Bromley 2016-2018”
identifies key priorities as follows:

Ensure financial independence and sustainability;
Invest in our business and our people;

Ambitious for all our children and young people;
Enhance our clean and green borough.

Ensure financial independence and sustainability priorities include:

o Strict management of our budgets to ensure we live within our means;
o Working to achieve the benefits of the integration of health and social care;
o Early intervention for our vulnerable residents.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Staff, departmental and trade union representatives will be consulted individually and
collectively on any adverse staffing implications arising from the Draft 2018/19
Budget. Managers have also been asked to encourage and facilitate staff involvement in
budget and service planning.

Page 45



21.

21.1

21.2

21.3

21.4

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The Council is required to fix its Council Tax by the 11th March in any year. The Local
Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 and the Local Authorities
(Functions and Responsibilities) Regulations 2000 (as amended) deal, amongst other
things, with the process of approving the budget. Under these provisions and the
constitution, the adoption of the budget and the setting of the council tax are matters
reserved for the Council upon recommendation from the Executive. Sections 31A and
31B to the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended by sections 73-79 of the
Localism Act 2011) set out the way in which a billing authority calculates its budget
requirement and basic amount of Council Tax. The main change being replacing the need
to calculate a budget requirement for a financial year with the obligation to calculate a
Council tax requirement. These calculations are required to be presented to and be
subject to formal resolution by the Council.

Schedule 5 to the Localism Act 2011 inserted a new section 52ZB in the 1992 Act which
sets out the duty on billing authorities, and precepting authorities to each determine
whether their relevant basic amount of council tax for a financial year is excessive. If an
authority’s relevant basic amount of council tax is excessive, the provisions in relation to
the duty to hold a referendum will apply (see Section 15 of the Report). This replaced the
previous power of the Secretary of State to “cap” local Authority budgets.

The introduction of the Education Act 2005 has changed the procedure for the setting of
schools budgets. The Act has introduced the concept of a funding period, which allows for
the introduction of multiple year budgets rather than the setting of financial year budgets.

The Schools Finance (England) Regulations 2005 introduced under the provisions of the
new Section 45AA of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998, place a
requirement on the LEA to determine schools budgets by the 31% March. Notice of a
schools determination must be given to maintained schools governing bodies. Contained
within the regulations is a designated procedure that allows the LEA to predetermine
schools budget and the individual schools budget. There is also a provision allowing
amendment to the determination, but any reduction in budget can only be proportionate to
any reduction in the dedicated schools grant that has been received.

21.5 The making of these budget decisions is a statutory responsibility for all Members. Section

21.6

21.7

106 of the Finance act 1992 provides that Members who are present and who are 2
months or more in arrears with their Council Tax must declare this to this meeting and the
budget meeting and not vote on budget recommendations.

The Local Government Act 2003 included new requirements to be followed by local
authorities, which includes the CIPFA Prudential Code. This includes obligations, which
includes ensuring the adequacy of future years reserves in making budget decisions.

In setting the proposed budget, due regard has been necessary to relevant considerations
including equality, human rights, proportionality, reasonableness, need to maintain our
statutory obligations, legitimate expectation and the Council's priorities The Public Sector
Equality Duty, at section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, requires public bodies such as the
Local Authority to consider all individuals when carrying out their day to day work — in
shaping policy, in delivering services and in relation to their own employees. It requires
public bodies to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunity, and foster good relations between different people when carrying out their
activities. The Act covers discrimination because of a ‘protected characteristic’ which

Page 46



21.8

21.9

includes age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

In fulfilling our equalities duty, and in particular the specific equalities duty, regard has
been had to the impact of budget proposals and savings options on those with ‘protected
characteristics’ including the potential for cumulative impact on some groups from
separate work streams arising from this budget. As part of the budget setting process
where appropriate impact assessments have been performed at service level where
service managers and frontline staff will be involved in implementing the changes and
fully understand the customer base and likely impact on them. Where any proposals are
found to have a disproportionate impact on a particular group, the Council will consider
what actions can be taken to avoid or mitigate the impact.

In some instances detailed analysis will be undertaken after the budget has been set but
before a policy arising from the budget is implemented. In these instances the council will
comply with its legal obligations including those relating to equalities and consultation and
if a proposal is deemed to be unsustainable after such detailed work or where a
disproportionate impact on a protected group is identified consideration will be given to
any necessary mitigation, rephrasing or substitution of the proposed service changes.

Background Treasury Management — Quarter 3 Performance 2017/18, Resources
documents Portfolio Holder and Council, 1% February 2018 and 26™ February 2018

Treasury Management — Annual Investment Strategy 2018/19, Resources
Portfolio Holder and Council, 1% February 2018 and 26™ February 2018
Capital Programme Monitoring Q3 2017/18 and Capital Strategy 2018
to 2022, Executive and Council, 7" February 2018 and 26" February
2018

Contingency Drawdown Homelessness and Temporary Accommodation
Pressures, Executive, 10™ January 2018

Budget Monitoring 2017/18, Executive, 6™ December 2017

Improved Better Care Fund, Executive, 10" October 2017

London Business Rate Pilot, Executive 13" September 2017

Locally Administered Business Rate Relief Scheme, 19™ July 2017
2016/17 Provisional Final Accounts. Executive, 20" June 2017

Provision of Temporary Accommodation, 14" March 2017

2017/18 Council Tax, Executive 8th February 2017

Highways Investment, Executive, 18™ October 2016

Government’s Four Year Funding Offer, Executive, 14 September 2016

Financial
Considerations Covered within overall report

Page 47




Appendix 1

DRAFT 2018/19 BUDGET AND FINANCIAL FORECAST 2018/19 TO 2021/22

2017/18| 2018/19| 2019/20| 2020/21| 2021/22
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Bromley's Budget Requirement in 2017/18 (before funding from 203,282 203,282| 203,282 203,282| 203,282
Formula Grant) @
Income from investment properties # -12,745( -12,745| -12,745( -12,745| -12,745
Formula Grant and Business Rate Share -47,360( -47,360| -47,360| -47,360| -47,360
[ 143177 143.177] 143177] 143177] 143177
Grant loss
Reduction in Government Funding - core grant 5,400 9,000/ 12,580 16,400
Fall out of 2017/18 Adult Social Care Grant 1,196 1,196 1,196 1,196
Impact of National Formula Funding resulting in funding reductions for SEN placements 1,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
General reductions in government funding 500 1,000 1,500 1,500
Reductions in Government Funding - Public Health 410 820 1,125 1,125
Total Grant Loss 8,506| 14,016 18,401 22,221
Cost Pressures
Increased costs (3.5% 2018/19 and 2019/20 then 2.7% per annum) plus impact of Living Wage 9,099 19,058 27,493 34,426
Welfare reforms and impact on homelessness 1,500 3,500 5,000 7,000
Universal credit roll out - consequential impact on claimant fault overpayment recoveries 500 750 750 750
Homelessness Reduction Act 750 750 750 750
Potential additional costs following retendering of combined Environmental Services contract and other key contra( 0 2,000 4,000 4,000
Adults Social Care
- Full year effect of Adult Social Care spend not funded by IBCF below 394 1,394 1,394 1,394
- Efficiency savings to be identified (retendering savings of £250k already identified) -394 -394 -394 -394
Childrens Social Care
- High inflationary pressures relating to Pan London Agreement and other children services 400 400 400 400
- Full year effect to reflect existing budget monitoring position 718 718 718 718

12,967| 28,176 40,111 49,044
Real Changes and other Variations (reported to Executive on 10th January 2018)

Environment 626 1,100 1,631 2,227
Public Protection and Safety 310 149 60 60
Renewal and Recreation 392 289 117 -1
Other (mainly council wide) 637 55 174 174
Sub total - real changes and variations 1,965 1,593 1,982 2,460
Total Additional Costs 14,932 29,769 42,093 51,504
Income/Savings
Savings from office accommodation review 0 -620 -620 -620
Acquisition of residential properties to accommodate the homeless (Mears) -958| -1,940| -1,940 -1,940
Additional Income Opportunity (Amey) -500 -700 -945 -945
Additional income from business rate share to reflect new developments in borough 0 -600 -900 -900
Impact of London pilot of business rates (as approved by Council 25/9/17) - one year only -2,900 0 0 0
Interest on balances - additional income -600 -200 -100 0
Release general provision in contingency for significant uncertainty/variables -2,000| -2,000{ -2,000 -2,000
Savings from recommissioning/ retendering of various contracts -1,059 -1,127( -1,148 -1,172
Fall out of one off commissioning programme funding -500 -500 -500 -500
- Savings from Children's Social Care linked to invest to save funding 0 -250 -750 -1,000
Total Income/Savings -8,617| -7,937| -8,903 -9,077
Other Changes
New Homelessness Support Grant } -2,360( -2,360( -2,360 -2,360
Reduction in Housing Benefit funding } 2,360 2,360 2,360 2,360
Discretionary rate relief scheme - government funding -682 -281 -40 0
Discretionary rate relief scheme - support to businesses 682 281 40 0
New Homes Bonus (funding towards revenue budget -£3.84m assumed in 2017/18 Budget) -1,916 840 2,840 3,840
Total Other Changes -1,916 840 2,840 3,840
Improved Better Care Fund
Improved Better Care Fund - recurring funding -2,000( -4,600( -4,600 -4,600
Improved Better Care Fund - non recurring funding -3,363| -1,677 0 0
Contribution towards cost of full year effect of Adult Social Care spend in 2017/18 2,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Additional spend previously approved by Executive 10th October 2017 1,490 1,390 1,390 1,390
Contribution to growth/cost pressures on Adult Social Care 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500
Uncommitted monies remaining 873 2,387 210 -290
Total Improved Better Care Fund 0 0 0 0
Council Tax
Assumed increase in council tax base number of properties -1,650( -2,300| -2,950 -3,600
154,532| 177,565| 194,658| 208,065
2017/18 Council Tax Income -143,177| -143,177|-143,177| -143,177| -143,177
Increase in council tax (assume 1.99% per annum) * -2,849| -5,812 -8,893| -12,096
Impact of Adult Social Care Precept (assume 2% per annum) * -2,864( -5,827( -8,908 -12,111
Underlying Budget Gap 5,642| 22,749| 33,680 40,681

Use of Non Recurring Collection Fund Surplus to support revenue budget
Collection Fund surplus 2014/15 set aside as one off support towards meeting the funding

shortfall in 2018/19 -4,912 0 0 0
Collection Fund Surplus 2015/16 (£6,401k carry forward to 2018/19 and 2019/20) -730| -5,671 0 0
Collection Fund Surplus 2016/17 -7,852 0 0 0
Collection Fund Surplus 2016/17 - set aside to support 2019/20 Budget 7,852| -7,852 0 0
Projection of future year collection fund surplus 0| -4,000f -3,000 -2,000

-5,642| -17,523| -3,000 -2,000
Revised Budget Gap 0 5,226] 30,680 38,681

* Included for illustrative purposes. Any decision on council tax and adult social care precept levels will be part of the annual council tax setting meeting.
# Allowing for changes incorporated in the 2018/19 Budget, this sum will increase from £12.7m to £14.2m

Page 48



Appendix 2

SUMMARY OF DRAFT 2018/19 REVENUE BUDGET - PORTFOLIO

2017/18|Portfolio/ltem 2018/19 2018/19

Final Draft Band "D"

Budget Budget| Equivalent

£'000 £'000 £

84,995|Education 82,436 634.11

Cr 80,458|Less costs funded through Dedicated Schools Grant Cr 76,696| Cr 589.95

4,537|Sub total 5,740 44.16

32,822|Childrens Services 34,390 264.53

68,272|Care Services 72,580 558.29

29,179|Environment 30,628 235.59

1,963|Public Protection and Safety 2,290 17.61

7,693|Renewal and Recreation 8,508 65.44

31,579|Resources 32,565 250.49

3,831|Non Distributed Costs & Corporate & Democratic Core 3,907 30.05

179,876| Total Controllable Budgets 190,608 1,466.16

11,244|Total Non Controllable Budgets 12,056 92.74

Cr 729|Total Excluded Recharges Cr 759(Cr 5.84

190,391 |Portfolio Total 201,905 1,553.06

Cr 9,901|Reversal of Net Capital Charges Cr 10,646( Cr 81.89

Cr 2,891]Interest on General Fund Balances Cr 3,491|Cr 26.85

2,256|New Homes Bonus - Support for Revenue Budget Cr 2,222(Cr 17.09

2,552|Contribution to Transition Fund Reserve - -

6,401 |Utilisation of Prior Year Collection Fund Surplus/Set Aside 2,210 17.00

14,957|Central Contingency Sum 14,857 114.28
Levies

461| - Local Pension Partnership* 484 3.72

281| - London Boroughs Grants Committee 248 1.91

241| - Environment Agency * 253 1.95

338| - Lee Valley Regional Park * 355 2.73

205,086|Sub Total 203,953 1,568.82

Cr 47,360|Revenue Support Grant and Business Rate Retention Cr 41,960 Cr 322.76

Cr 2,052 Transition Grant - -

Cr 6,401|Collection Fund Surplus Cr 7,852|Cr 60.40

Cr 6,096|New Homes Bonus Cr 3,534(Cr 27.18

143,177|Bromley's Requirement (excluding GLA) 150,607 1,158.48

* Final allocations awaited
** There may be further amendments to reflect any changes to the Portfolio structure for 2018/19

Page 49



2018/19 CENTRAL CONTINGENCY SUM

Renewal and Recreation
Planning appeals - changes in legislation

Grants included within Central Contingency Sum
Tackling Troubled Families Grant Expenditure
Tackling Troubled Families Grant Income Cr

Improved Better Care Fund - uncommitted monies

Unnaccompanied Asylum Seeker Grant Expenditure
Unnaccompanied Asylum Seeker Grant Income Cr

General

Provision for Unallocated Inflation

Increase in Cost of homelessness/impact of welfare reforms

General provision for risk/uncertainty

Provision for risk/uncertainty relating to volume and cost pressure

Impact of Chancellor's Summer Budget 2015 on future costs

Homelessness Reduction Act - net of government funding

Growth for waste senices

Cost of Local Elections

Universal credit roll out - impact on claimant fault overpayment recoveries

Further reduction to government funding

Retained Welfare Fund

Deprivation of Liberty

Other variations

Additional income opportunity (Amey) Cr
London Pilot Business Rate Pool Cr

£'000

60

845
845

873

231
231

4,888
3,396
2,219
2,182
1,215
750
587
500
500
500
450
118
19
500
2,900
14,857

It is important to note that the 2018/19 Central Contingency sum includes significant costs not allocated
to Portfolio budgets as this stage. Therefore there will be further changes to the Central Contingency to
reflect allocations to individual Portfolio budgets prior to publication of the Financial Control Budget.

Page 50

Appendix 3



2.1.

Appendix 4
LEVEL AND USE OF RESERVES AND ROBUSTNESS OF THE 2018/19 BUDGET
Background

With the introduction of the prudential approach to capital investment, Chief Financial
Officers in local authorities are required to have full regard to affordability when making
recommendations about the local authority’s future capital programme. Such consideration
includes the level of long-term revenue commitments. In considering the affordability of its
capital plans, councils are required to consider all of the resources available to it/estimated
for the future, together with the totality of its capital plans and revenue forecasts for the
forthcoming year and the following two years. This requires clear and objective attention to
the levels and application of the Council’s balances and reserves. The level of balances and
reserves needs to be adequate to ensure that the longer term stewardship of the Council’s
finances remains effective and the Council maintains ‘sustainable’ finances in the medium
term. Medium term planning becomes absolutely key in recognition of the ongoing
“structural” budget deficit facing the Council.

General Reserves

Bromley has estimated general reserves of £19.7 million as at 31%' March 2018 (as reported
to Executive on 6™ December 2017), as well as earmarked reserves (Section 3). Key to any
financial strategy is the retention of sufficient reserves (including earmarked reserves) for
the following reasons:

(@ To provide some contingency reflecting the financial risks facing the Council. The
scale of budget reductions and associated impact, the need to manage effectively
action to reduce the longer term ‘budget gap’ and recent government changes which
include the transfer of risks from central to local government provides significant new
risks for longer term planning purposes;

(b) To provide alternative one off funding to offset the impact of any overall large
overspends facing the Council;

(c) To provide adequate resources for spend to save initiatives which, following
investment, can provide real longer term financial and service benefits;

(d) To provide support in financing the capital programme, particularly to assist in
funding key initiatives;

(e) To provide financial support (income) to the revenue budget through interest
earnings, which will reduce as balances are gradually reduced;

) To utilise short term monies available from any ‘front loading’of savings to assist in
managing the key risks facing the Council and fund key initiatives preventing the
further deterioration in the ‘sustainability’ of the Council’s finances;

() To provide investment to seek a long term alternative to current income streams;

(h) To provide funding (e.g. severance costs) to enable the release of longer term ongoing
savings;

M To set aside income available, that does not provide a permanent income stream,
towards one off investment in the community for schemes that meet the Council’s
priorities;

() To buy time to identify further savings needed whilst avoiding ‘knee jerk’ actions to
deal with future budget deficits;

(k)  To assist the Council to achieve as much stability as possible for both longer term
service delivery and planning the moving of resources to areas of agreed priority.

Page 51



2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

In order to assess the adequacy of unallocated general and earmarked reserves when
setting the budget, account must be taken of the strategic, operational and financial risks
facing the authority. This is an important aspect of Bromley’s approach to risk management.
An ‘Annual Governance Statement’ signed by the Chief Executive and the Leader of the
Council covers, for example, the processes to fully underpin the Council’s system of internal
control.

Setting the level of reserves is just one of several related decisions in the formulation of the
medium term financial strategy and the budget for a particular year. Account needs to be
taken of the key financial assumptions underpinning the budget alongside a consideration of
the authority’s financial management arrangements.

Bromley’s reserves had reduced from £131m to £54m (general reserves) between 1997 and
2011. The Council had previously agreed to set aside part of these reserves towards an
Invest to Save Fund and to fund the Growth Fund and Investment Fund. The latest
projected level of general reserves remaining is £19.7m. It was previously estimated that
reversing the current strategy of eliminating the ongoing dependency on the use of reserves
to support the revenue budget and abandoning the transfer of rolling programmes to
revenue would have eliminated the Council’s overall general reserves by 2016/17 which is
not sustainable. Further details were reported in the Annual Capital Review reports.
However, given the ongoing financial constraints and an opportunity to reduce overall costs
in the medium term, Executive on 18" October 2016 approved capital funding for
investment in planned highways maintenance to be funded from capital receipts.

The most significant gain to balances was following the housing transfer to Broomleigh in
1992 (now part of Clarion). Opportunities to generate additional capital resources and
reserves through disposal of surplus assets should continue to be vigorously pursued,
however, there are unlikely to be opportunities to again generate the very substantial level
of reserves held in the past.

Latest projections in the capital programme indicate that there will be no requirement to
fund capital expenditure from revenue balances over the next year which should enable the
current level of balances to be retained. This position is expected to significantly change
from 2019/20 and will be dependent on the Council’s ability to realise future sales/disposals
to generate capital receipts to avoid seeking funding from the Council’s revenue budget or
reserves.

If the existing general reserves are released now to fund continuing service initiatives and/or
significantly reduce council tax then there would be a resultant ‘opportunity cost’ relating to
the corresponding loss in interest earnings and depletion of reserves which is not
recommended by the Director of Finance, particularly at this time of financial uncertainty.
Funding for any increases in service levels would only be in the short term. If the reserves
were used to just balance the budget they would be fully spent in the next few years
resulting in greater budget cuts in the future. Using this money to fund services is not a
sustainable approach as these reserves are not budgets that are renewed every year.
Similar to a savings account — once it is spent, it is gone. Retaining a significant level of
reserves provides a major opportunity to fund any transformation/spend to save
programmes in future years, as well as provide an ongoing source of significant revenue
income to the Council. It becomes increasingly more critical with the future devolution of
business rates and associated risks (e.g. future recession) and the organisation moving to
become ‘self-sufficient’.

Executive previously agreed that the following principles be applied to determining the use of
reserves:

Page 52



2.9

2.10

3.1

(@) As a prudent working balance, the Director of Finance continues to recommend
subsequently reviewed the minimum level of general reserves and recommended a
minimum sum of £20m to reflect the significant financial uncertainty facing the Council
and the need to address the significant ongoing ‘budget gap’ with higher amounts
being retained for specific purposes;

(b) Any support for the capital programme to be focused on areas that can generate
business efficiencies and maintain and enhance the Council’s core infrastructure. The
programme should be driven by the Council’'s asset management plan, which in turn
should be derived from the key priorities of the Council;

(c) Any support for the revenue budget will need to be modest and sustainable in the
medium term and the impact of any withdrawal built into future financial plans. From
2008/09, Members agreed to eliminate the continuing use of reserves to support the
revenue budget;

(d) The Council has limited scope to utilise general fund reserves for capital spending in
excess of the current capital programme and will need to continue to progress a
programme of asset disposals. Given the substantial pressures on the revenue
position of the council it would be sensible to focus the spending of general reserves in
excess of the basic level on investments to increase the efficiency of the Council,
provide income and reduce the cost base.

Balancing the annual budget by drawing on general reserves is a legitimate short-term
option. However, where reserves are to be deployed to finance recurrent expenditure this
needs to be explicitly considered including the sustainability of this measure over the
lifetime of the medium term financial plan.

In the context of Bromley’s current financial position options need to be explored to ensure
that the recommended minimum sum of general reserves are retained to provide adequate
flexibility during the financial forecast period. However, the important issue to consider is
planning the future use of reserves in the context of the authority’s medium term financial
plan and not to focus exclusively on short-term considerations.

Earmarked Reserves

As part of developing a medium term financial plan and preparing the annual budget
Members need to consider the appropriate use of reserves for specific purposes and the
levels at which these should be set. Further details on the utilisation of earmarked reserves
together with general reserves are provided in section 2.1. The current specific (earmarked)
reserves and their estimated uses are:

Page 53



S - € ] - e - ®

o 2 o ) 2o 2o

o~ @ e o 0 c £ c OO

Description 85 E_2 &85 EQ ESS

8 | 822 | &8 $2 | $88

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
EARMARKED BALANCES
LPSA/LAA Reward Grant Investment Fund 231 -22 209 -45 164
Technology Fund 1,731 -79 1,652 -73 1,579
Town Centre Improvement Fund (LABGI) 55 - 55 -55 -
Transformation Fund 1,163 -400 763 -397 366
Investment to Community (Resources) 530 -53 477 - 477
Works to Property 100 - 100 - 100
Building Control Charging Account 182 -4 178 -4 174
Government Grants (c/fwd from previous years) 1,811 1,816 3,627 -2,481 1,146
Invest to Save Fund 14,777 983 15,760 979 16,739
One off Member Initiatives 1,332 -279 1,053 -100 953
Infrastructure Investment Fund 2,000 -132 1,868 -257 1,611
Commissioning Authority Programme 55 304 359 -255 104
Health & Social Care Initiatives — Promise 3,953 -3,953 - - -
Programme
Housing Strategy Trading Account 25 - 25 - 25
Community Right to Bid & Challenge 46 - 46 - 46
Investment Fund 4,621 -2,757 1,864 -1,864 -
Winter Pressures Reserve 2,010 - 2,010 - 2,010
Refurbishment of War Memorials 13 -3 10 - 10
Key Health & Social Care Initiatives 1,700 -1,047 653 - 653
Integration of Health & Social Care Initiatives 1,614 -800 814 -700 114
Collection Fund Surplus Set Aside 4,912 6,401 11,313 -5,642 5,671
Healthy Bromley Fund 3,815 - 3,815 - 3,815
Glaxo Wellcome Endowment 154 -13 141 -7 134
Cheyne woods & Cyphers Gate 163 -10 153 - 153
Public Halls Fund 7 - 7 - 7
Future Repairs of High Street Properties 31 12 43 12 55
Parallel Fund 2,700 181 2,881 - 2,881
Growth Fund 22,425 -1,089 21,336 -2,900 18,436
Health & Social Care Integrated Commissioning 4,550 - 4,550 - 4,550
Fund
Financial Planning & Risk Reserve 5,000 - 5,000 - 5,000
Bromley Welfare Fund 970 -110 860 -110 750
Payment in Lieu Reserve for Temporary 85 26 111 26 137
Accommaodation
Business Rate Risk Reserve 4,200 - 4,200 - 4,200
One Off Expenditure 2016/17 (inc. TFM contract) 152 -55 97 - 97
Crystal Palace Park Improvements 145 -91 54 -25 29
Various Joint Schemes and Pump Priming 5,006 -1,500 3,506 -1,000 2,506
Investments
Transition Fund 568 2,052 2,620 - 2,620
Children’s Social Care Transition Fund 1,500 -750 750 -750 -
Environmental Initiatives 500 -110 390 -100 290
Planning/Planning Enforcement 250 -75 175 -175 -
Apprenticeship Scheme 200 -32 168 -121 47
Civic Centre Development Strategy 257 - 257 -100 157
CSC Recruitment & Retention 855 -400 455 -455 -
Future Professional Advice for Commissioning 147 - 147 -50 97
New Homes Bonus Support for Revenue Budget - 2,256 2,256 -2,256 -
Sub Total 96,541 -267 96,808 18,905 77,903

Page 54




PROVISIONS

Insurance Fund 3,373 100 3,473 200 3,673

OTHER

School Budget Share Funds 2,621 -699 1,922 -1,922 -

Total Reserves 102,535 -332 102,203 -20,627 81,576

New Reserves Subject to Final Approval

Set Aside of Prior Year Collection Fund Surplus -

- 7,852 7,852

Total Estimated Reserves 102,535 -332 102,203 -12,775 89,428

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

The report highlights the ongoing ‘budget gap’ (see 4.4 of main report) which results in the
Council, on an ongoing basis, having a “structural deficit”. To respond to this, Members
have agreed over the last six years to create new earmarked reserves to support longer
term investment and provide a more sustainable longer term financial position. This
includes setting aside resources to support the Council’s future transformation programmes
(invest to save), support acquisition of investment properties to generate sustainable
income and the growth fund to support economic development and employment within the
borough whilst generating income opportunities. These measures are important to provide
sustainable solutions in the longer term.

A summary of other significant areas are:

e School Balances - these are unspent balances of budgets delegated to individual
schools and these are legally only available to schools.

e Insurance Reserves — self-insurance is a mechanism used by a number of local
authorities including Bromley. In the absence of any other statutory basis, sums held to
meet potential and contingent liabilities are reported as earmarked reserves or
provisions.

e Technology Fund - this represents IT budgets that have been put into a reserve in
previous years to allow projects to be carried out across the boundaries of financial
years and the utilisation of this will become increasingly important over the next few
years.

e Health and Social Care (various) — there are monies set aside as part of a Section 256
agreement with Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group for the funding of future
transformation/integration of health and social care and to contribute towards the
financial sustainability of Bromley CCG.

In addition there is the pensions reserve — this is a specific accounting mechanism used to
reconcile the payments made for the year to various statutory pension schemes in
accordance with those schemes’ requirements and the net change in the authority’s
recognised liability under IAS19 — employee benefits, for the same period. An appropriation
is made to or from the pensions reserve to ensure that the bottom line in the income and
expenditure account reflects the amount required to be raised in taxation. This effectively
prevents any deficit on the pension fund needing to be made good from taxation in one
year.

The outcome of the actuarial valuation as at 31/3/16 was reported to Pensions Investment
Sub Committee on 31°' January 2017 and General Purposes and Licensing Committee on
6" February 2017. The Council’s pension fund was 91% funded with a total deficit of £71m
(including other non-council employees) — this figure reduces to £40m if non-council
employees are excluded. The triennial actuarial valuation impacted on the budget from
2017/18 to 2019/20 and the next valuation will impact on the period 2020/21 to 2022/23.

Page 55



4.1

41.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.2

42.1

4.3

431

4.4

441

Budget Assumptions
Treatment of Inflation and Interest Rates

Despite the recent increase in the Bank of England base rate from 0.25% to 0.50%, there
has been very little impact on interest income from lending to banks. This is partly due to
banks continuing to have access to lending from central government at very low rates as
well as the strengthening of ‘balance sheets’ reducing the need to borrow. In addition, the
utilisation of the investment and growth fund as well as the Highways Investment Fund,
have reduced the resources available for treasury management investment. However, the
treasury management strategy has been revised to enable alternative investments of
£100m which will generate additional income of around £2m compared with lending to
banks. The net impact is additional income of £800k in 2018/19, compared with the 2017/18
Budget. Without the alternative investment strategy, the income would have fallen in the
draft 2018/19 Budget to reflect a reduction in treasury management resources available.
The contribution of higher risk and longer term investments within Treasury Management
have contributed towards the Council being in the top decile performance (top 10%) against
the local authority benchmark group. Further details are included in the ‘Treasury
Management — Quarter 3 Performance 2017/18" and ‘Treasury Management — Annual
Investment Strategy 2018/19’ reports to Executive and Resources PDS Committee on 1%
February 2018.

A general allowance of 3.5% has been built into the forecast for 2018/19 reducing to 2.7%
per annum from 2020/21 for contractual running expenses. This compares with current
general RPIX increase of 4.2% (Dec. '17).

The 2018/19 Budget includes the proposed pay award of 2% for Council staff announced by
the Resources Portfolio Holder at the last meeting of the Executive. Further details are
being reported to General Purposes and Licensing Committee on 6™ February 2018.

Level and Timing of Capital Receipts

Details of the level and timing of capital receipts are included in the ‘Capital Programme
Monitoring Q3 2017/18 and Capital Strategy 2018 to 2022’ report elsewhere on the agenda.

‘Demand Led’ Budgets

The major demand led services that currently affect Bromley's budget are homelessness,
the impact of welfare reforms, adults and children’s social care. The draft 2018/19 Budget
includes reasonable estimates of likely changes in activity in the next financial year.

Financial Standing of the Authority

Long-term Council Tax collection rates have been consistently high at around 98/99%.
Other external debt collection is also high. There are plans to continue to improve the
recovery of income across service areas. Any improvement will serve to improve the
Council's overall financial position. As a debt free authority, Bromley has relatively limited
exposure to interest rate movements and changes in interest earnings on external
investments have been reflected in the budget based upon likely use of reserves and
current interest rates.

Page 56



4.5 Budget and Financial Management

4.5.1 Bromley has for many years operated multiyear budget planning. The need to meet budget
savings has reduced the frequency of budget monitoring. The previous introduction of cash
targets for service departments led to greater realism in the projection and management of
the volume of service activity. Service overspends against the budget had been generally
contained in overall terms in previous years although projected service overspends were
identified in 2016/17 and the future years position needs to be closely monitored and
reviewed, with early corrective action being taken where possible. Balancing the budget will
require very positive action if the council is not to overspend in future years.

4.6  Financial Information and Reporting

4.6.1 The arrangements for finance staff to report to the Director of Finance, in place since April
2002, have produced far greater clarity of roles and responsibilities. The Council will need to
continue with a rolling service review process to be able to generate savings as part of
future years' budgets. The main issue remaining is to ensure that service managers
continue to develop even greater ownership of their budgets and have more sophisticated
activity and performance information on the service which they are providing. Any
overspending should require compensating savings to be identified.

4.6.2 The Council will need to continue to adopt a corporate ‘One Council’ approach in
addressing budget pressures and identifying saving options (details reported to last meeting
of the Executive).

4.7 Virement Procedures

4.7.1 Currently Bromley does not routinely allow the carry forward of under-spending (and
overspending) by service departments as part of its year-end procedures. The Director of
Finance remains satisfied however, that the current virement rules allow sufficient flexibility
within the year for officers/Members to manage the budget to enable them to contain
overspending within overall budgets.

4.8 Risk areas
4.8.1 Details were reported to the previous meeting of the Executive.
4.9 Link with other plans/strategies

4.9.1 A budget is a service plan/strategy expressed in financial terms and there will be linkages
with other strategies and plans across the Council. The proposed budget also takes into
account the outcomes of the Public Sector Equality Duty on the Council’'s proposals (see
legal considerations of main report).

4.10 Insurance Fund

4.10.1 The insurance fund is protected by the existence of external catastrophe insurance, which
meets large claims. There is a stop loss of £2.5 million that prevents the council from having
to meet losses in excess of this amount on liability claims in any one year. The ‘Insurance
Fund — Annual Report 2016/17’, considered by the Resources Portfolio Holder at the
meeting of the Executive and Resources PDS Committee on 11™ October 2017, gives more
background information.

Page 57



4.11 Funds and the adequacy of provisions

4.11.1 As is discussed above, the Council has both general and earmarked reserves and
continues to take a prudent approach to limiting the scope of future year's capital
expenditure and other commitments. It is essential that an adequate level of reserves is
maintained to reflect the impact of the future years budget gap of £5.2m in 2019/20 rising to
£38.7m per annum in 2021/22, ‘balance sheet’ liabilities combined with the significant
funding reductions facing the Council in this austerity period. The “budget gap” may
increase or reduce as a result of a number of variables in future years. Bad debt provisions
are reviewed each year as part of the closure of accounts and are subject to audit by the
council’s external auditors.

4.11.2 The scale of the medium term “budget gap”, coupled with the significant financial
uncertainty in the ongoing austerity period makes it important to maintain an adequate level
of reserves to ensure the Council has sufficient resilience, flexibility and stability for longer
term service delivery. Apart from the need to retain reserves to address risks and
uncertainty there are specific reserves to fund invest to save as well as investment in the
future towards economic development within the borough (Growth Fund) whilst generating
sustainable income and savings to help reduce the future years budget gap. This helps
ensure that key measures of sustainable finances and stewardship in the medium term can
be realised. The funds retained are adequate to meet the needs of the Council in the
medium term. The level of reserves will continue to be kept under review during the Medium
Term Financial Planning period.

4.12 Council’s Investment Income contributing to supporting key services

4.12.1 The Council’s investment income of £14.2m, assumed in the 2018/19 Budget, is shown

below:
£'/m
Investment properties including Glades, Walnuts, shopping parades etc. 4.2
Other rental income 0.8
Investment properties funded from the Council’s growth fund/investment 5.7

fund
Treasury Management Income 3.5
Total investment income 14.2

4.12.2 Historically the Council has acquired investment properties. More recently, since 2011/12
the Council created an investment and growth fund. Background on the use of these funds
were reported to the previous meeting of the Executive. At its meeting on 19" July 2017,
Executive approved a new property investment criteria:

e Provides a net investment return of 5%;

e Provides a suitable mix of portfolio to mitigate against risks of “all eggs in one basket” i.e.
variation in investment portfolio to cover void risk;

e Ability to sell the asset at a future date within a reasonable turnaround period of less than
one year;

e Mitigates against problematic tenancy risks e.g. secured tenancy etc ;

e Mitigates against significant repair liabilities which have a downward impact on the
investment return i.e. seek full repairing leases from tenants;

Page 58



e Mitigate against capital value risk — purchase in places where capital values are unlikely to
fall in the longer term;

e That opportunities should be explored in economic growth areas as well as the South East.
This would be the cities of Manchester and Leeds together with other areas such as Cardiff,
Bristol and the Midlands;

e That the lot size should be in excess of £5m;

e That multi-let investment opportunities which provide suitable income protection and
covenant should be considered taking into account management costs.

4.12.3 The Council has used existing resources in acquiring investment properties and has not
utilised the option of borrowing. A combination of ensuring the criteria above is met,
decisions by Executive taking into account the professional advice Cushman and Wakefield
and not utilising borrowing to fund the acquisitions helps ensure that the primary driver of
sustainable income is met which is critical to support key services. The Council being
prepared to retain the investment assets through any future recession period significantly
reduces the longer term capital risk of the investment.

4.12.4 Details of the approach to treasury management is being reported to Executive and
Resources PDS meeting on 1% February 2018. The treasury management strategy has
been revised to enable alternative investments of £100m which will generate additional
income of around £2m compared with lending to banks. Without the alternative investment
strategy, the income would have fallen in the draft 2018/19 Budget to reflect a reduction in
treasury management resources available. The contribution of higher risk and longer term
investments within Treasury Management have contributed towards the Council being in the
top decile performance (top 10%) against the local authority benchmark group. The
approach to addressing Security, Liquidity and Yield is addressed in that report. The
strategy of continuing to generate additional investment income will provide estimated
income of £14.2m which provides funding for key services thus enabling a corresponding
reduction in the Council’s budget gap.

Page 59



Appendix 5

Councillor Colin Smith

LEADER OF THE COUNCIL
LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY

The Rt Hon Sajid Javid

Secretary of State Communities &
Local Government

Fry Building

2 Marsham Street

London SW1P 4DF

8™ January 2018
LB OF BROMLEY — FAIRER SETTELEMENT FOR OUR RESIDENTS

Thank you for allowing myself, my Resources Portfolio Holder, Chief Executive and the Director of
Finance to meet with you on 20" December 2017. The recent changes you have announced as
part of the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 2018/19 give some positive
recognition of the challenges facing local government which includes, for example, added flexibility
in considering council tax levels and the planned consultation on ‘fair and affordable’ options for
authorities facing negative revenue support grant funding — Bromley is facing a negative revenue
support grant allocation of £2.3m in 2019/20.

Your comments about the Improved Better Care Fund being resources available for local
authorities to support social care is reassuring. You mentioned opportunities around the Housing
Infrastructure Fund and the Council has submitted a bid for a key housing scheme.

| would like to provide some further context and in particular cover some key issues that we would
wish to be addressed.

In 2017/18 Bromley had the 5" lowest level of settlement funding in the whole of London despite
having the 7™ highest population (excluding City of London). We are the largest London Borough
in terms of geographical size, have one of the highest proportions of older people and the largest
road network. The associated cost implications are not reflected in our settlement funding which is
the 2" lowest per head of population in the whole of London.

Bromley has managed its finances extremely efficiently despite having a low level of government
funding and has managed to maintain a low council tax. Bromley has created a low cost base
through many pioneering measures taken including outsourcing on a large scale, transfer of
housing stock, creation of leisure trust and relentless cost control. However this provides a further

Page 60



challenge as our scope to achieve savings through efficiencies is significantly reduced compared
with other high cost authorities.

Bromley has supported Government policy towards meeting austerity, seeking to generate
economic growth through investing (contribution to UK PLC) and keeping public sector costs low
whilst driving out more efficiency. We also have the highest proportion of schools converted to
academies.

Despite being low cost Bromley has experienced one of the highest proportions of funding
reductions since 2011/12. Although in cash terms it may be lower than various other authorities the
Council is immediately disadvantaged by having a low level of funding available in the first place.
There was a formula to allocate monies up to 2013/14 which has effectively been “fixed” to reflect
the current funding regime. Our concern is that the low level of funding was not addressed at the
time of this change. The Council has generated savings of over £90m since 2010/11. However,
given that Bromley has taken the “low and middle hanging fruit”, we have minimal scope to find
further significant efficiencies but are not being incentivized for keeping costs low — in fact starting
from a low cost base has made it more difficult to find savings.

Bromley’s core funding has been cut higher than the London and England average since 2010/11.
It will have reduced by 75% compared with 63% (London and England) in real terms over the
course of the decade. If the Council received the average level of grant funding for London
boroughs, our income would increase by £65m.

We are seeking a fair level of funding for Bromley which provides recognition that we keep our
costs low, reflects fairly the impact of a high proportion of elderly population and recognises the
true financial impact of essential highways maintenance and repair in a borough with a large road
network.

Key asks for a Fair Funding deal are:

« Fair Funding should have a mechanism to reward more efficient authorities e.g. financial
incentive in system;

« Fair Funding needs to recognise higher London costs which impacts on service costs and
the financial impact of need;

« Resource element of any funding baseline should not reflect a notional council tax which
may be higher than current council tax level for Bromley;

« Some form of “damping” protection would be needed to assist in forward planning;

o Authorities with a low cost baseline should not face a higher proportion of cuts to funding as
part of ongoing austerity;

« Need to avoid situation where low council tax authorities do not need to increase council tax
as they have more generous settlement than other comparable authorities;

o Fair Funding should recognise London cost pressures relating to homelessness (for
Bromley a further £7m per annum by 2021/22) — pressures mainly relating to London and a
few other areas;

e Social Care responsibilities (Improved Better Care Fund) should be determined by adult
social care formula e.g. Bromley stands to lose up to £3m of additional funding from
2019/20;

Page 61



« Bromley’s population is expected to increase by more than the national average by 2030 —
funding is currently not reallocated based on population growth and also Bromley has a
higher increase in over 65 years (18.9%) compared with rest of London (12.1%). Using
GLA central estimates, between 2017 and 2037 over 65’s are expected to increase by
44.4% and over 90’s by 123.8% with an overall population increase of 18.8% during that
period;

o Benefits data which is used in determining needs assessment does not reflect low level of
take up (can it be adjusted to reflect lower take up compared with rest of country?) or the
impact of higher housing costs in London. Measuring deprivation levels after housing costs
gives a more realistic assessment of disposable income;

« The relative size of the Needs and Resource amounts are ultimately set by DCLG on the
basis of judgement — can some of the unique factors for Bromley be reflected in this to
ensure low cost efficient authorities are not penalised?

In the meantime the Council is left with inequities of funding and this was partly recognised in the
Transitional Grant payable for 2016/17 and 2017/18 which was welcomed. This funding
recognised some of the issues that Bromley is facing. Whilst recognising that you will review the
funding for authorities that face negative revenue support grant, the delay in the full devolution of
business rates until 2020/21 and subsequent impact on “Fairer Funding” implementation, the
Council is seeking a continuation of this transitional funding for at least 2018/19 and 2019/20,
particularly as the Council moves towards negative Revenue Support Grant.

It is important to ensure that any new burdens are fully assessed and funded on an ongoing basis.
Some examples of new burdens not fully funded include the impact of the national living wage,
increase in national insurance contributions following end of contracted out contributions, no
recourse to public funds, auto enrolment and lifting of the public sector pay cap.

A combination of core grant reductions combined with new burdens not fully funded and increasing
demand for services , immense pressure on adult and children’s social care costs, rising
population levels, the significant impact of homelessness pressures and increasing inflation levels
means it is becoming increasingly difficult to sustain the scale of funding reductions imposed on
us. Apart from the need for a fairer level of funding, the Council requests the removal of the
referendum limit for council tax increases and the continuation of the Adult Social Care precept
beyond 2019/20 to provide greater recognition of local accountability. There should be further
flexibility to extend the precept to fund other key pressure areas such as Children’s Social Care. It
is essential that we are given local flexibility to determine how services are funded particularly as
we need to balance service priorities and council tax levels.

We would request that the ring fencing of grant funding is changed to enable greater flexibility to
ensure resources are allocated to reflect local needs and still meet national requirements. This
includes education funding and various other grant funding. The national formula funding for
education will reduce flexibility of funding for special educational need placements and results in
potential education costs being met by the council taxpayer rather than through schools funding.
The Council stands to lose up to £2m per annum funding within three years. This is coupled with
the anomaly where the council tax payer is required to fund special educational need transport
costs of £4.6m per annum which should logically be funded through education funding as it is part
of the overall SEN package of costs.

The Council welcomes the Government’s commitment to devolution and, as a Community Leader,
is well placed to enable more effective use of public monies. With the right governance framework
enabled by the Government we could contribute towards ensuring that health monies are better
spent at a local level given the close links with social care services which would ultimately
contribute towards an effective national solution for health and social care. We have met with Rt

Page 62



Hon. Steve Brine, Parliamentary Under Secretary (Department of Health) on 6™ December 2017
as a step towards finding a better joint solution which also assists a national issue.

In summary, we are seeking the opportunity to have our funding addressed in the Fair Funding
review, continuation of the Transitional Grant in 2018/19 and beyond, funding for new burdens,
greater flexibility in use of grant funding, greater local flexibility in considering council tax levels
with a continuation of the option of the Adult Social Care Precept and opportunities to be
empowered to manage more effectively health resources.

Both Members and Officers would be keen to work with the Government to help find positive
solutions that work for our residents and taxpayers to meet the necessary austerity measures and
future service priorities.

Yours sincerely

Clir Colin Smith

cc: Bromley MPs

Room P15, Old Palace, Civic Centre, Stockwell Close, Bromley BR1 3UH
Tel: 020 8313 4422 colin.smith@bromley.gov.uk

Page 63



Financial Services
Civic Centre, Stockwell Close, Bromley BRI 3UH

Bromby

Telephone: 020 8464 3333 Fax: 020
THE LONDON BOROUGH Erlr::fIt Line: 020 8313 4338 Internet: www.bromley.gov.uk

peter.turner@bromley.gov.uk

Roger Palmer, 16" January 2018
Department for Communities and Local Government,

2nd floor, Fry Building,

2 Marsham Street,

London, SW1P 4DF.

LGFsettlement@communities.gsi.gov.uk

Dear Mr. Palmer

Provisional 2018/19 Local Government Finance Settlement

This letter sets out the London Borough of Bromley’s formal response to the provisional
settlement consultation.

We would ask that this letter be considered in conjunction with our response to the
2018/19 Local Government Finance Settlement: Technical Consultation Paper which, as
well as responding to the specific consultation questions, provides some context and
detailed background about matters specific to Bromley. Rather than repeat these points, |
have attached a copy of the response for reference.

Local government continues to face a disproportionate level of cuts in direct funding
compared to other parts of the public sector. We are disappointed that the provisional
settlement provides no new funding for local government, particularly in light of the
significant and increasing pressures on our services. The huge funding pressures on adult
social care, children’s services and homelessness cannot be under-estimated and both
immediate and longer term funding solutions are required.

It is also notable that, despite repeated representations on this point, no funding has been
made available to meet the cost of new burdens including the impact of the national living
wage, no recourse to public funds, automatic enrolment, lifting of the public sector pay
cap, the ending of contracting out and the indexation and equalisation of guaranteed
minimum pensions. In addition, the full financial implications of the Homelessness
Reduction Act 2017 have not been addressed and remains only partly funded.

In Bromley, despite having made savings of over £90m per annum since 2010/11, we find
ourselves having to identify further savings estimated to be around £40m per annum over
the next four years. This is due to a combination of severe funding cuts, increasing cost
pressures (including inflation and new burdens) and rising demand for our services. This is
clearly not sustainable in the longer term.

Peter Turner, Director of Finance Page 64



Given the fact that we face further significant cuts in government funding, we are
disappointed that the transition grant payable for 2016/17 and 2017/18 has not been
extended. This funding recognised some of the issues we are facing and we would urge
for it to be re-instated as part of the final settlement.

We welcome the decision that proposed further changes to New Homes Bonus (NHB) did
not go ahead but remain concerned about the continued reduction in this important income
stream. As we have previously stated, we do not support the reforms to NHB which
significantly reduce the incentive for growth and fail to recognise the additional ongoing
costs associated with increased housing development.

Whilst the option to increase council tax levels by a further 1% does provide some
additional flexibility, this is insufficient to meet the ongoing financial pressures we are
facing. Bromley does not support the principle of capping council tax increases and we
maintain the view that referendum principles should be removed completely. The
restriction on utilising the precept for Adult Social Care should also be removed so that we
are given local flexibility to determine how our services are funded.

For 2018/19 we are participating in the London Business Rates pilot. We are, however,
concerned about reference to a 75% Business Rates Retention from 2020-21 as opposed
to the previously committed 100%. Some early clarification is required about how this will
affect those authorities, like Bromley, who are already piloting 100% retention.

We look forward to contributing to the Fair Funding Review: A Review of Relative Needs
and Resources which was published alongside the provisional settlement. It is imperative
that the review is comprehensive, involving full consultation with local government, but
also that there is clarity and transparency in setting out the full impact of any proposals. It
is also critical that the final funding baselines are published early to support financial
planning beyond 2019/20. We appreciated the opportunity for the Leader of the Council,
Resources Portfolio Holder, Chief Executive and myself to meet with the Secretary of
State for Communities and Local Government in December 2017 and have provided
further background information on the issues we are facing and our ‘key asks’ for a Fair
Funding deal.

Bromley’s response to the specific consultation questions is appended.

Yours sincerely

Peter Turner
Director of Finance.

2 Page 65



Consultation Questions

Question 1: Do you agree with the methodology of Revenue Support Grant in 2018-197?

Whilst we agree that this provides consistency with the information provided for the
2016-17 and 2017-18 SFA, we do not agree with the methodology and refer to concerns
about overall funding levels.

Allocating changes to the level of Revenue Support Grant on the basis of Settlement Core
Funding unfairly penalises authorities like Bromley who, whilst having a larger tax base,
have worked tirelessly to keep our council tax low. The ability to raise council tax must not
be a factor in the allocation of funding to individual authorities. We strongly argue that
there needs to be an adjustment to the baseline position of historic underfunding that
Bromley has received.

Question 2: Do you agree with the Government’s proposal to fund the New Homes Bonus
in 2018-19 with £900 million from Revenue Support Grant and any additional funding
being secured from departmental budgets?

We do not agree with the proposed methodology for funding New Homes Bonus in 2018-
19. Additional funding is being top-sliced from RSG to meet the reduction in Government’s
contribution. It is also unclear which departmental budgets are used to fund NHB and how
the savings from reduced contributions are reconciled.

We are also disappointed that previously announced plans to reduce the number of years
for which NHB is awarded have been implemented.

Question 3: Do you agree with the Government’s proposed approach of paying £65 million
in 2018-19 to the upper quartile of local authorities based on the super-sparsity indicator?

We do not agree with additional funding provided through the Rural Services Delivery
Grant which benefits rural areas only.

If the financial pressures faced by rural authorities are recognised, it is not unreasonable to
expect the same considerations for the unique and significant pressures faced by London
authorities. Historic funding levels have failed to reflect the pressures in London (and
Bromley) including its underestimated population and the failure to recognise the impact of
daytime visitors.

Bromley is the largest London Borough in terms of geographical size and this does have a
negative impact on costs, not only relating to the maintenance of our large road network
but also with regard to ‘sparcity’ issues including the higher cost of delivering services than
in smaller, more condensed areas.

3 Page 66



Question 4: Do you agree with the Government’s proposal to hold back £35 million to fund
the business rates safety net in 2018-19, on the basis of the methodology described in
paragraph 2.6.2?

We do not agree that increases in the safety net holdback should be funded from a cut to
Revenue Support Grant. Authorities should not be financially penalised for an increase in
the safety net holdback because of lower than expected business rate growth and the
effect of outstanding and estimated future rating appeals.

Question 5: What are your views on the council tax referendum principles proposed by the
Government for 2018-19?

Bromley does not support the principle of capping council tax increases. Council tax levels
should be determined locally and referendum principles should be removed.

Expenditure priorities, income generation and council tax levels are a matter for local
decision making, not central control. In setting our annual budget, we face increasingly
difficult decisions on service priorities and council tax levels and the balance between the
two is a key consideration every year. It is important that we are given local flexibility to
determine how our services are funded.

This view extends to the ASC Precept which, again, should be determined locally and
should not be ring-fenced to fund adult social care. There are a number of services that
are not sufficiently funded and this flexibility should be extended to fund other key pressure
areas, for example children’s social care and homelessness.

Question 6: Do you agree with the methodology for calculating the revaluation adjustment
to business rates tariff and top-up payments as outlined in paragraphs 3.5.1 to 3.5.6?

We agree that the methodology appears reasonable and agree with the amendment to
remove the one-off impact of changes in appeals provision.

Question 7: Do you have any comments on the impact of the 2018-19 local government
finance settlement on those who share a protected characteristic, and on the draft equality
statement published alongside this consultation document? Please provide supporting
evidence.

Bromley has no comment on question 7.

4 Page 67



Resources Department
W Civic Centre, Stockwell Close, Kent BRI 3UH
Telephone: 020-8464 3333 Fax: 020-

Direct Line; 020 8313 4338 Internet: www.bromley.gov.uk
Ermail: peter.turner@bromley.gov.uk

THE LONDON BOROUGH

Roger Palmer, 25" October 2017
Department for Communities and Local Government,

2nd floor, Fry Building,

2 Marsham Street,

London SW1P 4DF.

LGFConsultation@communities.gsi.gov.uk

Dear Mr. Palmer

2018/19 Local Government Finance Settlement
Technical Consultation Paper

The London Borough of Bromley welcomes the opportunity to comment on the proposed
technical changes to the Local Government Finance Settlement 2018/19.

It is important that the proposed changes are considered in the wider context of local
government funding cuts and increasing demand for our services. We acknowledge that the
reform of business rates and fair funding review will provide opportunities to fundamentally
review how local government is funded in the long term but it is clear that the current system
for funding local government is unsustainable.

We continue to express concern about the complexity and lack of transparency within the
current local government finance system as well as the continued ring-fencing of some
funding streams (including schools) which reduces flexibility to re-divert resources according
to local priorities. We believe it is absolutely critical that these points are addressed as part
of the Fair Funding Review.

Local government has received a disproportionate share of funding reductions. Bromley
accepted the four-year funding offer on the basis that it provides a minimum funding level and
therefore more certainty about future resources. However, this still represents a significant
cut in settlement funding of over 50% in real terms over the four-year funding period. This is
one of the highest reductions in London and significantly above the England average.

Whilst the Council supports the London business rate pilot in principle, it highlights the
inequity that many of the high grant funded authorities will also receive the higher share of
business rate growth income without the funding inequalities being addressed. Bromley’s
continued support for the London business rate pilot is strictly conditional on “Fair Funding”
not being delayed.

In 2017/18 Bromley has the 5th lowest level of settlement funding in the whole of London
despite having the 7™ highest population (excluding City of London). We are the largest
London Borough in terms of geographical size, have the highest proportion of older people
(in both the over 65 and over 85 age groups) and the largest road network. The associated
cost implications are not reflected in our settlement funding which is the 2" Jowest per head
of population in the whole of London.

Page 68



If we received the average level of grant funding, our income would increase by £65.2m in
2017/18. Itis essential that DCLG reflect an adjustment to the Council’s baseline funding
position to address historic low funding levels. The Council appreciated the opportunity to
meet with representatives from the Treasury on 29" July 2016 and provided more
background information on the key issues we are facing as well as our contribution to the
Autumn Statement.

The funding methodology should not include assumptions about the council tax raising ability
of individual authorities. The introduction of this approach created perverse distortions into
the system and resulted in a higher proportion of cuts for Bromley compared to the average.

The settlement funding does not recognise or reward efficient, low cost authorities like
Bromley - something we have repeatedly raised. We have kept council tax low despite
continued low levels of funding. We have done this by keeping our costs low. The funding
mechanism should include a factor that recognises below average cost authorities having a
lesser reduction in SFA or some degree of “protection” to lessen the impact on that basis.

London’s population is growing at twice the rate of the rest of the country. This brings with it
increasing demand for housing as well as other key services including schools, health, social
care and transport. Bromley has one of the highest populations in the whole of London and
the highest proportion of older people (in both the over 65 and over 85 age groups) leading to
increased demand for services at a time of significantly reduced resources.

Inflation is slowly but continuously rising. As an authority that has been proactive in exploring
alternative service delivery models, including outsourcing on a large scale, the impact of
inflationary pressures is significant and, despite negotiation with our providers, largely
outside of our control due to contractual obligations.

There are well publicised and very real pressures in both adult and children social care
services. As these services represent a significant proportion of the Council’s overall budget,
increasing demand in these areas places a huge cost burden that is unable to be met from
within the existing resource base.

Whilst we welcome the introduction of the Adult Social Care Precept and the additional
funding announced as part of the 2017/18 budget, this does not go far enough to meeting the
ongoing and increasing demand for these services. The additional £240m provided from the
reallocation of NHB provides one-off funding in 2017/18 only and the additional £2bn
announced in March 2017 for adult social care provides funding for a period of 3 years. This
funding is substantially less than the amount needed to meet rising demand and cost
pressures and does not address how pressures in adult social care will be funded on a
sustainable and ongoing basis.

We, like many others, are facing increased pressures on our children’s social care budgets
from rising demand and increasing costs. Recruitment and retention has, for some time,
been a challenge resulting in expenditure on high cost agency staff. We have been working
hard to address this and been relatively successful in recruitment drives to appoint
permanent children’s social workers. The high cost of children’s placements (LAC) is also
causing increasing cost pressures.

2 Page 69



We are experiencing increased pressures on our temporary accommodation budgets through
rising demand and higher costs. The impact of the benefit cap and LHA levels being frozen
means that private rented accommodation is unaffordable for low-income households.
Although we have been successful in developing innovative opportunities with external
partners to deliver temporary accommodation to help meet increasing demand, this is still not
enough. Government must consider how this serious and increasing pressure is managed
and funded in the long term.

We are in agreement with the principles of Welfare Reform but do have concerns about the
financial risk that the rollout of Universal Credit will have for both the Council and our
residents which we are raising separately through DWP. It is also critical that the financial
implications of the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 are reviewed to recognise that it is
only partly funded at present.

We welcome the announcement by the Secretary of State for Education that the core schools
budget will increase by £1.3bn in 2018/19 and 2019/20 and the commitment to ensuring that
no school will lose out in cash terms as a result of the introduction of the National Funding
Formula. SEN funding via the high needs block of the DSG is insufficient to meet current
demand as SEN pupil numbers are expected to increase further. This will only add to these
ongoing cost pressures.

It is important to ensure that any new burdens are fully assessed and funded on an ongoing
basis. Some examples include the impact of the national living wage, no recourse to public
funds, automatic enrolment, lifting of the public sector pay cap, the ending of contracting out
and the indexation and equalisation of guaranteed minimum pensions.

Whilst we welcome the transition grant awarded following our response to the 2016/17
provisional settlement, this represents non-recurring income for two years only. This funding
recognised some of the issues that Bromley is facing. Given the fact that we will face further
significant cuts in government funding over the next two years, despite the pressures set out
in this letter, we are seeking a commitment that this grant will be extended in the 2018/19 and
2019/20 settlements. The methodology for applying reductions in SFA is subjective in
reflecting the council tax base within the calculation. Given the higher proportion of cuts
applied to Bromley compared with the average we would wish for some form of ‘damping’
protection to be applied.

Whilst we agree with the proposed methodology to adjust tariffs and top ups for the 2017
revaluation, we remain concerned about the impact of future appeals. The accuracy of the
adjustment at individual local authority level could have a significant impact. Authorities
whose appeals exceed this level over the life of the list will lose out resulting in a lower level
of retained business rates income. There needs to be a mechanism in place to ensure that
this is addressed. It is also critical that authorities continue to be compensated for the cost of
any measures which provide or extend small business rate relief or discounts including any
further cap on the multiplier.

With increasing demand for services, immense pressure on adult and children’s social care
costs, rising population levels, the significant impact of homelessness pressures and
increasing inflation levels it is becoming increasingly difficult to sustain the scale of funding
reductions imposed upon us. We are also facing funding reductions in other funding sources,
such as TfL, which adds yet further pressure to our financial planning. We welcome
Government’'s commitment to devolution but it is unlikely that retained business rate growth
will meet ongoing increases in cost and demand pressures.

3 Page 70



The current council tax system means that there is no flexibility for local authorities to ensure
that the services important to our residents are adequately funded. To move towards
becoming more self-sufficient, which is the right approach, we need to have complete
flexibility in the use of our resources. As well as council tax levels, this also includes the
removal of ring-fencing of government grants as well as freedom to generate income which
can range from greater control of fees and charges to generating investment income to
support key services.

We have previously responded to the Fair Funding Review: Call for evidence on Needs and
Redistribution and look forward to contributing further towards the fair funding review which is
a critical part of ensuring a long term and sustainable solution for local government funding.

It is critical that Government recognise the underfunding of existing services, provide
additional resources and remove restrictions that prevent local authorities from raising or
spending their own resources. Rising demand, increasing costs and reduced funding cannot
be sustained and we would urge government to use the opportunity afforded by the fair
funding review and 100% business rate retention to fundamentally review the long term
funding of local government and ensure we have the flexibility in place to make the best use
of our resources for our residents.

Bromley's response to the specific consultation questions is appended.

-Director of Finance

4 Page 71



Consultation Questions

Question 1: Do you agree that the government should continue to maintain the
certainty provided by the 4-year offer as set out in 2016-17 and accepted by more than
97% of local authorities?

Bromley welcomed the government’'s commitment to a multi-year settlement. The four-year
offer supports the Council's medium term financial strategy and was accepted on the basis
that it provided a minimum funding level and therefore more certainty about future resources.
However, the benefit of the multi-year settlement reduces over time and we need some
degree of certainty to support our financial strategy beyond 2019/20 on the basis of some
form of minimum funding guarantee.

We are also unclear about how the four-year funding offer will be affected by the Fair
Funding Review and the 100% localisation of business rates and await further clarification on
these points.

There is some uncertainty around other grants outside of the system that may still be subject
to further cuts over the funding period. It is crucial that grant allocations for 2018/19 are
published alongside or before publication of the provisional settlement in December. We
would like to see the multi-year settlement expanded to include additional funding streams
and the removal of current ring-fencing which would offer much needed flexibility. However,
the ability to raise council tax must not be a factor in the allocation of these grants to
individual authorities. This approach penalises authorities like Bromley who, whilst having a
large council tax base, have worked tirelessly to keep our council tax low.

There is also an ongoing need to ensure that any new burdens, or new responsibilities that
pass to local authorities to support of the phasing out of some grants, are fully funded on an
ongoing basis.

Question 2: Do you agree with the New Homes Bonus allocation mechanism set out
above?

Bromley does not support the reforms to New Homes Bonus (NHB). The proposals
implemented in 2017/18 and further proposed reforms from 2018/19 will reduce the period of
payment from six years to four and set a threshold to reduce the number of eligible
properties. We are disappointed that NHB funding is being cut a time of significant reductions
in government funding and growing demand for services. Any reduction in this important
funding stream, by whichever method it is achieved, provides lower rewards for housing
development at a time of extreme pressure on housing supply. These reforms significantly
reduce the incentive for growth and fail to recognise the additional ongoing costs associated
with increased housing development. :

We do not support the policy of reducing NHB payments based on successful appeals given
the complexity of planning decisions.

This NHB reforms have the potential to unfairly disadvantage authorities such as Bromley
with over 50% of our area being Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land where development
is inappropriate as set out in the NPPF, London Plan and the Council’s local policies. In
addition part of an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty lies within the area, 44 conservation
areas and Areas of Special Residential Character which constrains the density and scale on
many cases of development.

5 Page 72



Question 3: Do you agree that the approach should be based on data collected by the
Planning Inspectorate? If you disagree, what other data could be used?

The technical consultation document does not provide sufficient information about how this
will work and we would like further detail about the proposed methodology.

Question 4: Do you agree with the proposed appeal/challenge procedure for the
dataset collated by Planning Inspectorate? If you disagree, what alternative procedure
should be put in place?

This would appear to be a reasonable approach.

Question 5: Are there any alternative mechanisms that could be employed to reflect
the quality of decision making on planning applications which should be put in place?

We do not agree with the principle of reducing NHB allocations based on appeals. Planning
permission is not solely in the hands of local authorities and may involve statutory consultees
or national agencies. The proposal, as it stands, would penalise all authorities and fails to
recognise that not all local authorities have the same potential for continued housing growth
(as set out in question 2 above). Although we are not in agreement with any reduction based
on appeals, should this progress, an alternative approach would be to apply a reduction to
those authorities with the highest proportion of aliowed appeals.

Question 6: Which of the two mechanisms referenced above do you think would be
more effective at ensuring the Bonus was focussed on those development that the
local authority has approved?

The consultation document does not provide sufficient information to enable a response.

Question 7: Do you think that the same adjustment as elsewhere should apply in areas
covered by National Park Authorities, the Broads Authority and development
corporations?

Question 8: Do you think that county councils should be included in the calculation of
any adjustments to the New Homes Bonus Calculations?

Bromley has no comment on questions 7 and 8.

Question 9:‘Do you have views on council tax referendum principles for 2018-19 for
principal local authorities?

Bromley does not support the principle of capping council tax increases. Council tax levels
should be determined locally and referendum principles should be removed.

Expenditure priorities, income generation and council tax levels are a matter for local
decision making, not central control. In setting our annual budget, we face increasingly
difficult decisions on service priorities and council tax levels and the balance between the two
is a key consideration every year. It is important that we are given local flexibility to determine
how our services are funded.

6 Page 73



This view extends to the ASC Precept which, again, should be determined locally and should
not be ring-fenced to fund adult social care. There are a number of services that are not
sufficiently funded and this flexibility should be extended to fund other key pressure areas, for
example children’s social care. Whilst we welcome the introduction of the Precept, and the
additional flexibility for a variable increase, the overall increase remains subject to a 6% cap
between 2017/18 and 2019/20 whilst current inflation levels are 3% per annum (CPl).

Paragraph 4.1.1 of the consultation document states that Government aims to balance the
need to keep council tax low with ensuring that councils and others such as fire and rescue
authorities, police and crime commissioners and combined authority mayors can raise
sufficient funds. Bromley has the 3rd lowest council tax in Outer London and we have
achieved this, despite having a low level of government funding, by keeping costs low.
Rather than restricting local decisions on council tax levels, financial incentives should be
built into the system to reward efficient, low cost authorities like Bromley.

Question 10: Do you have views on whether additional flexibilities are required for
particular categories of authority? What evidence is available to support this specific
flexibility?

Question 11: What factors should be taken into account in determining an Alternative
Notional Amount for Combined Authority mayors?

Question 12: Do you agree with the proposed approach to correcting the reduction in
relevant county councils’ income from the Adult Social Care precept?

Question 13: Do you have any comments on the impact of the proposals for the 2018-
19 settlement outlined in this consultation document on persons who share a
protected characteristic? Please provide evidence to support your comments.

Bromley has no comment on questions 10 to 13.

7 Page 74



Report No.
FSD18014

Agenda Item 7

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker:

Date:

Decision Type:

Title:

Contact Officer:

Chief Officer:

Ward:

Executive
Council

Executive 7" February 2018
Council 26" February 2018

Non-Urgent Executive Key

CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING Q3 2017/18 & CAPITAL
STRATEGY 2018 TO 2022

James Mullender, Principal Accountant
Tel: 020 8313 4292 E-mail: James.mullender@bromley.gov.uk

Director of Finance

All

1. Reason for report

This report summarises the current position on capital expenditure and receipts following the
third quarter of 2017/18 and presents for approval the new capital schemes in the annual capital
review process. With regard to the annual bidding process, the main focus has again been on
the continuation of existing essential programmes and on externally funded schemes. The
Executive is asked to approve a revised Capital Programme.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The Executive is requested to:

(a) Note the report, including a total rephasing of £22.8m from 2017/18 into future years,
and agree arevised Capital Programme;

(b) Approve the following amendments to the Capital Programme:

(i) Reduction of £5,424k to Transport for London (TfL) funded Traffic and Highways
schemes as detailed in para 3.3.1;

(i) Deletion of the £45k residual balance on the Depot — standby generators scheme
which has reached completion as detailed in para 3.3.2;

(iii) The increase of £4.1m to the Property Investment Fund scheme to reflect the
funding from a recent disposal of property as detailed in para 3.3.3,;

1 Page 75



(iv) A total reduction of £222k to reflect the revised grant funding for the Formula
Devolved Capital Grant relating to the Council’s remaining maintained schools
as detailed in para 3.3.4;

(v) A total reduction of £87k to reflect the lower associated cost on completed
property purchases as detailed in 3.3.5;

(vi) Section 106 receipts from developers —increase of £15k in 2018/19 to reflect the
funding received as detailed in para 3.3.6;

(vii) Note that the Market Reorganisation report elsewhere on the agenda will result
in a decrease of £116k as detailed in para 3.3.7;

(viii)Note that the Scadbury Park report elsewhere on the agenda requests the
addition of £155k to the Capital Programme as detailed in para 3.3.8; and

(ix) Note that potential capital bids totalling around £9.8m may be separately
submitted during 2018/19 as detailed in para 3.5.8.

(c) Recommend to Council:

(i) The inclusion of the new scheme proposals listed in Appendix C in the Capital
Programme (see section 3.5); and

(i) The increase of £4.1m to the Property Investment Fund scheme to reflect the
funding from a recent disposal of property as detailed in para 3.3.3.

2.2 Council is requested to:

(d) Agree the inclusion of the new scheme proposals listed in Appendix C in the Capital
Programme (see section 3.5); and

(e) Agree the increase of £4.1m on Property Investment Fund scheme to reflect the
funding from arecent disposal of property as detailed in para 3.3.3.

2 Page 76



Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy: Capital Programme monitoring and review is part of the planning
and review process for all services. Capital schemes help to maintain and improve the quality of
life in the borough. Effective asset management planning (AMP) is a crucial corporate activity if
a local authority is to achieve its corporate and service aims and objectives and deliver its
services. For each of our portfolios and service priorities, the Council reviews its main aims and
outcomes through the AMP process and identify those that require the use of capital assets. The
primary concern is to ensure that capital investment provides value for money and matches the
Council’s overall priorities as set out in “Building a Better Bromley”.

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: Estimated Cost: Total net increase of 616k over the 5 years 2017/18 to
2020/21, mainly due to the decrease in TfL funded schemes (Cr £5,424k), increase in the
Property Investment Fund (£4,100k), and the schemes proposed in the 2017 annual review
(E2,240k)

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable

3. Budget head/performance centre: Capital Programme

4.  Total current budget for this head: Total £166.8m over 4 years 2017/18 to 2020/21

5. Source of funding: Capital grants, capital receipts and earmarked revenue contributions

Staff

1. Number of staff (current and additional): 1fte

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: 36 hours per week

Leqgal

1. Legal Requirement: Non-Statutory - Government Guidance

2. Call-in: Not Applicable

Customer Impact

1.

Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): N/A

Ward Councillor Views

1.
2.

Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable

Summary of Ward Councillors comments: N/A

3 Page 77



3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.2

3.21

3.2.2

3.3

3.3.1

COMMENTARY
Capital Expenditure

This report sets out proposed changes to the Capital Programme following a detailed
monitoring exercise carried out after the 3" quarter of 2017/18 and also seeks approval to the
new capital schemes in the 2017 annual capital review process. The report is divided into two
distinct parts; the first (sections 3.3 and 3.4) looks at the Q3 monitoring exercise and the
second (section 3.5) includes details of the proposed new schemes.

Appendix A sets out proposed changes to the Capital Programme. The base position is the
revised programme approved by the Executive on 6" December 2017, as amended by
variations approved at subsequent Executive meetings. If all the changes proposed in this
report are approved, the total Capital Programme 2017/18 to 2021/22 would increase by
£616k, mainly due to new capital bids for 2021/22 offset against reductions in the current
capital programme. Estimated expenditure in 2017/18 will reduce by £23.0m due to the re-
phasing of expenditure from 2017/18 into future years. Details of the monitoring variations are
included in Appendices A and B, and the proposed revised programme, including the
proposed new schemes, is summarised in the table below.

TOTAL

2017/18 to

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2021/22

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Programme approved by Executive 06/12/17 74,666 50,221 20,527 20,819 0 166,233

Variation approved at subsequent Executive meetings (Appendix A) Cr 37 646 0 0 0 609

Approved Programme prior to 3rd Quarter's Monitoring 74,629 50,867 20,527 20,819 0 166,842

Variations requiring the approval of the Executive (Appendix A) Cr223 2,389 Cr 1,990 Cr 1,800 0 Cr1,624
Variations not requiring approval of Executive:

Net rephasing from 2017/18 into future years Cr 22,819 23,347 332 Cr 860 0 0
Total Qtr 3 Monitoring variations Cr 23,042 25,736 Cr 1,658 Cr 2,660 0 Cr 1,624
New schemes (Appendix C) 0 0 0 0 2,240 2,240
Total Revised Capital Programme 51,587 76,603 18,869 18,159 2,240 167,458
Assumed Further Slippage (for financing purposes) Cr3,500 Cr 15,000 10,000 5,000 3,500 0
Assumed New Schemes (to be agreed) 0 0 9,000 3,500 3,500 16,000

Cr 3,500 Cr 15,000 19,000 8,500 7,000 16,000
Total revised expenditure to be financed 48,087 61,603 37,869 26,659 9,240 183,458

Variation approved at subsequent Executive meetings

As detailed in Appendix A, a new scheme totalling £443k has been added to the Capital
Programme for the upgrade of Microsoft Dynamics CRM system, as approved by the
Executive on 10" January 2018.

At the same meeting, the Executive approved the addition of £166k to the Capital Programme
for the addition of a scheme for the demolition of Banbury House and subsequent site
preparation.

Variations requiring the approval of the Executive (£1,624k total net reduction)

Transport for London (TfL) — Revised support for Highways and Traffic Schemes (£5,424k net
reduction)

4 Page 78




3.3.2

3.3.3

3.34

3.3.5

3.3.6

Provision for transport schemes to be 100% funded by TfL was originally included in the
Capital Programme 2017/18 to 2020/21 on the basis of the bid in the Borough Spending Plan
(BSP). Notification of an overall increase of £338k in the 2017/18 grant has been received
from TfL. £362k was added in the second quarter monitoring, so a reduction of £24k in
2017/18 has been included for the third quarter.

In November 2017, TfL published their five-year business plan where TfL stated they are not in
a position to offer as much LIPs corridor funding as was indicated in the 2018/19 Annual
spending Submission Guidance. The reduction in funding has been applied to each borough
based on the current LIP formula. At this current stage, the TfL funding for 2018/19 (excluding
Major schemes) is expected to be approximately £2.2m, a reduction of £1.8m compared to the
£4m budget in capital programme. This reduction will also impact on the TfL capital budget for
2019/20 and 2020/21. Members are requested agree the total reduction of £5,424k to the
capital programme. Grant allocations from TfL change frequently and any further variations will
be reported in subsequent capital monitoring reports.

Deletion of £45k residual balance — Depot Standby generators (£45k reduction in 2017/18)

The Depot Standby generators scheme has now completed. Following the completion of the
two heavy duty mobile generators units which enables prompt reaction to electrical power loss
with ease of connect to suitably modified power infrastructure points at Central Depot, final
accounts have been taken. It is recommended that the residual budget of £45k on the Depot
Standby generators scheme be deleted. A post completion report for this scheme was
submitted to Environment PDS on 5™ October 2017.

Property Investment Fund scheme to reflect the funding from a recent property disposal
(£4,100k increase in 2018/19)

On 7" November 2017, Members agreed a report relating to the disposal of 72-76 High Street
Bromley (Metro Bank), and agreed that the sale proceeds of £4.1m to be added the
Investment Fund. The property disposal has now been completed and Members are asked to
approve the increase of £4.1m to the Property Investment Fund capital scheme.

Formula Devolved Capital (£222k reduction)

The Formula Devolved Capital scheme is funded by a grant from the Department for
Education, which is passed straight on to Council maintained schools. The overall grant has
reduced as schools have converted to academy status, and Members are asked to agree a
total reduction of £222k to reflect the level of revised funding.

Property Investment Fund scheme to reflect lower associated cost with completed acquisitions
(£87k reduction in 2017/18)

Members are asked to approve a reduction of £87k in 2017/18 on the Property Investment
Fund scheme due to lower than expected costs (mainly legal) associated with the completed
acquisitions, of which £30k relates to 63 The Walnuts, and £57k Units C2 and C3, Southwood
Summit, Farnborough.

Section 106 receipts from developers - increase of £15k in 2018/19 to reflect the funding
received

In July 2015, the Executive agreed that the Capital Programme budget should reflect the total
of Section 106 receipts available to fund expenditure. Members are asked to agree an
increase of £15k in the Capital Programme budget for Section 106 in respect of additional
receipts since the last report to match the total funding available.

5 Page 79



3.3.7

3.3.8

3.4

3.4.1

3.4.2

3.4.3

3.4.4

3.5

3.5.1

3.5.2

3.5.3

Bromley High Street Improvements (£116k reduction in 2019/20)

As detailed in the Bromley Market Reorganisation Update report elsewhere on the agenda,
Members are asked to note that there will be a reduction of £116k to the High Street
Improvements scheme as a result of proposed changes to the arrangement of kiosks and pop-
up stalls.

Scadbury Park Moated Manor (£155k addition to the capital programme)

Members are requested to note that the Scadbury Park Moated Manor report elsewhere on
the agenda requests the addition of a £155k scheme to the Capital Programme for urgent
repairs and stabilisation of brickwork at the Medieval Moated Manor within Scadbury Park
Local Nature Reserve.

Scheme Rephasings

As part of the 3" quarter monitoring exercise, a total of £22.8m has been re-phased from
2017/18 into 2018/19 to reflect revised estimates of when expenditure is likely to be incurred.
The largest element of this is £8.9m relating to the Property Investment Fund Scheme. Other
than the £2.5m land transaction element of a recently approved property acquisition (the
remaining balance of which will take place in 2018/19), there are no further purchases
currently expected for 2017/18.

In July 2015, the Executive agreed that the Capital Programme budget should reflect the total
of Section 106 receipts available to fund expenditure Section 106. The unallocated balance
totals £3,664k, of which, £773k relates to Education and £2,891k relates to Housing, and has
been rephased into following financial year

Other schemes rephased into next financial year include Beckenham Town Centre
Improvements (£1,602k), Social Care Grant (£1,450k), Site G (£1,305k), PCT LD Reprovision
programme (£874k) and Early Education for Two Year Olds (E707k). This has no overall
impact on the total approved estimate for the capital programme. Further details and
comments are provided in Appendix B.

In view of the variations that have arisen in recent years, further slippage of £3.5m has been
assumed for the remainder of 2017/18 for financing purposes to cover unforeseen delays to
capital schemes.

Capital Strategy and Annual Capital Review — new scheme proposals

The Council’s Capital Programme is intended to maintain and improve the quality of life in the
borough and help meet its overall priorities as set out in “Building a Better Bromley”, and with
a four year plan, assists the longer-term planning for capital expenditure and the use of
resources to finance it.

In recent years, the Council has steadily scaled down new capital expenditure plans and has
transferred all of the rolling maintenance programmes to the revenue budget. General (un-
earmarked) reserves, established from the disposal of housing stock and the Glades Site,
have been gradually spent and have fallen from £131m in 1997 to £44.1m (including
unapplied capital receipts) as at 31° March 2017. The Council’s asset disposal programme
has diminished, and as set out in section 3.7, it is currently projected that these balances will
reduce to around £21m by 2025.

It is therefore likely that any significant future capital schemes not funded by
grants/contributions, future disposals or from revenue, may have to be funded from external
borrowing. Prior to any consideration of external borrowing, the Council will review its assets

6 Page 80



3.54

3.5.5

3.5.6

3.5.7

3.5.8

3.5.9

3.6

3.6.1

to ensure all opportunities to generate capital receipts as alternative funding has been fully
explored.

The Council’s policy for borrowing and the investment of balances are set out in the Treasury
Management Strategy Statement which will be considered by Executive and Resources PDS
Committee on 1% February 2018, prior to submission for Council approval on 26™ February
2018.

In addition to Treasury Management investments, the Council also has an alternative
investment strategy for the acquisition of investment properties, and a revised set of criteria for
these investments was approved by the Executive on 19" July 2017. To ensure that these
investments are made prudently, and that the income generated remains sustainable, the
Council has to date funded the property from its own resources rather than utilise any external
borrowing.

This combination of lower risk Treasury Management investments and a separate longer-term
investment strategy in the form of property acquisitions (generating higher yields and risks)
provides a balanced investment strategy.

As part of the normal annual review of the Capital Programme, Chief Officers were invited to
present bids for new capital investment. Other than the regular annual capital bids (TfL-funded
Highway and Traffic schemes and Feasibility Studies) summarised in Appendix C, no
additional bids were submitted. Other than the budget for feasibility studies (E40k) the bids in
this report will not require funding from Council resources. Invest to Save bids were
particularly encouraged, but none were received, and it is assumed that any such bids will be
submitted in due course through the earmarked reserve that was created in 2011.

In addition to the bids above, Members are requested to note that there may be bids submitted
during the year for the following potential schemes:

e Replacement IT system for Adult Social Care (circa £2.5m)
e Extension to the Upgrade of Core Network Hardware scheme (circa £0.5m)
e Depot Improvements (circa £5.8m)

The first two schemes listed above will be dependent upon the IT Strategy that is currently in
development, and the depots scheme is linked to the Environmental Services commissioning
programme that was reported to Executive on 6™ December 2017, and could result in
potentially significant capital receipts. All schemes will be subject to separate reports to the
Executive and, where relevant (if over £1m), to full Council. These reports will include detailed
costings, as well as the business case for the proposals.

Capital Receipts

Details of the receipts forecast in the years 2017/18 to 2020/21 are included in Appendix F to
this report to be considered under part 2 proceedings of the meeting. The latest estimate for
2017/18 has increased to £8.6m from £8.0m reported in December (excluding “other” capital
receipts). The estimate for 2018/19 is £16.2m, a £0.3m increase compared to that reported in
December. The estimate for 2019/20 is unchanged at £5.7m, and the estimate for 2020/21 is
£27.1m, compared to the £18.1m from reported in December. A total of £1m per annum is
assumed for receipts yet to be identified in later years, and £10m in 2020/21, linked to the
potential Depot Improvements scheme referred to in para 3.5.8 above. These projections, as
detailed in Appendix F, reflect prudent assumptions for capital receipts, and do not include
estimated disposal receipts from the review being undertaken by Cushman and Wakefield.

7 Page 81



3.7

3.7.1

3.7.2

3.8

3.8.1

Financing of the Capital Programme

A capital financing statement is attached at Appendix D and the following table summarises
the estimated impact on balances of the revised programme and revised capital receipt
projections which, as noted above, reflect prudent assumptions on the level and timing of
disposals. Total balances would reduce from £44.1m (General Fund £20.0m and capital
receipts £24.1m) at the end of 2016/17 to £10.4m by the end of 2019/20 and increase back to
£21.4m by the end of 2024/25.

Estimated Estimated

(?f/lci?/(l:s Balance Balance

31/03/20 31/03/25

£m £m £m

General Fund 20.0 10.4 8.8
Capital Receipts 24.1 0.0 12.6
44.1 10.4 21.4

A summary of how the capital programme will be financed is shown in the table below with
further detail provided in Appendix D.

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Total Capital Expenditure 52,990 48,087 61,603 37,869 26,659 227,208
Financed by:

Usable Receipts 9,880 15,634 18,179 23,463 23,402 90,558

Revenue Contributions 26,598 3,044 4,382 1,432 100 35,556

Government Grants 9,913 18,721 27,009 961 865 57,469

Other Contributions 6,599 10,688 12,033 2,700 2,292 34,312

General Fund 0 0 0 9,313 0 9,313

Total 52,990 48,087 61,603 37,869 26,659 227,208

Section 106 Receipts

In addition to capital receipts from asset disposals, the Council is holding a number of Section
106 contributions received from developers. These are made to the Council as a result of the
granting of planning permission and are restricted to being spent on capital works in
accordance with the terms of agreements reached between the Council and the developers.
These receipts are held as a receipt in advance on the Council’'s Balance Sheet, the balance
of which stands at £5,714k as at 31st December 2017 as shown in the table below, and will be
used to finance capital expenditure from 2017/18 onwards:

e . Balance Receipts Expenditure Balance
Specified capital works

31/03/2017 2017/18 2017/18  31/12/2017

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Housing 4911 40 1,854 3,097

Education 2,890 788 1,143 2,535

Local Economy 97 239 336 0

Community Facilities - 86 86 0

Highways 82 - - 82

Total 7,980 1,153 3,419 5,714

8 Page 82



3.8.2 The Council’s budgets are limited and, where a developer contribution (S106) can be secured,
this will be required as a contribution towards projects, notwithstanding any other allocation of
resources contained in the Council’s spending plans.

3.9 Investment Fund and Growth Fund

3.9.1 To help support the achievement of sustainable savings and income, the Council has set aside
funding in the Investment Fund and Growth Fund earmarked reserves to contribute towards
the Council’s economic development and investment opportunities. To date, total funding of
£139.1m has been placed in the Investment Fund and Growth Fund earmarked reserves to
contribute towards the Council’s economic development and investment opportunities.

3.9.2 Appendix E provides a detailed analysis of the Funds dating back to their inception in
September 2011. To date schemes totalling £122.8m have been approved (£94.1m on the
Investment Fund, and £28.6m on the Growth Fund), and the uncommitted balances as at end
of December 2017 stand at £8.1m for the Investment Fund and £8.3m for the Growth Fund.

3.10 Feasibility Works — Property Disposals

3.10.1 At its meeting on 24" May 2017, Executive agreed to the creation of a new Earmarked
Reserve with an initial allocation of £250k to be funded from the Growth Fund to allow
feasibility works to be commissioned against specific sites so as to inform the Executive of
sites’ viability for disposal or re-development and potential scheme optimisation together with
an appraisal as to worth.

3.10.2 Members requested that an update from Strategic Property be included in quarterly capital
monitoring report, this is provided in Appendix G.

3.11 Post-Completion Reports

3.11.1 Under approved Capital Programme procedures, capital schemes should be subject to a post-
completion review within one year of completion. These reviews should compare actual
expenditure against budget and evaluate the achievement of the scheme’s non-financial
objectives. Post-completion reports on the following schemes are due to be submitted to the
relevant PDS Committees:

e Office Accommodation Strategy (North Block and St Blaise)
e Digital Print Strategy
e SEELS street lighting project

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1  Capital Programme monitoring and review is part of the planning and review process for all
services.

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 These are contained in the main body of the report and in the appendices. Attached as
Appendix D is a capital financing statement, which gives a long-term indication of how the
revised Programme would be financed if all the proposed changes were approved and if all
the planned receipts were achieved. The financing projections assume approval of the revised
capital programme recommended in this report, together with an estimated £3.5m per annum
for new capital schemes and service developments from 2020/21 onwards.

9 Page 83



Non-Applicable

Legal, Personnel & Procurement Implications, Impact on Vulnerable

Sections: Adults and Children

Background Approved Capital Programme (Executive 06/12/17)

Documents: Treasury Management — Annual Investment Strategy 2018/19 (Executive
(Access via and Resources PDS Committee 01/02/18)

Contact Officer) | New Property Investment Criteria (Executive 19/07/17)

Environment Services Commissioning Programme Update (Executive
06/12/17).
List of potential capital receipts from Strategic Property as at 22/01/18.

List of feasibility works for property disposal from Strategic Property as at
24/01/18.

10 Page 84




8SY'€8T  0VZ'6 659'92 698'/€ £09'T9 /80'8Y
000°9T 00G'S 00S°E 0006
0 00G'S 000'S 000'0T 000'ST 1O 00S‘€ 1D
8S¥'/9T  0v2'C 6GT'ST 698'ST £09'9/ /8G'TS
0vZ'2 0ve'z 0 0 0 0
G'€ UONDJ3s 89S OYZ'C ove'e 0 0 0 0
¥29'T 1D 0 0992 1D 899'T 1D 9£/'Ge Zv0'€Z 1D
0 0 098 1D zgee LVE'E 618'22 10
g xipuaddy pue ' uondas 8ss 0 0 098 1D zee LVE'eT 618'22 10
¥29'T 10 0 008'T 1D 066'T 1O 68E'C €zz 10
g'¢’c ydeibesed 8835 GST 0 0 0 8y A
g€ ydeibered8ds 9TT 1D 0 0 9IT 1D 0 0
9'¢’e ydeibered 885 GT 0 0 0 ST 0
g'¢'e ydeibered sas /8 100 0 0 0 /8 1D
v'e'e ydelbered@as zzz 10 0 0 122 10 v 1D v 1D
€'e¢ ydesbered 89S 00Ty 0 0 0 00T't 0
z'e'¢ ydesbered 89S G 1D 0 0 0 0 S 1
T'e¢ ydeibered 88s vzv's 1D 0 008'T 1O 008'T 1D 008'T 10 ¥2 1D
Zr8'99T 0 618'02 /2502 /98'05 629'77.
997 0 0 0 99T 0 8T/T0/0T 29%3
awayads mc:w_xw 0] uondnpal woJj papun} q.€3F Evv 0 0 0 08Y% A 1D ST/TO/0T 99X3
€€2'99T 0 61802 12502 122'05 999'%/ LT/2T/90 99X3
000.3 0007 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.7
uollelleA 10} UOSBB/SIUBWIWOD ZZ/T20Z  22/T20Z  T2/020Z  02/6T0Z  6T/8T0C  8T/LT0Z Bunssw
018T/.102 oljojlod
IVLOL Jo areQ

A3ONVNI4 39 OL TVLOL
SBWAYIS MaU Jaylny 1o} a1ewnsy ppy
uonoaloid abeddis Jayun4 :ssa7

JNNVHO0dd 1VLIdVO d3SIATY TVLIOL

(D xipuaddy 8as) sawayoss mau pasodold :ppv

JNNVEOO0Hd TVLIdVO OL LINJNANINV TVLOL

sieak aininy ojul 8T/, T0Z woiy Buiseydas 1aN
feaosdde Buninbai jou suoireuep (1)

loue pareo red Aingpeas

S1ayde a1 uononpal - sjuswanoidw 19ans ybiH Asjwolg
sladojanap woJ sidiadal 90T uondas

1S02 PaleId0SSE JaMO| 01 8NP pun4 Juswisanu| Auadold ul uononpay
[endeD paAjoAsQ ejnwIoH Ul uononpay

fesodsip Auadoud jusdal e woly pun4 Juawisaau] Aladolid ul asealou|
slorelauab Agpuels 1odag

sawayos el ] » sAemybiH Joy Buipuny 141 Ul 8sealdaq

1I9UN0)/aA1IN%3x3 ay3 jo [eaosdde ayl buliinbal suoneeA (1)
sawayas paroidde Jo 1S0D parewiisa ayl Ul SuUoIeleA

Burioyiuo s,4o1end pig 01 Jolid swwelboid paroiddy
uoneledaid aus/uonijowap asnoH Ainqueg

SWaISAS || 92INIBS Jawoisn) a1el0dio) Jo Malnay
Buuonuow znd ul panoidde swwesboid

awwelboid [ende) panoiddy wuaiin)

SaWaYJS [BNPIAIPUI UO SUOITRLIRA

JNNVHOOHd AINO0HddY WOHd SNOILVIAVA 40 AGVYININNS - 8T0Z 934 - ONIJOLINOIN FNNVYHOO0Hd TVLIdVO

AAVYINNNS NOILVIFAVA - ¥V XIAN3ddV

Page 85

11



"8T0Z 12qWIBAON SI Sluawaoidwi jo swwesboid ays Jo uonajdwiod pardadxa ayy pue (Peoy JoUue pue peoy ajewlaq)y usamiaq
*19911S YBIH 8y} Jo apis uis)se) a19|dwod 1sowle ase syIom jo saseyd omi 1saly ay L 141 Agq papuny sisod uoneluawsadwi pue ubisap feul4

209'T

209'T

10

Sluawanoldwi a1uad UMO | weyuaxdag

'61/8T02
ol paseydal Usaq sey 4GOE'TF Jo ddueleq ay) 0s 8T/.T0z Bulnp ade|d axe) 01 paydadxe are saseydind Jayuny oN "2T0Z Jaquiadaqg
ul paalbe sem aus ay) 1oy ABalesis aseyaind Alosindwo) ay) pue Jauped Juswdoljanap pasayald ayl ynm Juswaalby Juswdojanaq ay L

S0E'T

S0E'T

1

O 3lS

'8T0Z Jaqwiadaq surewal arep uonajdwod pajoadxa 19alold “Jeak

[eloueul 6T/8TOZ U Ul 93e|d axe) 0} pajdadxa si siy) pue ays Jaddn ay} 1o} S}s02 ay} Jo Led Wioj [|Im Hun A1asinu 8yl "8T0Z Yd4elN [hun aq
10U [|IM YdIym ‘parajdwod uaag aney syIom Jamol ay [nun padojanap ag jouued A1asinu ayy Buiurejuod ays Jaddn ay) ‘8IS Uo paduUBWIWOD
sey xlom ybnouyyy "axs |00yas ay} uo jing Butag sxyiom Jabie| yonw jo Led Jaddn sy} Ul pajeso| aq ||Im 1SaIA0d Je Aj1oe) A1asinu mau ay L

10,

L0L

SP|O TeaA om] oy uoneonp3 Aje

syuswanoidwi pauueld pue sanss| sasiwald usasaloyun Aue 10} GT/8TAH OlUI paseydal usaq sey
067 "paroadxa ae 102 UonUSeY U00S PaIa|dwod a [|IM SHIom ay Teyl aredionue siaoi0 ‘Auadold [euonesadQ Aq pabeuew are syIom

0§

sanuag Ajweo pue uaipjiyd

"6T/ST A4 Olul paseydal uaaq sey 40057 ‘BuloBuo |Ins a1e SUOISSNISIP pue 3Jom Yim shejap uaaqg
aney alayl ‘(Aewy) Auadoid feuonelsadQ Aq pabeuew ale S)IOM "9T/S0/8T @AIN2aXT ul Wodas Se Jjg Wolj Uuonedo|e [euonippe %g8sy3F

005

00§

S|00Y2s Ul 8ouRUBIURW [eNdeD

"S3JIom a1niny fenusiod 1o} 6T/8TA- OWI paseydal usaq sey 452173 ‘paje|dwod
ale ||Iypay pue ‘playyaInyD ‘abpug Asjsiom ‘puepeo ‘(oojbei % Buiouad) Awapeoy uodeag Je SHIOA "S|00YdS 10} SxIom AINdas ooy py

Get

Gact

sylop Anoas

“Jeak [eroueuly xau pajeisul ag

01 paredionue S| Yolym swarsAs pjay punos Buipnjoul s1sod 1o} 6T/8TAL Olul paseydal uaag sey 30027 (9T/L0/0Z @AINJAXT) ‘pasesd uaaq
Sey aAIRMU| SSI9Y S|00YS Joy Buioueuld anuansy 10a11d ay) (9Sa) 196png s|0oyds /T/9T aY) ddouefeq o3 palinbas sbuines ays o ued
Sy "82UaWWo9 0} Inoge S| uapuaggn | Je s3I0 ‘8T,6unds Aq palejdwod ag 0} paroadxe ase uoyoid pue ‘uemobjeg Te syJop "pala|dwod
aney s|00yds Aa|leA pue umieq sajieyD 1e SHIOAA 'S|00Yds Ul wool aualbAy jo saoe|d Jo Jaquinu Buipuedxe e Bupjoo| are si1ao10

00¢

00¢

SATeNIU| SS820Y S|00YIS

"6T/8TAd Ol paseydal Usag sey 400%3 "S|00yds Ag palieurew ae SHIOM "9T/S0/8T SAINISXT Ul paliodal Se 3)Q Lo [eUonIPPe 300TF

[0[0)7

oov

pun4 abus|ieyd pass

‘6T/8T

Ad 01 paseydas usaq sey Y0STF “lawwns Aues/Bunds are| Aq paie|dwod ag 01 paredionue pue Buiobuo [is si19aloid ay] "pasjdwod
s1193lo4d 3y [nun aseyaind 0} atemprey Jo swal alow Mmaj e A|gissod si alay] "patelbiw Buiaq jo ssad0id ay) Ul SI YdIYm SWwialsAs
uI0daleys pue NYD uoddns sianlas asay] ‘Bulurewas 0T ueyy ssa| Ajgrewixoldde yum sianias gz punore Buioeidas / Buirepdn jo
ssa204d 8y} ul s1198(oud ay | ‘papesbdn aq 01 swaisAs Jo Aljignedwod 0} anp sAejap aWos aiam aiay | ‘diempleH 3lomaN 8109 jo apesbdn
pue s3IoMBN ealy abelols Jo Juawade|day Buipn|oul SaWaYIS Y10 SNOLBA YIM paxull S| 8Wayds SIUL "GT/Z0/TT @MINdax3 Aq panoiddy

0ST

0ST

1

weibolid wawade|dal €00z J19AIBS SMOPUIAA

‘6T/8T Ad 01 paseydal usaq sey Y0GTF "wnuawouw Buiureb si yaiym 198foid Buiobuo ue si siyl "G9€ 21O Jo wiope|d mau
ay} 0} Buinow Ajfeuly 810jaq ‘UOISIaA 002 WOl 0TOZ UI0dateys 0} anow [jim 193fold syl a1aym uonnjos [eanoe) e Bupiel mou ale s1adiyo

0ST

0ST

Juawaoe|dal/epesddn
wuoyre|d AAIoNpold ulodareys

"6T/8TAd Olul paseydas uaaq sey %ggTF "Bunds aye| pajoadxa S| Ydlym SadloAul [euly JBA0D 0}
paau |Im 8duUeleq [enpisal INg pasijeuly ag 01 SBunsod [eul4 "paso|d g ued pue pajajdwod si 193foid ay) yey) uoewluod [euly Joy Bunemy
‘pa1ajdwod are (uibiip) Japinoid mau ayl 01 snow 3y “palsjdwod ale (Buipiodal |[ed pue ouAT ‘OTTAIN Buipnjoul) syIom ayl Jo Ying ayL

88T

88T

10

yonms auoyda|al OTTAN J0 Juawaoe|doy

"6T/8T Ad 01 paseydas usaq Sey %G/ F 'sanss| Buisuadl| punote BuioBuo [|ns SI IO "8oueldwod 2INSUd 0} UdXeUapuN Ajuadal
Jpne JOSOIDIN "9JeMyos ay} Jo ainreu oyads ay) 03 anp Aued pIg JIBY) YIM SAJ0S3I 01 9IIAIBS U} UM S| SNSS| 8y | "Saulyoew asoy}
Uo pajjelIsul a/emyos ay) 0} anp aoe|dal 0} BullBBNS are s1921O Teyl SaUIydeW dxX ay) Jo dwos wolj Lede a19|dwod 1sowe si 109foid ay |

SL

10

000¢ 2O pue L SMOPUIAA JO InojjI0Y

'6T/8TAd
ol paseydal usag sey }00GF 1eak [eiourul IXau ol (e} 0 Aj9X1| SI 3l JBASMOY ‘BUINURUOD (IS dJe SHIOAN "SBUO Mau 0} palidjsuel) ale
elep pue pakolisap ate sysIp alaym abels Buluoissiwwodap feul 1e si10afoid ay | “819|dwod 1sowle s 108foid Juswade|dal NYS Jofew ay |

005

00§

Iio)

SyI0MIBN ealy abrI0lS Jo Juswaoe|dey

"6T/8TA4 Ol paseydal usaq sey %057 '8T/LTAd Ul pa1oadxa are s1apio Jayuny oN ‘sianas uonedljdde Axold 8sianal pue XD
‘SS90 109110 HOMIBN 3JIAI9S 21|gNd UOPUOT JO SPaau ay} 19aw 0} painbyyuod Buiaqg si pue paseyoind uaag Sey arempirey feuonippe ay |

0§

alrempleH iomaN 3109 Jo apesbdn

"6T/8TAd 0wl paseydal usaq sey 4T68'z3 "BuisnoH Joj Buipun) 90TS paredojfeun elo L

168'C

168'C

(paresojeun) pun4 naiq ui JuswAed

6T/8TA Ol paseydal usaq sey g/ /7 "uoieonpd Joy Buipuny 90TS Paredo|feun eo |

€LL

€LL

(payedojieun) uoneanp3 - 90TS

"gT//LT Ul 20e|d el 01 Aj@x1un sI ainypuadxa Jayuny e Jeak [eloueuly 1xau ojul paseydal usaq

sey %09e7 196pnqg ays Jo Japurewas 8y (3Sy-0yF 1509 01 parewnsa) [esreidde Jayuny a1nbai [im yoiym payinuapl usag Sey 811UaD JIAID
ay1 Jo ABarens uswdo@Aa@ By 10§ SI0M JBULIN} ‘YNSal e Sy 8|qeNnsun ag PiNom a)Is 8y} Jeyl paledipul pue /TOZ Joquiadaq Ul 9AINIaxXg
01 paniodal sem ABarens juswdojaaaq aiuad 2IAID a3 Jo Led Se pasiin aq Pinod [feH UMO L PIO 3Y} JSYIBUM JO MaInal ANjiqises) ay L

09¢

09¢

ABarens uswdojanag anuad 2D

"6T/ST A4 Ol paseydal uaaq sey %z6TF '6T/8T0Z T Jauenb Jo pua e pajedionue si ayep uons|dwod ayl '8T0Z YIIelN 10} Hels a)isuo
paredionue ue yum pasapual Buiag Apuaind si yiomadid feussiu] “Jeak mau ay) ul AJea paia|dwod ag 01 anp SI SIY) pue als uo Buiyosuan
3y} 10} PAOUBWIWIOD MOU Sey }IOM "8T/LTAL Z Jarenb Buunp paje|dwod sem syiom Joj uoiedioads feuy sy “abeuew joafoid pue
awsa|dwi 0} Aewy 01 paubisse sem 193foid 3y ‘sprepuels Aloyeinbas wnwiuiw 193w o} Alddns Jarem ayy Jo yonw ade|dal 01 SI lom ay |

26T

¢61

QS J9||oARl] |ueT Jeis

Sawiayos Jo buiseyday

Page 86

12

000.3
uoljelleA 10 UOSEaJ/SIUBWWOD TV1OL

000.7 000.F 000.7
T12/0¢0¢  0¢/6T0¢  6T/8T0C

000.7
8T/.T0C

S2WaYIS [eNPIAIPUI UO SUOHRLIBA

ONISVHd3Id JNTFHOS - ININVIOOdd AINO0HddY WO SNOILVYIAVA 40 AdVININNS - 8T0¢ 934 - ONIJOLINOW FJNINVEO0Hd TVLIdVO

ONISVHd3Y - d XIAN3ddV



Page 87

13

0 098 1D ¢cE€ L¥E'EC 6182 10 SININLSNCAY ONISVHIIY 1V1O0L
'6T/8T02 Buunp aq ||Im iom ayy jo Aofew ayy Ing ‘8TOZ UdJelN Ag IN0 palied uaag aney 0} pajoadxa S| yiom uawdoaAap [eniul awos| 0 0 0 T T 1D sSuonBN|oS || a1eapjiyd papund sinoy g
"6T/8TOZ Ol paseydal udag Sey We'gF Jo dduefeq dy) 0s ‘8T/LTOZ 104 pajdadxa saseyaind Jayuny ou are a1ay) (6T/8102| 0 0 0 8€6'8 8€6's 10 pun4 juswisaAu| Auadoid
u1 aoe|(d ae} [|IM Yydiym Jo aduefeq Bulurewsal ayy) uonisinboe Auadoid panoidde Ajpuadal e Jo Juswaje uonoesuel) pue| WG zF ayl ueyl Jayio
'6T/8T| O 0 0 92e 9ze 1D el yljeasH [elusiy
0} paseydas usaq sey aduefeq ay} jo Anlofew ayy os ‘gT/.T Buunp 220 [jIm puads Jayuny yonw reys Aj@xijun si 3 ‘sadines Anunyoddo 0 0 0 0St'T 0sv'T 1D el arej [elos
Kep ajdoad Japj|o ul Juswisaaul Joy pue sansadold Aujigesip Bulurea] paumo [19unoD 03 SYI0M Jo} pasn uaaq sey Buipuny ayy Aisnoinaid
a|dwexs 104 ‘paiinbai sebueyd ayr woddns 01 pasn aq |im Buipuny siyl eyl Aj9X1| SI 1l Ja1es|d SaWwoaq a1ed [elo0s Jnpe Joj uone|siba)
MU 8} SY "|1ounoD 8y} Ag papuny uaag aAeY 9say) ‘ayep 01 "SaJIAISS aJed [el0s Jnpe jo wioyal Hoddns o) ajge|rese apew si Buipuny siy L
‘wins eydeo Bujurewsal Aue Jo uinial ay) 1sanbal 0} papiiua ase SHN 8yl 1eyl palou aq pjnoys| 0 0 0 v.8 v.8 1D peoy ajodpep - sawwelboid
1 '6T/8T Ul Lels 0] pajoadxa mou ainypuadxa reudes Bunnsal Aue yum dn umesp Buiag mou ale sjesodold uawisanul [ended Jo Juswald uoisinoldal Ajigesiqg Bulurea 1 0d

ue alinbas Aew yoiym uonesiuIapow ad1AIas BuissalBoid mou S| JapIAcId MaU BY ] "S8DIAISS JO UOReSIUISpOW pue Buiuuni ay) yum paysel
JapInoid [eusd)Xa Ue 0} PaLIdjSURI) USaQ MOU ABY pue Palsa) 1oy el uaag aney saniAnoe Aeq g1 "aaua) Aeq snesseg ayi Jo aInso|d
2y} Buimoy|o} uoisinoid 2211 Aep aAeUIBY e 10} PalUSPI Usaq sey Y0587 AlaTewixoiddy “a)s snasseq ay) Jo 8i1nso|d ay} 0} Bunelal
s109foid pue ‘Anunwiwiod ayy 0} sjualjd sndwed SHN 4O UOISIACIdaI 8Y) YNM paleloosse sasn 1oy si [ended yyeaH Joj Juswyedaq ay L

LTOC J8QWBAON | O 098 J1D| ¢cee 256 ey 10 sjuswanoidwi 18a.1S YbiH Asjwoig
pus Aq T aseyd Jo uonajdwod pardadxa ue yum 2 TOZ ISNBNY Ul paoUSWIWod SHIOAN "211US2 UMO) dY} Ul [[eJi00} 8sealdul 0} sease buiddoys
awud ay) Jo dousadxa uellsapad ay) adUBYUS 0} SWIe YoIym awayds abe|jIA YUoN A3jwoig ay) Jo uoienunuod e S| 19ans YbiH Asjwoig

Jo wreas ognd ayy 03 stuswaroidwi jo swwesboud 8yl */T/S0/22 @MIN23xT3 AQ panoidde sem pund Ymols) Wolj papuny Wy9G'eF Jo [e10l

8T0zZ Aew Ui pajoadxa si yaiym juawdojanap| 0 0 0 80€ 80¢€ 1D aInjonJIseul Jas RN MON

3y} JO uN puzi 3y Jo uoiednddo sy} uo pred aq (M YdIUm ¥T8F Jo aduefeq Buipuelsino [euy e Buines) ‘JuswAed jo sabels Bujurewas aaiyy ® 21U3D INUR M - BNUSD uMo ] uoybuidio
3y} JO oM} SaININSUOI Siy L 193f0id Juswanoidw] weay dljgnd SINUEAA dY) SPJemo} SUoiNGLIUO 90T UONISS JO %E9TF JO JuawAhed Jayuny e
apew aney SaWOH Aajayiag ainjonJiseljul 193w Mau pue ‘ainjuing 19a.11s Mau ‘saal) Joj Juawieal) ‘Bunybil ‘Buined sapnjoul siyL “|lejiooy
asealoul 0] sease Buiddoys awd ay) Jo asuauadxa uelysapad ayy asueyua 0] 193loid papuny snuog SaWoOH MaN pue punH 18a1s ybiH

'8T0Z Jaquiaidas Aq paje|dwod aqg 01 pajoadxa S| pue 2T0g J8qWaNON Ul uonejuawsaidwi| 0 0 0 692 692 1D anuad umo] abuad
pasuswWwWod awayds ay] ‘siuswanoldwi Aemabellred pue anol snq 141 pauueld apisbuore pajuswajdwi aq 01 SI awayds ay] “Buipuyhepn
pue ‘uoddns ssauisng ‘siuswanoidwi uolydoys ‘sjuswanoidwi weas agnd Jo Bunsisuod 19afoid papun) snuog SaWOH MaN ayL

ONISVHd3Y - d XIAN3ddV



o o 0 0 0 $921N0Sal S,[1I9UN0) wWolj buipung
Buipuny 141 %00T 002z 1D 00Z‘C D 0 0 0 (sawayos AemybiH) uopuo 10} Lodsues |
SpIq Mau 10} bulpuny [eulaixg
ove'e ove'e 0 0 0 9A0QE SpIg MaU [e]0) puel)
000.F 000.F 000.F 0007 000.F
aviol 2cite T¢/0¢  0¢/6T 6T/8T (S304N0OS3Y 9497) 1UONNOD IHL OL LSOD
0 0 ove'z 0 0 0 ove'z Sdld 1V1idvO M3N TVLOL dNVY9
"SaWayds mau [enualod Jo 10adsal
ur sytom Ayjigisesy puny 01 swweiboud ended ui Apeaife 1z/02 - 8T/LT 10} UOISIACIG O 0 ov ov HOIH suoisinoud x00|q - saipnis AljigiseaS
‘suoneoo|e/sieaoldde ur sabueyd Juanbasgns
Aue 108|j81 01 palsnipe aq |[e ||m 8s8yl pue TZ/0Z0Z O} 8T/LTOZ 10} Sarewnss
sapnjoul Apuaiind awwelbolid rende)d ayl (dsg) ueld buipuads ybnolog ay ul (sawayos
pig 8y} Jo siseq ayy uo T4 Aq papuny Ajinj &g 0} sawiayas oyjel | pue skemybiH Jayund 0 0 0022 002'z HOIH olel| pue skemybiH) uopuoT Joj Modsuel |
000.F 000.F 000.F 000.F 0007 000.F 000.3
sjuswwo) Buldueud Buluuny  2z/Te T2/0c  0¢/6T  6T/8T 1VLOL  Awoud 109[01d/PWaYdS [eyded

103}J9 anuaAay

SINIHDIS M3AN - O XIAN3IddV

8T/20/L0 ANILNDIXT OL AIANININODFY - LT0Z MIINTH FNNVYHOOHd TVLIdVYO

Page 88

14



8T/20/.0 9AINJ8Xg 01 papuswwodal se - swwelboid panoidde Juain)d
"'6T/8T0Z woll ed wTF pue (JleH umo] 7 peoy Apaam] Buipnjoul) 8T/T0/2Z e se uoisialg Auadolid Ag pauodal sainbiy sepnjoul - sidiedal [eude)d
'SOWIBYIS MaU aIniny 40} TZ/020Z wody e d wg'eF - sawayos [ended maN

09g'TC VGT'LT GOEVT 19/'8 00TVT 9T¥'0T ZT6'vE 9¥8'9¢ 80T 'V 606777
19.'8 198 19/'8 19/'8 9T¥'0T 9T¥'0T 62.'6T 62.'6T 000'02 TE9'VT

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 T.¢ 1D 0 69¢‘'s 1D
0 0 0 6V9'T 10 0 €I€'6 1D 0 0 0 0

19.°8 19/'8 19.°8 9T¥'0T 9TV'0T 62.'6T 62,67 000°02 000‘02 000°0¢
€65CT /8€‘8 86S'S 0 ¥89°¢ 0 €8T'ST LTTLT 80T'V¢ 8/2'0¢€
002G 1D 004G 1D 002'S 1D 1T62'S 1D 2OV'EC 1D €9¥'€Z 1D 6LT'8T 1D ¥E9'ST 1D 0886 1D 20S.L 1D
€62¢'8T 180'1T 862'TT T62'S 980°'/¢2 e9v'ee z29g'ee 1G6.'2¢€ 886'€E 08.',¢€
906'6 6878 862°TT 109°T 980°/¢ 08Z'8 G729t €9'8 90V'y 8618
18€'8 86G'S 0 ¥89°'¢€ 0 €8T'GT LTT'LT 80T'v¢ 285'6¢2 285'6¢2
0008 0008 0008 0ove'6 659'9¢2 698'/¢€ €09'T9 1808 066'2S Y0¥'9g

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 679'T 0 €TE'6 0 0 0 0

00T 00T 00T 00T 00T ZeV'T 28¢e'y ¥0'€e 865'9¢ 2svle
00.'S 00.'S 00.'S T62'S 2ov'ee eov'ee 6.1°8ST 7€9°GT 088‘6 205,
0022 0022 0022 0022 2622 00,2 €€0'CT 889°0T 66S'9 GIS'2T

0 0 0 0 598 196 60022 T2.'8T €166 GE6'8
000.7 000.7 000.7 000.7 000.7 000.7 000.7 000.7 000.7 000.7
alewsy 9lewns3 9lewns3  LjewNns3  9jewllsg  9lewIST  9jewlsy 8rewlsy [enoy alewnsy
G¢Z-v¢0c ¥2-€20¢ €¢-¢¢0¢ ¢¢-1¢0c 12-02¢0¢ 0¢Z-6T0C 6T-8T0C 8T-.10Z /LT-9T0¢2

‘suonduwnssy

SIAYISTIY I1GVIIVAY TVLIOL
premio} paled woc%m

196png anuanay Joj asn S
Buioueulq fende)d ”mw._

pJemio} 1ybnouq ooc%m

pund elausg

pJemio} paliied aouejeg

Buioueuld eude)d

sidiaoal a|gesn maN
premioy 3ybnolq aouejed;

S1dIe09y [ende) a|gesn
aimipuadxa [ejol

Buimouiog

pun4 [eisuas
suonNQgLIUOD anuanay
sidiaoay ende) ajgesn
sSuONNQUIUOI [BUIBIXS JBYIO
sjuelo eude)d

luswalels buldueuld Arewwns

o

ONIONVNIL - d XIAN3IddV

(mojaqg @as - s1diedal [elided |je sawnssy "gN)

S1dI303d 11V - 81/¢0/20 IAILNDIAXT - INFNFLVLS ONIONVNIA TVLIdVO



APPENDIX E - INVESTMENT FUND GROWTH FUND

INVESTMENT FUND & GROWTH FUND - 31st December 2017

Investment Fund £'000

Revenue Funding:

Approved by Executive 7th September 2011 10,000
Approved by Council 27th February 2013 16,320
Approved by Council 1st July 2013 20,978
Approved by Executive 10th June 2014 13,792
Approved by Executive 15th October 2014 90
Approved by Executive 26th November 2014 (Transfer to Growth Fund) Cr 10,000
New Home Bonus (2014/15) 5,040
Approved by Executive 11th February 2015 (New Homes Bonus) 4,400
Approved by Executive 10th June 2015 10,165
Approved by Executive 2nd December 2015 (New Homes Bonus) 141
Approved by Executive 10th Feb 2016 (New Homes Bonus) 7,482
Approved by Executive 6th December 2017 3,500
81,908
Capital Funding*:
Approved by Executive 11th February 2015 (general capital receipts) 15,000
Approved by Executive 10th February 2016 (sale of Egerton Lodge) 1,216
Approved by Executive 7th November 2017 (Disposal of 72-76 High Street) 4,100
20,316
Total Funding Approved: 102,224

Property Purchase

Approved by Executive 7th September 2011 (95 High St) Cr 1,620
Approved by Executive 6th December 2012 (98 High St) Cr 2,167
Approved by Executive 5th June 2013 (72-76 High St) Cr 2,888
Approved by Executive 12th June 2013 (104 - 108 High St) Cr 3,150
Approved by Executive 12th February 2014 (147 - 153 High St) Cr 18,755
Approved by Executive 19th December 2014 (27 Homesdale) Cr 3,938
Approved by Executive 24th March 2015 (Morrisons) Cr 8,672
Approved by Executive 15th July 2015 (Old Christchurch) Cr 5,362
Approved by Executive 15th July 2015 (Tilgate) Cr 6,746
Approved by Executive 15th December 2015 (Newbury House) Cr 3,307
Approved by Executive 15th December 2015 (Unit G - Hubert Road) Cr 6,038
Approved by Executive 23th March 2016 (British Gas Training Centre, Thatcham) Cr 3,666
Approved by Executive 15th June 2016 (C2 and C3) Cr 6,394
Approved by Executive 14th March 2017 (Trinity House) Cr 6,236
Approved by Executive 1st December 2017 (54 Bridge Street, Peterborough) Cr 3,930
Approved by Executive 6th December 2017 (Sicame London Medway) Cr 8,614
Cr 91,483
Other Schemes
Approved by Executive 20th November 2013 (Queens's Garden) Cr 990
Approved by Executive 15th January 2014 (Bromley BID Project) Cr 110
Approved by Executive 26th November 2014 (BCT Development Strategy) Cr 135
Approved by Executive 2nd December 2015 (Bromley Centre Town) Cr 270
Approved by Executive 15th June 2016 (Glades Shopping Centre) Cr 400
Approved by Executive 11th January 2017 (Disposal of Small Halls site, York Rise) Cr 46
Valuation for 1 Westmoreland Rd Cr 5
Valuation for Biggin Hill - West Camp Cr 10
Growth Fund Study Cr 170
Crystal Park Development work Cr 200
Civic Centre for the future Cr 50
Strategic Property cost Cr 258
Total further spending approvals Cr 2,644
Uncommitted Balance on Investment Fund 8,097

*Executive have approved the use of specific and general capital receipts to supplement the Investment Fund

Growth Fund: £000
Funding:

Approved by Executive 26th November 2014 (Transfer from Investment Fund) 10,000
Approved by Executive 2nd December 2015 6,500
Approved by Executive 23rd March 2016 6,000
Approved by Executive 15th June 2016 7,024
Approved by Executive 22nd March 2017 4,000
Approved by Executive 14th June 2017 3,311
Total funding approved 36,835

Schemes Approved and Committed

Approved by Executive 24th March 2015 (Housing Zone Bid (Site G)) Cr 2,700
Approved by Executive 24th March 2015 ((Site G) - Specialist) Cr 200
Approved by Executive 18th May 2016 (Feasibility Studies and Strategic Employment Review) Cr 180
Approved by Executive 18th May 2016 (Broadband Infrastructure Investment) Cr 50
Approved by Executive 20th Jul 2016 (BID - Penge & Beckenham) Cr 110
Approved by Executive 1st Nov 2016 (19-25 Market Square) Cr 10,705
Approved by Executive 1st Nov 2016 (63 Walnuts) Cr 3,804
Approved by Executive 22nd March 2017 (Bromley Town Centre Public Realm Improvement Scheme)  Cr 2,844
Approved by Executive 7th November 2017 (Bromley Town Centre and Public Realm) Cr 580
Approved by Executive 22nd March 2017 (Project Officer cost Bromley Town Centre Public Realm improv Cr 40
Approved by Executive 22nd March 2017 (Community Initiative) Cr 15
Approved by Executive 24th May 2017 (Feasbility Works/Property Disposal) Cr 250
Renewal Team Cost Cr 310
Total further spending approvals Cr 21,788

Schemes Approved, but not committed
Approved by Executive 26th November 2014 (for Biggin Hill and Cray Valley) Cr 6,790

Uncommitted Balance on Growth Fund 8,257 P ag e 90
16



CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING - FEB 2018

APPENDIX G - FEASIBILITY WORKS

Estimated
. Feasibility / .
Location Viability Cost Description January 2018 Status
(£'000)
To fund study to deliver optimal new leisure
facilities based on market evidence as to rents |, .. .
from third party operators' toaether with Initial works commencened. Architects
West Wickham Leisure Centre 35 . d party op 9 . instructed. Report to RR PDS due 27
residential development to generate a capital L :
; - March and Executive in April.
receipt to fund the cost of re-provision of
facilities.
To fund work to progress the business case for
the development of a new Department Store at
the Glades Shopping Centre utilising the C&W undertaking discussions with
The Glades Department Store 49 Council’s interests at Market Square so asto  |Glades Managing Agents - all parties
improve footfall and therefore improve the continuing discussions.
asset value and return on income derived from
the Councils ownership of The Glades.
To fund work to progress the business case for
the development at the Walnuts utilising the
Council’s interests at and around the Walnut's . . .
. . . Works to clarify a clear brief continue.
Centre including the Leisure Centre so as to :
The Walnuts Centre 33 ) . o . Intention to market test for a Property
provide larger retail opportunities and improve ) L ;
: Advisor - anticipated in Autumn 2018.
footfall and therefore improve the asset value
and return on income derived from the Councils
ownership of The Walnuts.
To fund a review of the Council's
accommodation strategy at the Civic Centre
- based on the Qddltlon of the former Towr_1’HaII C&W undertaken review and provided
Old Town Hall/Civic Centre 44 becoming available as part of the Council's . S .
. advice - to be invoiced in January.
property portfolio and how that asset could be
utilised as a Democratic Centre and associated
offices/meeting space.
To fund disposal viability studies as to density
. . ) and permitted development together with initial |C&W undertaken review and provided
Depots Review - Disposal Options 45 . . : " . S .
planning briefs so as to be in a position to take |advice - to be invoiced in January.
to market as an outcome of the Depot review.
To fund potential alternative site viability studies|C&W undertaken valuation advice in
Biggin Hill Aviation College - for Biggin Hill should the Council decide not to |respect of potential land acquistion/
. 20 o . ) A .
Alternative pursue Area 1 purchase for an Aviation provided advice - to be invoiced in
College/Enterprise Zone. January.
To fund the investigation of viability of renewing
Libraries (Chislehurst model roll other Ilprary faC|I|t|_es by rgdeveloplng their sites Not actioned as yet - due to Dev
18 and using the capital receipt proceeds to .
out) o e ) Agreement not yet entered into.
develop replacement facilities within said
schemes.
Lease standardisation 6 To funq legal work to create standard T&C's to Under review.
Portfolio
TOTAL 250

Page 91

17




This page is left intentionally blank



Agenda Iltem 8

Report No. London Borough of Bromley
FSD18015

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: EXECUTIVE

Date: Wednesday 7 February 2018

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Executive Non-Key

Title: LOCALLY ADMINISTERED BUSINESS RATES RELIEF
SCHEME

Contact Officer: John Nightingale, Head of Revenues and Benefits

Tel: 020 8313 4858 E-mail: john.nightingale@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Director of Finance

Ward: (All Wards);

1. Reason for report

1.1 This report advises of the potential government grant not yet utilised and requests an
enhancement be made to the scheme. Following which that the Director of Finance be provided
with delegated authority to authorise further changes to ensure that the government funding is
fully utilised to support local businesses.

2.  RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The previously adopted scheme for 2017/18 be enhanced to provide eligible businesses
with 50% of their net business rates increase.

2.2 The scheme in respect of future years to be enhanced to ensure full utilisation of
Government funding. Decision on the level of support to be made once accurate levels of
projected expenditure can be determined.

2.3 Furtherto 2.1 and 2.2, that the Director of Finance be granted delegated authority in

consultation with the Director of Corporate Services and Resources Portfolio holder, to
vary the scheme further in order to maximise the use of Government funding.

1 Page 93



Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: Not applicable

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: New Policy:
2. BBB Priority: Vibrant, Thriving Town Centres:

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: £52k

2. Ongoing costs: £16.6k in 2017/18 and £11.8k for the three years from 2018/19
3. Budget head/performance centre: Exchequer - Revenues

4.  Total current budget for this head: £3.956m

5.  Source of funding: 2017/18

Personnel

1. Number of staff (current and additional): 2 plus Liberata staff

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: Not applicable

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement:

Local Government Act 1988
Local Government Act 2003

2. Call-in: Applicable:

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications: Not applicable

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): 2,600 businesses

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? No

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments: Not applicable

2 Page 94



3.

COMMENTARY

Background

3.1 Atthe 19 July 2017 meeting of the Executive it was agreed to adopt a scheme designed to

3.2

3.3
3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

mirror the criteria used by the DCLG when allocating the overall budget between Local
Authorities. The main elements of the scheme being:

e Relief limited to properties having a Rateable Value of under £200k

e Business/ Property has suffered a loss (pre Transitional Relief) of more than 12.5%
e There has been an increase in Business Rates liability after all other reliefs applied
e Business was barred from receiving assistance as a result of State Aid regulations

e Assistance would not be given to LBB properties, properties held by the Official Receiver
and properties whilst empty.

For 2017/18 Bromley was allocated funding of £1.4m (amount retained by Bromley is
£422k). Based on the figures it was calculated that relief at 25% of the net increase for 2017/18

could be granted.
It was estimated that 2,600 businesses could receive assistance.

Initial legal advice was that conformation should be obtained from businesses that they qualified
under State Aid rules before any assistance was given.

Current Position

The response to Council letters seeking confirmation as to a business’s State Aid
position was very poor and reminder letters were issued. Whilst this provoked further

replies the response rate remained disappointing.

The DCLG issued a letter on the 17 November 2018 indicating that other LA’s were
experiencing difficulty in allocating funds and suggested that authorities consider auto
awarding where applications/confirmation had previously been sought.

Following further legal advice it was decided to auto award those with a potential
entitlement of less than £2k. This is currently being undertaken, with a letter being sent
to the businesses asking that they contact the Council should they not qualify under
State Aid Rules. For those businesses with a potential entitlement of over £2k attempts

will be made to contact them by phone or email.

After auto awarding entitlement is complete, just over half of the Government
funding will remain unallocated. It has been reported that many authorities are
experiencing significantly lower expenditure from their initial adopted schemes. The
scheme was drafted to ensure expenditure remained within the Government funding
provided in the knowledge that revision might be required later in the year. However,
expenditure has been lower than expected mainly as a result of the following:

3 Page 95



Empty properties, therefore relief not payable
Lack of Applications for the Discretionary fund
Other reliefs being granted

Businesses not qualifying under State Aid rules
e Subsequent RV reduction

The other authorities that have experienced lower than expected expenditure are in the
process of enhancing their schemes.

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The DCLG has been requested to consider carrying forward any unused grant which
would provide a better distribution of support over 2017/18 to 2020/2. To date, the
DCLG has not allowed any carry forward of funding on that basis the unused grant
would need to be returned to the Government.

4.2 As Members have previously endorsed a commitment to fully utilise the grant. The
Executive are requested to approve the enhancement of the scheme by increasing the
level of assistance provided to those eligible under the adopted scheme. For 2017/18 it
is proposed to increase the grant from 25% to 50% of the net increase.

4.3. Inrespect of future years, the Executive also requested to approve the enhancement of
the scheme by increasing the level of assistance available to eligible businesses. The
level of increase to be determined once an accurate estimate can be made of
expenditure.

4.4  Further to paragraphs 4.2 and 4.3, it is requested that the Director of Finance be
granted delegated authority, in consultation with the Director of Corporate Services
and the Resources Portfolio holder, to vary the scheme further to ensure that the
Government funding is fully utilised.

5.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
5.1 Bromley will receive Government funding towards the Locally Administered Business rates relief

scheme. The maximum amount that Bromley will receive in 2017/18 and subsequent years are
tabled below:

Year Grant Funding
£'000
2017/18 422
2018/19 205
2019/20 84
2020/21 12

5.2 The administration cost of running the scheme is estimated to be £52k over 4 years. In 2017/18
these costs are £16.6k as it includes one-off setup costs of £4.8k. For 2018/19 on wards the
annual cost will be £11.8k. These costs will be absorbed with the overall departmental budget.

5.3 Approximately half of the 2017/18 grant of £422k has been spent, following the auto awarding
entitlement exercise.

4 Page 96



5.4

6.

It should be noted that any unspent grant at the end of each financial year will need to be
returned to the Government. It is therefore essential that the scheme is enhanced in order to
maximise the use of the grant funding.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

These have been set out in previous reports. However as is outlined in the body of the report
the scheme is subject to the rules on State Aid. The de minimis threshold is £200,000 Euros
over 3 years. The approach set out in paragraph 3.7 gives flexibility to provide relief to local
business whilst minimising a risk of non-compliance with the State Aid Rules.

Non-Applicable Sections: | Impact on vulnerable adults and children, Personnel and
Procurement

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact
Officer)

5 Page 97



This page is left intentionally blank



Agenda Item 9

Report No. London Borough of Bromley
DRR18/006

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: EXECUTIVE

7 February 2018

Date: For Pre-Decision Scrutiny by the Renewal and Recreation Policy
Development and Scrutiny Committee on 24 January 2018

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Executive Key

Title: Bromley Market Reorganisation Update

Contact Officer: Jonathan Richards, Business Support Team & Markets Manager
Tel: 020 8313 4317 E-mail: jonathan.richards@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Executive Director of Environment & Community Services

Ward: Bromley Town

1. Reason for report

11

1.2

The Executive on 22 March 2017 approved the designs and costings for the next phase of the
Bromley Town Centre improvement and plans to re-organise, rebrand and relocate the existing
market as part of those improvement works. The Executive on 7 November 2017 agreed
funding for capital costs in regard to the original kiosk and pop-up stall design.

The Renewal & Recreation PDS Committee on 1 November 2017 agreed that the Bromley
Market Consultative Panel should be further engaged to feed into the market re-design. This
report provides an update on progress following feedback from the markets traders, considers
alternative costed options and a recommendation on the revised number of stalls and semi
permanent kiosks.

2.

2.1

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members of the PDS Committee note the report and make comments available to the
Executive Committee on 7 February 2018.

That the Executive:-

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Note the consultation input from the Market Traders and Bromley Market Consultative
Panel.

Agree the recommendation for the Option Model C design as outlined in paragraph 3.33.

Agree the £116k reduction in the allocation from the Growth Fund to meet the lower
capital cost for Option C.

Note there will be an overall decrease of £116k for the Bromley High Street Improvement
Scheme within the Capital Programme, resulting in a total scheme cost of £3.46m.

1 Page 99



Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: The scheme design will take into account measures for the mobility and
visually impaired

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy

2. BBB Priority: Quality Environment Vibrant, Thriving Town Centres Regeneration

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: Reduction in capital costs of £116k should Option C be agreed.

2 Ongoing costs: Potential net additional income of Cr £4k, excluding loss of interest

3 Budget head/performance centre: Capital Programme and Bromley Market

4.  Total current budget for this head: £3.576m and Cr £54k

5 Source of funding: Growth Fund, S106 funding and existing 2017/18 revenue budget

Personnel
1. Number of staff (current and additional):

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Non-Statutory - Government Guidance

2. Call-in: Applicable

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications: It is proposed that the all the civil engineering and public
realm improvement works, including all lighting will be completed by FM Conway under the
current Highway Engineering Term Contract. It is proposed that Council’s TFM term contractor
AMEY will deliver the procurement of the Market Kiosks.

There remains the future option remains for the Market to be run by an external third party.

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): Borough-wide

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Yes

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments: Local Ward Councillors have not been consulted in
detail on the scheme redesign.

2 Page 100



3.1

3.2

3.3
3.4

3.5

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

COMMENTARY
Background

The Executive Committee on the 22 March 2017 and Full Council on 10 April 2017 approved
the detailed design, funding and programme for the next phase of the Bromley town centre
improvements.

The Council’'s Highway Engineering term contractor FM Conway are due to recommence Phase
2 improvements works in January 2018.

Planning consent is being sought for both the market relocation and the new market kiosks.

The Executive Committee of the 7 November 2017 agreed the capital costs of £580k for the
proposed design of 8 kiosks and 21 pop-up stalls and officers noted the minuted agreement of
the R&R PDS on the 1November 2017 that through the Bromley Market Consultative Panel the
market trader’s priorities should continue to feed into the detailed market re-design and an
update report received in January 2018.

Following stakeholder engagement it is proposed that the market layout be revised to
accommodate the existing traders. As a result the current programme will require the phased
relocation of the market to commence from 19 March 2018 given the need to install additional
infrastructure to service additional pitches and the space restriction caused by the temporary
scaffolding outside of the Churchill Theatre.

Stakeholder Engagement

During the consultation carried out prior to the PDS meeting on the 1 November 2017, a key
concern from the Market Traders was the reduction in the number of stalls proposed in the re-
design. In response, a review of the design sought to increase the number of stalls to 46,
ensuring the key principles of the design were adhered to; a single line of stalls, breaks in the
line to ensure shop access and line of sight to shop fronts.

A consultation meeting with the Market Traders was held on 21 November 2017 and the newly
configured design was presented to the traders. The response from the traders was largely
positive, particualry that their concerns regarding the number of stall locations had been listened
to and these had increased.

Other comments made included ensuring there is adequate infrastructure for the relocated
market; minimise disruption and potential conflict with existing street traders operating in the
area; maintain the principles of not putting directly competing stalls too near each other. There
was also concern at the lack of sheltered seating around the kiosks for trading in inclement
weather.

Ahead of the submission of the Planning Application a meeting of the Bromley Market
Consultative Panel was held on 11 December 2017 with representatives from the Market
Traders, Street Traders and Bromley BID.

The Panel were shown a proposed layout design with a maximum number of 46 potential
trading locations. The number sought to enable adequate provision to allow both existing
Market and Street Traders to operate in the new area. The Panel responded positively to the
design, the traders to the number of potential trading locations and the BID to the continued
adherence to the underlying design principles to consider the shop units.

3 Page 101



3.10 One concern raised is whether future traffic flow could be considered to allow traffic on the
pedestrian area to exit by Primark and hence reduce congestion at the Elmfield Road entrance
when entering and exiting vehicles meet.

Planning Application

3.11 To secure planning consent in time to allow the phased relocation of the Market to commence
by 19 March 2018, a Planning Application (reference 17/05817/REG3) has been submitted for
the change of use to allow the section of the pedestrianised area, Market Square to Central
Library to host a market.

3.12 This application does not include the proposed permanent kiosks, the detailed design of which
is currently being finalised including foundation design. It is proposed that the detailed design
for the Market kiosks will be submnitted in February 2018. It is anticipated that the market
relocation will now be a phased move given the need to install additional infrastructure and the
ongoing issues with the scaffolding outside of Churchill Theatre.

3.13 Appendix 1 shows the submitted design for the Planning Application. The design identifies a
maximum number of 46 potential trading locations, while continuing to adhere to the core
design principles: single row of stalls, spacing to ensure access to shops and lines of sight to
shop fronts and encourage pedestrian flow around and between the shops and stalls.

3.14 Given the timeframes of the market move to accommodate the Bromley Town Centre
improvement works schedule the application design includes pop-up locations outside Primark,
where the proposed kiosks will be sited, as the area will need to be used to host pop-up stalls in
the first instance.

3.15 The application also includes the option for seven additional markets to be held over the course
of the year during the remaining 4 days of the week.

Kiosk Interest

3.16 As outlined in the update presented to the Executive 7 November 2017 the kiosks would be
fitted out to allow for hot food catering as well as retail. The precise layout of food and non-food
pitches will be subject to negotiation with the market management.

3.17 Whilst expressions of interest in the permanent kiosks have come from a range of traders;
fishmonger, fruit and veg, haberdashery, the interest has predominately been from hot food
traders, which could create a problem due to the smells created outside of shop fronts.

Market Infrastructure

3.18 The identification of further stall locations will require the additional provision of supporting
infrastructure in the form of electrics to ensure the positions are suitable for traders. This will
incur a further cost of £81k to the Improvement Works. In addition the estimated costs of an
individual stall has increased from £1k to £1.45k. These increases in costs for each option are
highlighted in Table 1 below.

3.19 Consideration will also need to be given to pop-up stall storage and associated equipment
(tables and weights). Storage is currently a container unit located off the High Street down
Foxes Passage. The container is already at full capacity with temporary storage utiltised to
house equipmernt. A further container will be needed to be purchased at a one-off cost of £3k to
house the new stalls and equipment.

4 Page 102



Market Layout

3.20 As part of the market re-design, market specialist Quarterbridge is working on an indicative
trader position layout as part of their commissioned workstream. The layout seeks to establish
areas and trader type positions to best encourage pedestrian footfall through and around the
market. A draft of this layout is included as Appendix 2

Market Branding

3.21 As part of the market relocation and redesign it is proposed that it is accompanied by
relaunched branding. The branding would seek to create a Bromley Market website which
would hold information on the market, the traders, and Bromley Town Centre. It would be
supported by social media accounts used by the Market Supervisor to increase awarenessand
promote the market, Traders and Bromley Town Centre and send out key communications
regarding which Traders are attending and whether the market is operating.

3.22 Market specialist Quarterbridge have been commissioned to support this re-branding and an
example of existing market branding they have completed for other clients is included as
Appendix 3.

3.23 A strong brand, promoted on a variety of platforms, from website, to social media to produces
such as bags-for-life would build Bromley identity of the market and town centre itself.

Market Future

3.24 In addition to the branding, the market could further be improved through an assessment to
identify trades/products not currently represented on the Market and seek to encourage them in.
This would further improve the mix of traders and products available and improve Bromley as a
destination for the public.

3.25 The hosting of additional markets and market events in the periods between the Bromley
Market (i.e. Sunday to Wednesday) would be an opportunity to both boost income and footfall.
Specialist markets such as:

Farmers Markets; Antiqgues and Colletables Markets , Continental Markets, Food and Drinks
Festivals, Christmas Markets and other themed markets.

3.26 Such markets and events would complement the work of the Bromley BID and could be held in
conjunction and support of their promotional activities. Given that the Town Centre
Improvements and market relocation remove and occupy the principle locations where the
Bromley BID have undertaken their promotional activities for Wimbledon, Halloween and
Christmas this would allow these events to continue and further promote Bromley Town Centre.

3.27 Furthermore, as outlined in the reports to Executive on 22 March 2017 and 7 November 2017 it
is proposed that the relocated market be licenced under the Food Act 1984, as opposed to the
London Local Authorities Act 1990 (LLAA).

3.28 Once the market relocation has been completed and the market operation settled, the option of
commissioning the market management to a third party will need to be examined in detail with a
report on the options being presenting back to this committee.

Options Modelling

3.29 Given the changes following the feedback from the consultation with the Traders the original
proposal for 8 kiosks and 21 pop-ups needs to be reconsidered.

5 Page 103



3.30 The initial relocation of the market will utilise only pop-up stalls (46) in the first instance to
accommodate the traders, whilst the phased relocation takes place. However, following the
consultation with the market and street traders and the desire to accommodate the existing
number of traders in the reconfigured layout, some further modelling has been undertaken to
compare the financial projections of operating with different combinations of pop-ups and kiosks
following the completion of the high street improvements as well as the capital costs:

Option A - 46 pop-up stalls:

3.31 This option was considered as it retained the temporary layout on a permanent basis to provide
an adequate number of stalls for the existing traders and negates the need for capital
investment in the building of the kiosks. However, whilst there is a significant capital saving of
£429k, the income received from pop-ups only does not generate enough income to meet costs.

Option B - 8 kiosks with 36 pop-up stalls:

3.32 Retaining the orginal 8 kiosks and increasing the number of pop up stalls was modelled and the
net financial effect is positive with an additional £20k revenue per annum surplus generated, but
at an additional capital cost of £116k. There is some concern that with interest predominately
from hot food outlets and the concern about smells generated by hot food directly outside the
entrance to retail outlets then there may be a high percentage of voids in the kiosks, given that
interest has only been received for some of the kiosks. The financial modelling has allowed for
this.

Option C - 4 kiosks with 41 pop-ups:

3.33 The option of installing 4 kiosks and increasing the number of pop-up stalls was modelled. This
option enables the existing traders to be accommodating and for half of the original kiosks to be
installed. The demand for the kiosks can therefore be tested in the market and allows for
additional kiosks to be installed at a later date if successful. This model generated a slightly
higher net surplus (£4k) than the currently agreed model but reduces the capital outlay by
£116k.

6 Page 104



Table 1: Capital cost implications compared to existing budget

Option B - 8
Option A-46 Kiosks & 36 OptionC-4
Budget as at Pop-Up Stalls Pop-Up  Kiosks & 41
Capital Nov 17 only Stalls Pop-Up Stalls
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Kiosks
Delivery & installation of kiosks 296 0 296 148
Utility services & kiosk infrastructure 64 0 64 32
Main contractor costs incl contingency 135 0 135 108
Fit-out costs 64 0 64 32
Total Kiosk costs 559 0 559 320
Pop-Up Stalls
Purchase of pop-up stalls 21 67 53 60
Infrgstructure costs - extra pop-up stalls incl 0 81 81 81
contingency
Storage container 0 3 3 3
Total Pop-Up Stalls 21 151 137 144
Total Capital Costs 580 151 696 464
Varitation in Capital Costs -429 116 -116

3.34 The table below shows the projected net surplus/cost compared to budget for the different
options:

Table 2: Net surplus/costs compared to budget

Overview of Option Modeling

Model Description Net surplus/cost
compared to
budget

Original 8 Kiosks and 21 Pop Up Stalls Nil
Option A |46 Pop Up Stalls with Additional Markets £10k
Option B |8 Kiosks and 36 Pop Up Stalls with Additional Markets £-3k
Option C |4 Kiosks and 41 Pop Up Stalls with Additional Markets £-4k

For each option an estimated occupancy void % has been assumed. Option A = 15%; Option B = Kiosks
50% & Pop Ups 15%; Option C = Pop Ups 18%

3.35 As presented in previous reports to this committee the inclusion of Kiosks in the High Street will
enhance the asthetics of the Town Centre and help to attract retail and food outlets, creating an
enhanced physical environment and complementing the vision for the High Street to become a
place of choice for shopping and retail.

3.36 The revised modelling shows that including additional pop-up kiosks does generate an
additional net surplus if combined with a number of kiosks. Whilst Option B could generate the
highest net surplus per annum if a higher occupation rate was achieved this is not guaranteed
and there are additional £116k in capital costs. Option C generates a potential surplus of £4k
per annum and reduces captital costs by £116k.

3.36 It is therefore recommended that the agreed layout is revised to Option C; with 4 semi-
permanent kisosks and 41 stalls and holds additional markets. This option does not preclude
the introduction of further kiosks at a later date should there be demand and supporting

7 Page 105



4.1

5.2

5.3

business case, but would minimise the investment risk while allowing Bromley to test the
underlying business case of 7-day trading at that location; seeing how seasonal variations
factor into the model and interested traders are able to scale up to the operation.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

Proposals are in support of developing and maintaining the vibrancy of Bromley Town Centre,
and as such contributes to the Building a Better Bromley key priority of Vibrant, Thriving Town
Centres.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Executive on 7 November 2017 allocated £580k from the growth fund to meet the cost of
installing 8 semi-permanent kiosks and 21 pop-up stalls. This sum forms part of the overall
capital scheme of £3.576m for the Bromley Town Centre Public Realm project.

Following further consultation, officers have outlined three new options for the market. All three
options increase the number of stalls required which has a significant impact on the capital cost
of the scheme, both in the cost of stall procurement and in the provision of electrical
infrastructure to facilitate the additional trading locations. The detailed capital costs for each
option are shown in Table 1 above and summarised below: -

Table 3: Summary of Capital Costs for the Three Options

Option A Option B Option C

£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost of purchase, installation and fit-out costs of the kiosks 0 559 320
Cost of purchase and installation of the pop-up stalls 151 137 144
Total capital costs 151 696 464
Existing scheme estimate within Capital Programme 580 580 580
Net additional/reduction in capital costs -429 116 -116

For 2017/18, the Bromley market has a net controllable budget of Cr £54k. The following table
provides the potential financial implications of the three options for the market as outlined in
3.31 to 3.33, although Option C is being recommended: -

Table 4: Revenue Costs

Option A Option B Option C
8 kiosks & 36 Pop- 4 kiosks & 41

46 Pop-Ups P
ups Pop-ups
£'000 £'000 £'000
Current 2017/18 controllable budget for market -54 -54 -54
Current street trading & Promotion income budget (Bromley High St) -32 -32 -32
Total 2017/18 budget -86 -86 -86
Net controllable cost/surplus for options -56 -69 -70
Street trading & Promotion income -20 -20 -20
Total Net controllable cost/surplus for options -76 -89 -90
Net additional /Loss of income 10 -3 -4
Potential loss of income from interest earned on capital (1.5%) 2 10 7
Revenue impact of each option 12 7 3

8 Page 106



5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Business rates of the kiosks should be recovered from the kiosk occupants or paid directly by
the occupiers. Tenants would also be responsible for meeting any utility costs. The Council
would only become liable for these costs when the stalls/kiosks were not occupied.

Should Option C be agreed as recommended, only £464k is required from the growth fund
rather than the previously agreed sum of £580k. The overall capital scheme will reduce by
£116k and therefore the revised total cost of the High Street improvement scheme will be
£3.46m.

As shown in the table 4 above, Option C may produce additional net income of £4k, excluding
the potential loss of interest earned on capital. However, this is dependent on the level of
occupancy of both the kiosks and pop-up stalls.

It should be noted that income from street trading and promotions on the high street will reduce
and be replaced by net additional income from the extra markets.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The Council implemented the London Local Authorities Act 1990 (LLAA) in 1991 to regulate
street trading in the Borough. This legislation also covers the Friday and Saturday market and
the individual street traders. The Thursday Charter Market is exempt from street trading
legislation.

The Council is not permitted to make a profit from a market registered under this legislation; it
can only recover its costs. There is however no such statutory limitation on the costs chargeable
for the Charter Market. Consequently as explained in paragraph 3.28 above, it is proposed that
the market (other than the Charter Market) should in future be licensed under the Food Act
1984 to enable the Council to maximise income.

Market Trader licences are created on a six-monthly basis and will next expire on 31 March
2018, however some of the permanent Street Traders are licenced under longer terms and it
could take up to 18 months to re-license, however traders can remain under the LLAA
legislation in the meantime.

Counsel’s advice was sought on the complexities surrounding the five existing permanent street
traders and the process of relocating and terminating their current licences before issuing new
ones as there is a right of appeal to the Magistrates Court. It is Counsel’s opinion that the
process could be very fraught for Bromley requiring a significant burden of evidence that there
was no alternative for the Council and demonstration the trading constitutes a significant
disruption. Further, that to avoid the risk of challenge and to minimise disruption to trader’s
business, Counsel suggested the Council could consider temporarily varying the street trading
licence and designate a different licenced street while in the meantime taking steps to establish
a new market under the Food Act 1984. It is also advised that any such re-location is kept as
near as possible to the current location and with similar benefits as the current High Street.

The proposals within this report are consistent with Counsel’s advice and a phased relocation is
likely to achieve the Council’s aims with the least likelihood of challenge

Members should also note that if the Council stops holding the charter market then the charter
right to hold the market will lapse. However, there would be nothing to prevent the Council from
using its powers under either the LLAA or the FA to restart a market at some point in the future.

9 Page 107



PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS

With regard to the kiosks the procurement process would be managed by the Total Facilities
Management Term Contractor, AMEY. It is proposed that the kiosks will be installed only when
there is a pre-contractual agreement with tenants.

Non-Applicable Sections: | Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children; Personnel
Implications

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact
Officer)

10 Page 108



General Notes

No implied licence exists. This drawing should not be
used to calculate areas for the purposes of valuation.

A

N\

\

MCDONALD'S

BARCLAYS

\ A\
\
\
\
\
PRIMARK
PRIMARK

ENTRANCE

\

PRIMARK

| — L_1

]
 EEEENEEEEERN

1 1]
J ]

ENEE
prirT TRl

——
/AN

—_——

]

T A

EmCEEEERE
S

1
1

71

NeaamaamsZis

—
TN
T 1T

_/—',‘

T T -
EEmEEREE
S~

A\
S

|i JD SPORTS
-

I
1 DAVINA
I

|
\1 WARREN JAMES
-

H
i
|
i
i

L
\
| ToP SHOP
\

!

A

r
|
|
i
|

SANTANDER

STARBUCKS

| THOMAS COOK

. | || ;
SPEC SAVERS | l ]
._I —L//; __!
L || | NATWEST
L P
SHAPERS || | |
!
SLATERS | \
| A
i ] |
. _ |
| B _4| 9
- L]
| | \
DEICHMANN | ="
‘- |
I

L

"‘ FOOTASYLUM
.

PROVIDENT HOUSE |

CHURCHILL THEATRE

BAG SHOP

LIBRARY

HALIFAX |
[

I
| OLD SWEET SHORPE J
\

\
\'\ FOX HOLSE ALLEY
t
‘.
\ M
\
!

MOSS BROS

MARKS & SPENCER

CARD FACTORY

BURGER KING

Do not scale this drawing. All dimensions to be checked
on site by the contractor a

e
their responsibility. All work must comply with relevant

nd such dimensions to b

British Standards and Building Regulations

requirements. Drawin:
reported to the architect.

g errors and omissions to be

T_'_1
1

Proposed pop-up market stalls

@Sew

Drawing Title

High Street North Market Layout

Project Number Status
No.1 Compton Court hello@egretwest.c
40 Compton St egretwest.com 0220 |nf0
London EC1V 0AP 020075 EEEEE
0207 549 1730 Scale at A0 Date
Shoptd e | Client 1:250 30.11.17
London Borough of Bromley Drawn by Checked by
CwW SEW
Scale Bar Project . Drawing Number Revision
01 |12.12.17 Market store removed ISEW, l: oml Br0m|ey Central ngh Street
Rev |Date Description Chk 0220—SEW—H 8—71 02 01

Page 109




This page is left intentionally blank



Clothing Stores

Banks
Food Retail & Catering
General & Assessories

Non-Food Retailing

FOX MOUSE ALLEY




This page is left intentionally blank



A market comprises a mix of tenants with individual trading names, but there is always a collective
name by which the market is known. The market is often the single largest retailer within the town
centre but it usually has the least retail identity.

An identity is important to create brand recognition among consumers, even for a market. Location,
trading days, events and offers should all be promoted with a consistency of style across all platforms.

Quarterbridge creates innovative and memorable retail identities specifically tailored for market
operators.

Good signage is essential to make the market visible and accessible, whether it's directional signage or
external banners to promote an event.

Each of these logos has been designed to reflect the market it represents, whether a traditional
Victorian indoor market, a contemporary food hall, a market within a modern retail complex or a
street market.

HA

Page 113



Perhaps the best example and most comprehensive branding Quarterbridge has undertaken would
be at Woking Market. The market was previously without an indentity. The Market Walk brand was
created and since evolved from a simple market brand into the The Woking Market Company, which
is the market operator and lease holder for the site.

The Market Walk is established accross all socail media tangents, printed on bags and present on all
market and promotional events.

Quartrerbridge have been commissioned to design the Bromley Market brand, this will be issued
alongside brand guidelines, which will help steer future branding exercises.

To accompany the brand, Quarterbridge will be, engineering and will be launching the Bromley market
standalone website.

Page 114



Agenda Item 10

Report No. London Borough of Bromley
ES18008

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: EXECUTIVE

For Pre-decision scrutiny by Environment PDS Committee on
30" January 2018

Date: 7" February 2018
Decision Type: Non-Urgent Executive Non-Key
Title: SCADBURY PARK MOATED MANOR
Contact Officer: Dan Jones, Director for Environment
Tel: 020 8313 4211 E-mail:dan.jones@bromley.gov.uk
Chief Officer: Nigel Davies, Executive Director for Environment
Ward: Chislehurst

1. Reason for report

This report seeks Members approval for the use of cash match-funding in order to secure a
Heritage at Risk Grant from Historic England which will help secure some of the most urgent
repairs and stabilisation of brickwork at the Medieval Moated Manor within Scadbury Park Local
Nature Reserve.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Environment Portfolio Holder is requested to agree to allocate £53k from the
Earmarked Reserve set aside for Friends Groups and £7k from the existing parks
revenue budget, to be used to part fund the project.

2.2 The Executive is asked to approve:

2.2.1The submission of a Heritage at Risk Grant application for £95k, to Historic England for
the project management and delivery of Urgent works;

2.2.2The acceptance and delivery of this grant, if successful, with its associated terms and
conditions, subject to the costs identified within the maintenance plan being funded
within existing budgets and or any additional external funding secured,;

2.2.3The tendering of capital works identified by the Condition Survey as 1A Urgent works
estimated to be £120k;

1 Page 115



2.2.4 The appointment of a Conservation Accredited Professional to develop, and project
manage the scheme, at an estimated cost of c£35k;

2.2.5 To add the scheme to the Capital Programme, at a total cost of £155k, funded from £60k
contribution from revenue and a HE grant of £95k, if successful.

2 Page 116



Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1.

Summary of Impact: None

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council Quality Environment

Financial

1. Cost of proposal:155k

2. Ongoing costs: £3.3k, although future costs will be identified in the costed maintenance plan
3. Budget head/performance centre: Parks & Green Space & the Capital Programme

4.  Total current budget for this head: £3.3k & £247.5k

5.  Source of funding: Historic England grant, existing revenue budget and Earmarked Reserve
Personnel

1. Number of staff (current and additional): O

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:

Leqal

1. Legal Requirement: Compliance with Terms and Conditions as per the Historic England Grant.
2. Call-in: Applicable

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications: The value of these procurements falls below the

thresholds set out in Part 2 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, so are only subject to Part
4 of the Regulations. As per 8.2.1 of the Council’'s Contract Procedure Rules, the procurement
of capital repair works must make use of public advertisement, and therefore must also be
advertised on Contracts Finder. The procurement of a Conservation Accredited Professional, if
advertised, must also be advertised on Contracts Finder. Where advertised, the relevant award
notices must also be published.

Customer Impact

1.

Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): 505 members of the public
visited the moated site at the most recent Open Weekend in 2017 with a total of 12,615 people
having visited the site during ODAS open weekends to date. ODAS are also present on-site
over Bank Holidays to talk to the public about the history of the site and our excavation work,
and would engage on average 80 people per afternoon. ODAS also gives lectures about the
history of the site to local groups. There is also the potential for the offer to be expanded to
increase the number of visitors to the site in the future.

3 Page 117



Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Yes

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments: Awaiting responses. An update will be provided at the
meeting.

4 Page 118



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

COMMENTARY
Background

Scadbury Park Local Nature Reserve is an impressive site offering 300 acres of countryside
which include the remains of a medieval moated manor house with associated fish-ponds. The
surviving remains cover a variety of building phases and include 16th Century brickwork, and
partially rebuilt remains dating from the 1930s. Three main groups of families have been
associated with the manor until its purchase by Bromley in 1983, two of which were significant
players on the national stage, moving in circles of the royal court and being directly involved in
national politics. First references to the Manor of Scadbury date back to the mid 1200's; with the
Tudor manor house the home of the Walsingham family from 1424-1655 (further detail on the
historical significance of the site available in Appendix 0, Statement of Significance). The larger
site incorporates traces of a Tudor deer park and a series of World War 1l defences forming a
wider heritage landscape which is now managed as a Local Nature Reserve, with approximately
half the site leased to a tenant farmer.

Designations

Scadbury Manor moated site and fishponds, was designated by Historic England, (HE) as both
a Scheduled Ancient Monument, (SAM) in 2013 (due to its recognition as a site of national
importance) (see Appendix 1 Scadbury SAM extent plan) and in 2014 was added to the
Heritage at Risk Register.

The site’s historical context, coupled with its poor condition, mean that HE are very keen and
supportive towards steps taken by LB Bromley towards a long-term plan for its continued
management and protection. In addition to the opportunities outlined in the report below, HE
have also provided advice through its experts and commissioned an orthophotographic survey
of the site for future use by Bromley.

Scheduling as an Ancient Monument — landowner obligations

The Scheduling of the site in 2013 now means that any works to the ‘monument’ require prior
written permission from the Secretary of State for the Department for Digital, Culture, Media and
Sport. Whilst Scheduling does not impose a legal obligation to undertake any additional
management of the monument, HE encourage owners and occupiers to maintain their
scheduled monuments in good condition so that the remains survive for future generations. It is
a criminal offence to destroy or damage a scheduled monument either intentionally or through
recklessness or to carry out or to permit others to carry out unauthorised works to a scheduled
monument.

Heritage at Risk Register

Since 2014 the Manor has been on the Heritage at Risk Register, which is an annual HE
publication which identifies the most important heritage assets at risk of damage or loss. The
Manor is classified as having “Extensive significant problems with a declining trend and
vulnerability  for  collapse”.  (https://historicengland.org.uk/advice/heritage-at-risk/search-
reqister/list-entry/408684).

Key Community Stakeholders

These include:

3.6.1 Orpington and District Archaeological Society (ODAS) has held a Licence to operate and

conduct archaeological excavations on the site for a number of years and has been a key

5 Page 119


https://historicengland.org.uk/advice/heritage-at-risk/search-register/list-entry/408684
https://historicengland.org.uk/advice/heritage-at-risk/search-register/list-entry/408684

driver in the promotion of the manor site and in obtaining preliminary photographic surveys of
the existing brickwork.

3.6.2 Friends of Scadbury Park who champion the improvement of the wider park and who are
naturally keen to be involved in any future plans for the site.

3.6.3 Chislehurst Society who work to ensure that Chislehurst is kept special for residents and
visitors alike and has been in existence since 1932. The Society may have some potential
funds available for future improvements to the site, including the Moated Manor.

Current condition of the site and existing management

3.7 The standing remains of the medieval manor house are in poor condition — unfortunately
suffering from a variety of structural problems, with walls increasingly under stress and fragile
brickwork in need of attention.

3.8 Plant growth also poses a major problem in the decay of the existing brickwork. Managing
vegetation is a constant battle, admirably tackled by ODAS in partnership with Bromley and
idverde.

3.9 ODAS and idverde, have been working in partnership, particularly as part of the Management
Agreement outlined below, to carry out some periodic maintenance work to maintain and
improve accessibility as well as stabilise and protect some of the remaining brickwork features.

3.10 The level of decay and increasing structural instability of the existing remains means that
intervention is required both from an architectural perspective, in order to conserve what is left,
but also from a public perspective, if the Council wishes to continue enabling the site to be
accessed by ODAS and idverde to carry out on-going maintenance and also enable visitors
attending ODAS open days etc.

3.11 All parties are also collectively working to ensure any landowner liabilities are satisfied e.g. the
planned introduction of replacement and new perimeter fencing to prevent trespassers.

Funding from Historic England

3.12 To date, Bromley has previously secured from Historic England:

A three year £20k Management Agreement to provide periodic maintenance and capital
works including controlling vegetation, felling trees threatening the moat, soft capping
and propping of sensitive walls (Historic England (HE) and LBB each providing up to
£10,000) ending in January 2018.

In 2016 — a £12.6k Heritage At Risk (HAR) Grant for the production of a Condition
Survey (with £3k of match funding from Bromley) (see Appendix 2 for Condition Survey,
available on request). This details the key areas of the site at risk from further
deterioration and proposes a timescale for works ranging from urgent works to those
works that are recommended for completion within two to three years. The estimated
total budget to deliver all of these works was outlined in the report as being in excess of
£1.3 million for delivery of capital works (taking the highest estimate figure in cases
where there are different options for the recommended conservation works required).
However, there is now a need to refine indicative costings for the most urgent work,
obtaining current up to date prices from the marketplace.

3.13 Going forwards, there is the potential for an additional 3 year £20k Management Agreement for
the site jointly funded by HE and LBB. Also, as HE are keen for the structure to be removed
from the At Risk Register and be reassured that there is a long term plan for its repair, they
have expressed that they would welcome another Heritage at Risk Grant application from

6 Page 120



3.14

3.15

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

Bromley for the first stage of repair works. This application would address the most urgent
(Category 1A Urgent) stabilisation works, specifically works to the Large Cellar; the Narrow
Passage and the South Moat Wall (see Appendix 3 for a more detailed Scadbury layout plan).

Heritage At Risk grant conditions

As expected, there are a number of conditions that would apply for ten years from the date of
the final grant payment, including the need to:

e carry out maintenance in accordance with a costed maintenance plan, keep records of the
maintenance work carried out and certify annually that this has been done

e open the property to the public in line with the requirements set out in the standard
conditions.

e have suitable insurance or make good any damage or loss sustained to the property

e repay the grant if Bromley disposed of the property, for example by way of sale, exchange
or lease.

e repay the grant if Bromley changed the use of the property.

e recommend that a suitably qualified and experienced professional adviser undertakes a
condition survey of the property every five years

Should indicative costings outlined in the costed maintenance plan exceed the existing available
budget of £3.3k for maintenance of the site, alternative funding options will be sought. However,
should additional funding not be identified, Officers will not proceed with the project.

Whilst HE would require a commitment to the above conditions, there would be no obligations
stipulated by HE through the awarding of this grant for any on-going commitment to deliver the
remaining phases of works identified in the Condition Survey, through future grants or
otherwise. Indeed, HE have outlined they would not want to be bound to fund future phases
either as they would not have a guarantee of grant funds available for future years at this point
(see Appendix 4, available on request, Confirmation email from HE).

HE usually require 50% match funding for their grants, however, through discussions it is
understood that this could be a lower percentage. As HE like to be seen as the ‘last funder’,
options need to be explored around other potential sources of funding including: The
Chislehurst Society, ODAS and the Friends. Through initial discussions, it is, however,
anticipated that the Council will be the main funder for this current application, with others
contributing for any potential subsequent phases.

In addition to the £35k for the recruitment of the Conservation Accredited Professional,
Members are asked to approve the expenditure of a further £25k of match-funding towards the
capital costs of Phase 1 repair works to enable a grant application for £95k to be made to the
HE. It is proposed that the £60k contribution from the Council be funded by £53k from the
earmarked reserve set aside for Friends Groups and the remaining £7k from existing revenue
budgets.

Benefits of a HAR grant application

Whilst the HAR grant application would provide the capital investment needed to carry out the
most urgent works to the site there is a need to be mindful of any on-going long-term
maintenance commitments as a result of the acceptance of a grant. Through discussions, HE
have made it clear, that even if the Council were intending to not invest in the site, then it would
need to make the site structurally safe in line with its landowner liabilities, which would involve
an investment of money. This will be something that the Conservation Accredited Professional
will review the costs of. However, as outlined above, there is no legal obligation to undertake
any additional management on a Scheduled Monument.

7 Page 121



3.21 If the grant application is successful, the associated works will need to be incorporated into the
Council’s Capital Programme.

Employment of a Conservation Accredited Professional

3.22 To enable the submission of a second Heritage at Risk Grant application, HE requires the
Council to engage a Conservation Accredited Professional. This person’s role would be to
secure tender prices for the identified capital works for the three identified areas of the Moated
Manor as above. As part of the delivery of a successful grant application it is intended that this
person would also be used to project manage the delivery of the repair works

3.23 A brief is currently being developed for the Conservation Accredited Professional who would be
responsible for carrying out the three phases of work, with independent prices for each Phase,
so the work could be awarded as the project progresses as required. The work within each
Phase is set out below:-

Phase 1

Reviewing the scope of work identified in the condition survey

Developing the project to RIBA stage 4 with cost estimates

Creating a specification for the agreed scope of work

Producing a costed maintenance plan

Identify costs associated with ‘making good’ on the site but doing no conservation works

Phase 2

e Taking forward the detailed schedules and specifications to tender
e Evaluating the tenders
e Producing a tender report with recommendations

Phase 3

e Overseeing the delivery of agreed selected works, through to final completion and including
liaising with all stakeholders.

3.24 The work is estimated at a total cost of £35k (E7k for the first two Phases and £28k for Phase
3). The engagement of the consultant and delivery of Phase 1 objectives is due to be carried
out imminently.

3.25 Should indicative costs identified by the Consultant in Phase 1 for on-going maintenance
exceed the value that could be covered by the Parks Management budget, then Officers would
explore alternative sources of funding. However, should additional funding not be identified,
Officers will not proceed with the project. If the indicative costs are considered satisfactory then
the consultant will be instructed to continue to Phase 2.

3.26 Once tender prices for the identified works have been secured, it is envisaged that a package of
repair works will be created to the value £120k, which will then form the basis for the HAR grant
application to HE.

3.27 In the interim, an outline application will be submitted to Historic England, in order to register an
expression of interest by the end of their financial year. However, if the on-going maintenance
costs associated with the conservation work carried out are too prolific, this may need to be
withdrawn.

8 Page 122



The Future

3.28 HE have outlined that they may consider a third or even fourth Heritage At Risk application for
capital repair works, however for the longer-term, the remainder of the investment required may
need to come from a larger funder such as the Heritage Lottery Fund. All such grant
applications will require match-funding.

3.29 Previous discussions with the Heritage Lottery Fund regarding this and other sites, have
identified the need for a vision for the park to be in place when applying. This would require
working with the variety of stakeholders on site, and would need to look at the future purpose of
the wider site and its integration with the Manor, plus issues such as visitor management and
access etc.

3.30 Any vision would also need to tie in with other site stakeholders such as the current tenant
farmer and the TREE centre buildings which are currently occupied by the Shaw Trust (both of
which have leases with Bromley).

3.31HE have also encouraged the Council to apply for one of their Capacity Building grants which
would provide funding to employ someone who could be a dedicated resource for working up a
HLF application. The proposed timing of this would be to follow the second HAR application.

3.32 However, any future grant applications will be dependent on the grant conditions that are
attached as the Council may not be able to commit to future maintenance requirements given
the current financial position as outlined in the forecast.

4 POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The proposals in this report are within existing policy. In the Quality Environment section of the
Building a Better Bromley 2016-18 vision one of the issues is “Sustaining a clean, green and tidy
environment through value-for-money services provided to a consistently high standard” and
“‘Encourage Residents Associations and the expanding network of ‘Friends’ to contribute to
parks, trees and streets management”.

5 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 This report is seeking approval to submit a Heritage at Risk grant application to Historic England
for a sum of £95k to carry out urgent works at the Scadbury site. The Council would be required
to provide match funding of £60k, resulting in a total project cost of £155k.

5.2 It is proposed that the match funding is made up of £53k from the earmarked reserve set aside
for Friends Groups and the remaining £7k from existing revenue budgets.

5.3 HE insist that any grant application submission cannot include estimated costs for the works and
therefore it will be necessary to obtain accurate costs through a tender process prior to
submitting the final application.

5.4 HE has confirmed that if the Council were to accept the grant for the urgent works, the Council
would not be under any obligation to fund further capital works identified by the survey. The
Council would however, be required to meet the conditions of the grant which are set out in 3.14
above and include the requirement to carry out maintenance in accordance with a costed
maintenance plan.

5.5 It will be necessary to appoint a conservation specialist to prepare the work required to support
the grant application and to oversee the delivery of the works, as set out in 3.24 above. This
would include a costed maintenance plan. In appointing the specialist, officers must be mindful of
the IR35 requirements.

9 Page 123



5.6 Prices will be obtained for each Phase, giving officers the flexibility to stop the project at the end

of each Phase if required.

5.7 Currently there is an annual budget of £3.3k set aside for the maintenance of the site. Should the

costed maintenance plan identify that there will be a substantial increase in cost required, then

officers will explore options for alternative funding. However, if not successful the project would
not be able to go ahead given the financial position of the Council and the grant may have to be
turned down.

5.8 Approval is sought to add the scheme to the capital programme at a cost of £155k, subject to

6.1

6.2

7

7.1

7.2

confirmation of a successful grant application. The details of the costs and funding are shown in
the table below, along with the profile of the expected spend: -

2017/18  2018/19 Total

Expenditure £'000 £'000 £'000
Capital works 0 120 120
Conservation Consultant cost for Phases 1 & 2 7 0 7
Conservation Consultant cost for Phase 3 0 28 28
Total estimated costs 7 148 155
Funding

Existing revenue budget 7 7
Earmarked Reserve for Friends Groups 53 53
Historic England Grant (subject to successful application) 95 95
Total Funding 7 148 155

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

As part of the grant award there will be a number of associated terms and conditions that
Bromley needs to adhere to, some of which are outlined in 3.14 above and also Appendix 4
(available on request). As per previous grants for green space projects, HE may apply a
condition for repayment of grant if the site is sold or transferred within the term of the granti.e. 10
years.

The estimated cost of a Conservation Accredited Professional and the cost of capital repair
works are below the relevant EU threshold for services and works and as such not subject to the
full application of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. The procurements must be carried out
in compliance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rule 8.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS
Two procurement processes are identified in this report;

e Procurement of a Conservation Accredited Professional to run the tender process and
project manage delivery of repair works at a cost of £35,000.

¢ Procurement of capital repair works at a value of £120,000.

The value of these procurements falls below the thresholds set out in Part 2 of the Public
Contracts Regulations 2015, so are only subject to Part 4 of the Regulations. As per 8.2.1 of the
Council’'s Contract Procedure Rules, the procurement of capital repair works must make use of
public advertisement, and therefore must also be advertised on Contracts Finder. The
procurement of a Conservation Accredited Professional, if advertised, must also be advertised
on Contracts Finder. Where advertised, the relevant award notices must also be published.

10 Page 124



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Any time limits imposed, such as for responding to adverts and tenders, must be reasonable
and proportionate.

With regard to the procurement of a Conservation Accredited Professional, officers must act in
accordance with the intermediaries legislation (IR35).

Both of these procurements must be administered using the Council’s e-procurement system in
line with 3.6.1 of the Council’'s Contract Procedure Rules.

idverde will procure these requirements on the Council’s behalf in accordance with the Council’s
Contract Procedure Rules.

Non-Applicable Sections: | IMPACT ON VULNERABLE ADULTS AND CHILDREN
PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Background Documents: Appendix 0 Statement of Significance
(Access via Contact | Appendix 1 Scadbury SAM extent plan
Officer) Appendix 2 Condition Survey — Available on request

Appendix 3 Scadbury layout plan
Appendix 4 Email from HE outlining no obligation for future
phases — Available on request

11 Page 125



This page is left intentionally blank



4.0 Statement of Significance

[Draft material provided by Janet Clayton, ODAS, 6 October 2016]

The site of Scadbury Moated Manor in its entirety is a highly significant asset. It has a well documented social
history and the surviving remains cover a variety of building phases. A programme of archacological excavation
has been carried out, supporting a fuller understanding of its development.

A range of factors make the site of particular interest. It is 2 good example of a medieval moated site with
associated fish-ponds. The moat still holds water, providing a beautiful setting with native wildlife. Only three
main groups of families have been associated with the manor until its purchase by LB Bromley in 1983. This
makes it possible to link a wide range of detailed archaeological and historical information covering over 800
years. An extensive archive of documents connected with the final group of families
(Bettenson/Selwyn/Townshend/Marsham-Townshend) is held locally by LB Bromley Archives.

All the families associated with Scadbury were major local landowners, and their actions affected the lives of
local families. Two of these families — the Walsinghams and the Townshends — were also significant players on
the national stage. They moved in the circles of the royal court and were directly invelved in national politics,
giving their involvement with the site a wider dimension. Thomas Walsingham, who purchased Scadbury in
1424, was one of the wealthiest London merchants of his day, supplying wine (and financial support) to the
King. His descendant Sir Edmund Walsingham was Lieutenant of the Tower of London at the time of the
imprisonment of Queen Anne Boleyn and Sir Thomas More. Edmund’s nephew Sir Francis Walsingham was
Secretary of State to Elizabeth I, and his grandson Thomas, knighted by Queen Elizabeth at Scadbury in 1597,
was an associate of the Elizabethan playwright Christopher Marlowe. ‘Tommy’ Townshend, 1% Viscount
Sydney, served in Pitt’s government and in 1788 despatched the first group of convicts to newly-discovered
Australia ; the settlement they established there — now the city of Sydney - was named after him.

A context for the scheduled manor site is provided by a number of unscheduled features, including a walled
garden (the surviving stretches of wall date to the 16™ century and stand to head height), the foundations of a
medieval barn and Tudor gatehouse, and a small group of standing farm buildings, mainly 19" century and still
in use, which incorporate earlier brickwork. There is also a large bunker used in WWII as the Home Guard HQ
tor SE London.

In the early 20" century the moat and brick foundations on the island were repaired by the estate’s owner, Hugh
Marsham - Townsends. The buildings had been pulled down in 1738He used the setting to construct a medieval
hall on the foundations of the Walsingham hall incorporating the medieval timbers rescued from a dismantled
manor house in St Mary Cray (these were later removed from the Scadbury site following vandalism). He added
a fireplace and chimney stack and a minstrels” gallery accessed by an early example of poured concrete stairs.
The surrounding grounds and foundations were restored as garden features. These 1930s elements are now an
important part of the site’s history.

The site today is in public ownership and is widely known as Scadbury Park. The park, much of which is
wooded, is a local public nature reserve and defined as ‘Green Belt” and a site of Metropolitan Importance for
Nature Conservation This valuable green area preserves the core of the original Scadbury estate. Scadbury Park
is regularly used by local residents but is also accessible to the wider population of South East London and
Greater London The wider park itself incorporates historic features, including traces of a Tudor deer park and a
series of World War II defences positioned along a ridge, guarding the Quter London Stop Line in the Cray
Valley below. The manor site itself can be seen from the public footpath which runs alongside the moat. The
annual open weekend (two afternoons in September) attracted almost 460 visitors in 2016. Visitors have to
make the journey on foot, as there is restricted parking at the site. Since the first open weekend was held in 1987
over 12,000 people have visited.

The site is capable of supporting a range of stories about its development which can be made relevant to varied
groups of visitors including schools, colleges and academic institutions There is scope to improve the

10
SSHC — Scadbury Moated Manor

Page 127



presentation of the site, to increase an educational offer, and to increase access, but there is currently little
infrastructure available to support wider public access or ongoing involvement. At present public outreach is |
largely managed by volunteers from the Orpington and District Archaeological Society and is limited by issues |
such as site safety, lack of appropriate infrastructure and volunteer availability/capability.

11
SSHC — Scadbury Moated Manor

Page 128



WebGIS Map

i\

L

o

Date 19/02/2014 u
ENGLISH HERITAGE
Scale 1:1,250 1 Waterhouse Square, 138 -142 Holborn, EC1N 2ST
Tel: 020 7973 3000 Fax: 020 7973 3001
Centre  545935,170098 www.english-heritage.co.uk

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office. Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. English Heritage. 100024900. English Heritage.
Historic OS Mapping: Copyright and database right Crown Copyright and Landmark Information Group Ltd (All rights reserved) License numbers 000394 and TP0024

Page 129




This page is left intentionally blank



THE MOATED ISLAND AT SCADBURY - AREAS AND CODES

O
R MOAT WALL
ouTE (OMWIWIEN

7
8 onr "”w",;m"ﬁ?
WWIWIE! 10
Nmﬁﬁpﬁaﬁm o - @ i;' ‘i L._“—_.J
“EI..!' e ~t _; i —j
Ti e ____,..."..»-nt :
4 5 i B 13 L
1% AF PARLOUR
i Bl pf £
Steps
I Enclosure l"ﬂ$ :
HalL 12 .
MOAT Wil W amall Callar m
WALL sell 14 1| norm
MW/S/S/ MWINN
11 I il %
North
CELLAR 15 FI -
167w || g
O d :
17 F
Q
GAUSEWAY Cf i
r-—_
APPLE STORE

SCALE 20 metres

Page 131



This page is left intentionally blank



Agenda Item 11

Report No. London Borough of Bromley
DRR18/001

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE
Date: Thursday 25th January 2018
Decision Type: Non-Urgent Executive Non-Key
Title: MAYORAL COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY 2 (MCIL2)

DRAFT CHARGING SCHEDULE CONSULTATION.

Contact Officer: Terri Holding, Planner
Tel: 020 8313 4344 E-mail: Terri.Holding@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Chief Planner

Ward: N/A

1. Reason for report

The Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy (MCIL2) Draft Charging Schedule (DSC) public
consultation towards Crossrail runs 18" Dec - 4™ Feb 2018. This report alerts Members to the
publication of the document whilst containing background detail, with points and concerns from
the LB Bromley perspective enabling a formal response suggested at Appendix 1.

It is suggested that the Council objects to the proposed Charging Schedule due to:

e The adverse impact on provision of local infrastructure such as education, health;
e The limited benefit to Bromley residents of Crossrail 2,
e The impact on other transport projects.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
That Development Control

Endorses the approach to object and the suggested response at Appendix 1 for submission by
4™ February.

That Executive

Authorises and ratifies the response suggested at Appendix 1.

1 Page 133



Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact:

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy (MCIL)
2. BBB Priority: Not Applicable:

Financial
1. Cost of proposal: N/A

2. Ongoing costs: Potential additional income of between £40k - £50k (4% of the increased rate) to
meet costs of the administration of the MCIL

3. Budget head/performance centre: Community Infrastructure Levy
4.  Total current budget for this head: Net nil
5.  Source of funding: 4% of MCIL collected

Personnel
1. Number of staff (current and additional): 1

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Community Infrastructure Levy Regulation 2010 as

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications: None

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): Not Applicable

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments: N/A

2 Page 134



3.

COMMENTARY

Background

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.15

The Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy (MCIL2) Draft Charging Schedule (DSC) public
consultation towards Crossrail runs 18™ Dec - 4™ Feb 2018. This report alerts Members to the
publication of the document whilst containing background detail, with points and concerns from
the LB Bromley perspective that will enable a formal response.

The Mayor is a charging authority for the purposes of Part 11 of the Planning Act 2008, and the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as amended). These powers enable
the Mayor to set a CIL charge which is paid by most new development in Greater London.

The Mayor brought in his first CIL (MCIL1) in April 2012) in order to contribute to Crossrail’s
£600m developer contributions funding target. MCIL 1 applies across all of London and to most
land uses, with the exception of education, health, and certain uses exempted by statute, such
as affordable housing.

MCIL 1 compliments the specific Crossrail s106 contributions scheme, collected only on office,
retail and hotel developments in Central London and the Isle of Dogs. All proceeds from MCIL1
are used for Crossrail funding and it is expected that the Crossrail target will be reached by
March 2019.

In 2011, LB Bromley strongly objected to the first proposed Crossrail charge in conjunction with
the south London boroughs of Croydon, Kingston, Merton, Richmond, Sutton and Wandsworth.
In response to the MCIL1 2011 consultation, the South London Boroughs main objections to
the Mayoral CIL were:-

e the methodology used in devising the charging regime,

e that along with other south London authorities there would be limited benefit whilst there
would be as number of local authorities outside of London who will benefit substantially from
Crossrail but are not subject to a charge,

e that the proposals could have a significant adverse impact on economic prosperity in South
London and may deter private sector investment through development and regeneration, in
particular in south London’s town centres (e.g. Bromley, Kingston, Sutton, Twickenham and
Mortlake), which are the focus of development potential. Many new developments are
already subject to viability studies, which indicate that existing requirements cannot be met
in full,

e that the focus of the Mayor on Crossrail is at the expense of transport improvements
elsewhere in London. In the South London sub-region, there is an acknowledged shortfall in
transport infrastructure, with poor connections between major trip generators and overriding
need for improvements to orbital public transport.

Current Consultation

3.6

3.7

The Mayor proposes that:-

e Mayoral CIL continues to be levied from April 2019 (as MCIL2)

e MCIL2 supersedes the current Crossrail s106 charge, and that

e The rates for MCIL2 largely reflect a combination of MCIL1 and Crossrail s106 charge
adjusted for current viability.

“The Mayor proposes to use his MCIL2 to help meet part of the cost of the Crossrail 2
project, which is a strategic priority to support the growth and development of Greater

3 Page 135



3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

London. The Mayor may however choose to apply his MCIL2 to any other strategically
important transport project that is listed in the London Plan, as may be altered from time to
time” (DSC consultation 2017).

This is the second round of public consultation, following the Preliminary Draft Charging
Schedule of last August. Having considered comments the Mayor is consulting again on the
Draft Charging Schedule until 4" Feb 2018. After this stage the Mayor can make changes to
the Draft Schedule and if he does, he must allow a further 4 weeks for public consultation on
these changes. The Mayor intends to hold an examination in public (EIP) later in 2018.

The proposed draft rates are:-

Band 1: (currently £50 rising to £80 per sqm)

Camden, City of London, Westminster, Hammersmith and Fulham, Islington, Kensington and
Cheslea, Richmond-upon-Thames, Wandsworth.

(No changes in this banding).

Band 2: (currently £35 rising to £60 per sgm)

Barnet, Brent, Bromley, Ealing, *Enfield, Hackney, Haringey, Harrow, Hillingdon, Hounslow,
Kingston-upon-Thames, Lambeth, Lewisham, Merton, Redbridge, Southwark, Tower Hamlets,
*Waltham Forest, *London Legacy Development Corporation (LLDC), *Old Oak and Park Royal
Development Corporation (OPDC).

(Changes are that those marked * join the banding, whilst Greenwich leaves the group).

Band 3: (currently £20 rising to £25 per sqm)

Barking and Dagenham, Bexley, Croydon, Greenwich, Havering, Newham, Sutton

(Changes are that Greenwich joins the banding and Waltham Forest and Enfield leave
the group).

CIL Regulation 59 (2) restricts CIL spending by the Mayor to funding roads or other transport
facilities, including Crossrail. Unlike the previous consultation on Crossrail funding in 2011,
there is no indication on how much exactly will be needed from collection of the MCIL2 towards
the next stage of Crossrall, this is because the Government is still considering the project
whereas for the previous consultation for MCIL1 it was stated that £300m was required. The
supporting information states ‘MCIL2 is expected to meet approximately 15 per cent of project
costs’. The Mayor also gives in the evidence base, a clear indication there will be a further
MCIL3 from 2024.

Transport for London has estimated that Crossrail 2 will cost around £30 billion at 2014 prices,
but this ‘includes the cost of new trains and Network Rail works, and also includes some costs
for national rail improvements which would be required regardless of Crossrail 2.

Negotiations on the Crossrail 2 scheme are still underway and there is still no agreed funding
package. Should no funding be achievable, the Mayor will be able to apply the MCIL2 to fund
other strategic transport projects for which there is a significant funding gap. Until these matters
are confirmed the proposed London contribution to costs of Crossrail consists of four funding
sources:

e Crossrail 2 net operating surplus — i.e. the net impact of Crossrail 2 on TfL’s rail revenues.

e Over station development — proceeds from development of land and property initially
required for consideration (development related with Crossrail 2 will pay Mayoral CIL 2 on
the same basis as other developments)

e A Business Rate Supplement (BRS) (once the current BRS repays Crossrail 1 related debt)

e A Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy (MCIL2).

4 Page 136



Local concerns

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

Under MCIL1 LB Bromley falls in Band 2 (of 3 bandings over Greater London) and therefore
currently collects £35 per sgm plus the relevant Building Cost Information Service (BCIS) rate
on buildings that are used by people (this excludes buildings for machinery, or structure like
pylons), and for a development of 100 square metres or more gross internal floorspace or
involves creating one dwelling even where this is below 100 sgm (although any net charge of
less than £50 will not be collected).

The Mayor proposes that Borough remains in Band 2 and that from April 2019 LB Bromley
would charge £60 per sgm. However by 2019, Bromley will (subject to procedure and
adoption), have to collect the MCIL in addition to the local LB Bromley’s CIL. The Mayor has, in
accordance with CIL Guidance and the Regulations, taken into account when reviewing his
rates the borough levies that are in force at the time_of evidence gathering. The LB Bromley
first consultation stage of Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule is being consulted on in January
2018 and will not be in force until later in 2018 early 2019.

The Mayors evidence does not consider any possible local CIL element for Bromley and that
may put the viability of the Bromley CIL (BCIL) at risk. Viability work from our consultants Dixon
Searle Partnership has shown a buffer when considering the Bromley local rate, and may
accommodate the extra charge, given that local house prices have gone up considerably since
2014, some 28%, but under 4% in the last year. But if over the next few years’ house prices fall
and construction prices rise the consequence will be to erode any ‘buffer’ and subsequently LB
Bromley may have to review the Local CIL sooner than expected as projects in the local plan
will not be deliverable if they become unviable.

LB Greenwich has gone down a banding to band 3, but the reasoning is not clearly stated in
the evidence documentation from Jones Lang LaSalle. It could be that Bromley remains at
band 2 because Bromley has a significant retail town centre, and therefore attracts higher retalil
rents than boroughs with similar house prices, when boroughs in band 3 lack a focused retalil
provision (Viability Evidence Base para 3.4.6). However Greenwich has several significant
historic tourist attractions, and leisure/arts facilities to bolster its economy which Bromley does
not have. Also Greenwich appears in Table 3 ‘Comparison of house prices, office rents and
disposable incomes (London Boroughs) to have an average house price of £368k, whilst
Bromley is listed as £435k, this may be because of more flatted development in Greenwich at
the time of data collection.

The other boroughs in South London sub-regional grouping that objected alongside Bromley in
2011 will this time round benefit directly from Crossrail 2, including Sutton which is placed in
Band 3, whilst Bromley still does not.

If the Mayor does not use MCIL2 for Crossrail then a major concern for LB Bromley is with
regard to using these funds to invest in future transport projects and the way schemes are
prioritised and whilst the criteria seems to be consistent across Greater London, Outer London
Boroughs like Bromley will always be at a disadvantage. Whilst acknowledging Bromley has not
got the same congestion and air quality issues as Central and Inner London, this part of
London is light on Mayoral priority schemes (as listed in the London Plan).

5 Page 137



Conclusion

3.20

3.21

6.1

6.2

6.3

Despite the earlier objection Bromley remains (in this new consultation) in Band 2. Appendix 1
shows a proposed response based on the last consultation response to the GLA in August. In
summary the proposed objections to the Mayor’'s DSC consultation are:-

¢ the methodology used in devising the charging regime, has put Bromley in Band 2 despite
the impact this could have on the viability and sound development of a Bromley CIL,

e that the proposals could have a significant adverse impact on economic prosperity and
viability in Bromley especially the Bromley town centre — already new developments are
already subject to viability studies, which indicate that existing requirements may not be met
in full,

e there is limited benefit whilst there would be as number of local authorities outside of
London who will benefit substantially from Crossrail 2 but are not subject to a charge,

¢ the focus of the Mayor on Crossrail is at the expense of transport improvements elsewhere
in London. In the Bromley, there is an acknowledged shortfall in transport infrastructure from
the Mayor, and an overriding need for improvements to orbital public transport in this
locality.

When making a response to the document a request can be made for the right to be heard by
the examiner appointed to conduct the public examination of the draft schedule. It must be
stated in the response that LB Bromley would wish to be notified.

IMPACT ON VULNERABLE ADULTS AND CHILDREN
No specific impacts.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The Mayor has powers as a charging authority set out in Part 11 of the Planning Act 2008 to
set a CIL charge to be paid by most new development in Greater London. The money raised by
the Mayoral CIL is required by law to pay for strategic transport infrastructure needed to
support London’s development. LB Bromley acts as a collecting authority on behalf of the
Mayor.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

LB Bromley retains 4% of any Mayoral CIL monies collected, to cover the cost of the collection
administration on behalf of the Mayor.

Should the rate be increased to £60, it would generate additional income of between £40k and
£50k from the 4% that is retained to meet administration costs of the collection.

It should be noted that if the Mayors evidence continues to exclude the impact of a local CIL
for Bromley, it could put the viability of the Bromley CIL at risk. This would impact on the
resources available to invest in the infrastructure in the borough.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The Mayor has powers as a charging authority set out in Part 11 of the Planning Act 2008 to
set a CIL charge to be paid by most new development in Greater London. The money raised
by the Mayoral CIL is required by law to pay for strategic transport infrastructure needed to

6 Page 138



support London’s development. LB Bromley acts as a collecting authority on behalf of the
Mayor. For the purposes of CIL Regulation 123(4)(a), the Mayor intends that the proceeds of
MCIL2 will be put toward the funding of Crossrail 2.

Non-Applicable Sections: | Procurement, Personnel

Background Documents: MCIL2 draft Charging Schedule and supporting documents
(Access via Contact Officer) Dec 2017.

7 Page 139



DRAFT
Appendix 1
MCIL2 Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule
FREEPOST LON15799
GLA City Hall post point 18
The Queen’s Walk
London SE1 2BR

MCIL2 Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule

In response to the latest consultation LB Bromley object to the new proposals in the consultation for
the MCIL2 Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule. LB Bromley has three main concerns expressed
originally last August and wishes to request for the right to be heard by the examiner appointed to
conduct the public examination of the draft schedule.

Firstly, the method used in devising the charging regime as set out in the MCIL Viability Evidence
base prepared by your consultants JLL. LB Bromley remains in Band 2 despite the impact this may
have on development of a local Bromley CIL. This could have a significant adverse impact on the
provision of local infrastructure such as education, health and transport and as a result impact on
economic prosperity and viability in Bromley. This is especially so in the Bromley Town Centre —
already new developments are subject to viability studies, which indicate that existing requirements
may not be met in full. In short, resources are proposed to be diverted from local projects to London-
wide programmes that may be of limited local benefit.

The Mayors evidence document takes no account of a potential Bromley CIL rate (Table 5, p.21).
Further Bromley will be consulting on its own CIL from this January. We note with some surprise that
LB Greenwich has gone down a banding, based on evidence of lower house prices, office rents and
disposable income whilst Bromley seems penalised because it has a ‘significant retail centre’.
Similarly Sutton is placed in band 3 and will benefit directly with a station on the boundary. In the light
of the above we request that the banding be reviewed.

Secondly, similar to our response to the MCIL1 in 2011, there is limited benefit for residents of LB
Bromley for Crossrail 2, whilst there would be as number of local authorities outside of London who
will benefit substantially from Crossrail 2 but are not subject to any charge.

Thirdly, it appears to LB Bromley that there is a focus on Crossrail, and this may be at the expense of
transport improvements elsewhere in London. If the Mayor does not use MCIL2 for Crossrail then

these funds may be used for other future transport projects but with a lack of any certainty that this
will benefit Bromley.

Yours faithfully,

8 Page 140



Agenda Iltem 12

Report No London Borough of Bromley
DRR18/002

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE

Date: 25th January 2018/7" February 2018

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

Title: BROMLEY’S RESPONSE TO THE DRAFT LONDON PLAN
CONSULTATION

Contact Officer: , Gill Slater, Planner

Tel: 0208 313 4492 E-mail: gill.slater@bromley.gov.uk
Chief Officer: Chief Planner

Ward: (All Wards);

1. Reason for report

The Mayor of London published the New Draft London Plan for public consultation at the
beginning of December 2017. When adopted, the new Plan will replace the current London
Plan (2016) and, as part of Bromley’s Development Plan, will be used in decision making on
planning applications along with the UDP/ Local Plan and Bromley Town Centre Area Action
Plan. Appendix 1 to this report summarises key aspects of the Consultation Draft and includes
officers’ comments. Bromley’'s response, based on these comments, will be prepared for
Executive approval on 7" February 2018 and submitted before the deadline of Friday 2" March.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

Development Control Committee is requested to note the key aspects of the New Draft
London Plan set out in Appendix 1 and recommend the suggested comments to the
Executive to form the basis of Bromley’s formal response

1 Page 141



Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: No impact

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy:
2. BBB Priority: Quality Environment:

Financial
1. Cost of proposal: No Cost:
2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable:

3.  Budget head/performance centre: Planning Division Budget (Excl. Building Control, Land
Charges)

4.  Total current budget for this head: £1.525m
5.  Source of funding: Existing revenue budget for 2017/18

Personnel
1.  Number of staff (current and additional): 64ftes

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: N/A

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement:

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications: No implications

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): All residents in the Borough
as well as those making planning applications for development in the Borough.

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? No

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments: N/A

2 Page 142



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

COMMENTARY

Background

The Mayor of London published his New Draft London Plan for public consultation at the
beginning of December 2017. As with the current London Plan, this is a Spatial Development
Strategy which has been produced in accordance with the Greater London Authority Act 1999
(as amended). When adopted, it will replace the current London Plan which was originally
published in 2011 and amended through a number of formal alterations up until March 2016. It
will be the overall strategic plan for London, setting out an integrated economic, environmental,
transport and social framework for the development of the Capital for the next 20 to 25 years
(that is 2019 to 2041).

Following this consultation period, which concludes on Friday 2nd March 2018, it is anticipated
that an Examination in Public, led by an independent Panel, will take place in autumn 2018.
The Panel will produce a report recommending changes to the Plan which the Mayor can
decide to accept or reject. Subsequent to that, the Secretary of State can direct changes, the
London Assembly can decide to reject the whole plan but otherwise the Mayor intends to
publish the New London Plan in autumn 2019.

Bromley’s Draft Local Plan, which will replace the Unitary Development Plan (UDP), is currently
under Examination, with public Hearing sessions having taken place in December 2017. The
Council is currently waiting for further instruction from the Inspector, but it is expected that a
period of consultation will be required on Proposed Modifications arising from discussion at the
Hearings and other matters as advised. Once the Inspector has considered the response to that
consultation she will prepare her final report including recommendations for changes to make
the plan sound. The Council can then withdraw the UDP and adopt the Local Plan for use in
determining planning applications.

Until the New Draft London Plan is adopted, the current London Plan 2016 is the strategic plan
with which the Draft Local Plan should be in conformity and which is to be taken into account
when making planning decisions.

3.5 The sections below summarise the key aspects of the consultation draft new london plan with

3.6

3.7

further details in Appendix 1 with officer’s initial comments which it is proposed that these form
the basis of the Council’s response to the consultation. The deadline for responses is Friday 2™
March and further analysis of the draft document s (including the evidence base) and the
implications for the borough is being undertaken and will be reported to Members of DCC and
the Executive to inform their considerations. The concerns highlighted by officers will form the
basis of any Council objections to policies or parts of policies if these aren’t addressed through
discussions with the Mayor and the GLA..

Initial key areas of objection relate to the increase in housing supply and the policies as to how
the increase has been calculated and the removal of the flexibility of residential parking
standards for outer London secured previously through the minor alterations to the London
Plan.

Summary of key aspects of the Consultation Draft New London Plan.

A summary of key aspects of each Chapter of the Consultation Draft is set out in Appendix 1.
Many policies are similar to those in the current London Plan but significant changes, with
implications for Bromley, are set out below. It is important to note that, as part of the Borough’s
Development Plan, there is no requirement for the policies to be repeated at the local level
before they can be implemented, but some policies do allow for a local approach to be taken.
Para 0.0.22 states that “This Plan provides the framework to address the key planning issues

3 Page 143



facing London. This allows boroughs to spend time and resources on those issues that have a
distinctly local dimension and on measure that will help deliver the growth London needs. This
includes area-based frameworks, action plans and Supplementary Planning Documents, site
allocations, brownfield registers and design codes”.

General spatial development patterns

3.8 “Growth Corridors”, including Opportunity Areas (such as Bromley Town Centre) and other town
centres are the focus for growth. There is less emphasis on the retail elements of town centres
and more about seeking opportunities for mixed use and residential development. Out-of-town
centres should include residential when redeveloped. See Appendix 1, Chapter 2, comments on
Policies SD1 (Opportunity Areas) and SD6 to 9 (Town Centres).

Protection of Green Belt and other open space

3.9 The protection of Green Belt and other open space is retained - see Annex 1, Chapter 1
comments on Policy GG2 Making the best use of land, and policies in Chapter 8). However, the
clause in current Policy 3.5 which allows boroughs to adopt a presumption against the
development of garden land has been removed. See Appendix 1, Chapter 3 comments on
Policy D4 (Quality and Design). The London Plan introduces an urban greening formula to
inform the provision of green infrastructure.

Housing supply

3.10 The current London Plan minimum target of 641 dwellings per annum for the borough is
proposed to be raised to 1,424 dwellings per annum. This figure is the result of the Strategic
Housing Land Availability Assessment which the GLA carried out in 2017. 72% of the proposed
higher figure is assumed to be the delivery of units on small sites. Objections are raised to the
significant increase in the Council’s draft annual housing target including the methodology used
in the GLA’s 2017 SHLAA to calculate the small sites target. See Appendix 1, comments on
Chapter 4, Policies H1 Increasing Housing Supply and H2 Small Sites.

3.11 The Sustainable Residential Quality Matrix (Table 3.2) of the current London Plan has been
removed. The proposed new policy guiding density focuses instead on “optimising” sites, that
is, “more efficient use of land”. See Appendix 1, comments on Chapter 3, Policy D6 Optimising
housing density.

3.12 Policies on affordable housing are focussing on delivering more affordable housing across
London. A need of 43,500 new affordable homes across per annum has been identified within
the plan. A minimum threshold of 35% is initially set for relevant sites, a 50% threshold is set for
public land and industrial sites deemed appropriate for release for other uses. The tenure for
appropriate sites is split between the following; 30% low cost rented homes, 30% intermediate
products and 40% to be determined by the borough for genuinely affordable products based on
identified need.

3.13 A new policy sets out criteria for Large Scale purpose built shared living (Policy H18). This form
of accommodation, involving communal space and concierge facilities for tenancies of 3 months
plus is not of itself affordable but will be required to contribute either a payment in lieu or an ‘in
perpetuity annual payment to the local authority’

4 Page 144



Education

3.14 The plan moves away from the position of ‘strong support for establishment new schools’
(current London Plan Policy 3.18) and introduces specific criteria in relation to education
development. See Appendix 1, Chapter 5 comments on Policy S3 Education and childcare
facilities).

Economy

3.15 Bromley’s town centre status and office guideline are unchanged. There is strategic level
support to implement Article 4 Directions to remove Permitted Development Rights for
conversion of Class B uses to residential where viable.

3.16 New policies are included to support low-cost workspace, including through planning
obligations. The plan also supports use of planning obligations to secure local employment and
skills development opportunities.

3.17 There is now a broader range of borough-level groupings for industrial land management.
Bromley is assigned a category of “Retain capacity”, roughly equivalent to its current grouping
of “Restricted”. Industrial Land Release Benchmarks are replaced by a principle of no net loss
of capacity in designated areas across London.

3.18 Foots Cray and St Mary Cray are retained as Strategic Industrial Locations wholly or partly
within Bromley Borough.

3.16 The plan includes a new policy and criteria for “intensification, co-location and substitution” of
industrial and related uses. This expands upon concepts included in the Mayor's Land for
Industry and Transport SPG.

3.17 The current policy for Strategic Outer London Development Centres (SOLDC) has been
incorporated into a broader policy E8 Sector growth opportunities and clusters, but is largely
unchanged in intent. Biggin Hill is now the only recognised SOLDC in London, whilst Crystal
Palace is not referenced Boroughs are encouraged with the Mayor to identify and promote the
development of SOLDCs.

3.19 The plan features new policies for hot food takeaways, including an exclusionary buffer of 400m
between new Class A5 uses and current or proposed schools.

Heritage and Culture

3.20 The London Plan Policy HC7 ‘Protecting Public Houses’ requires a longer marketing period than
Bromley’s draft Policy 23 Public Houses. This longer marketing period (24 months), may have a
negative impact the character of the locality and on the vitality and viability of town centers.

Sustainable Infrastructure

3.21 There is a greater emphasis on improving air quality throughout the plan, with an “air quality
positive” standard being required in some areas (see Appendix 1, comments on Policy SI1).
Carbon Reduction targets for non-residential development are increased to “zero carbon” in line
with residential and a minimum contribution from energy efficiency is introduced. Waste
management policy remains largely the same with boroughs still being able to collaborate to
meet their revised apportionment targets.

5 Page 145



Transport

3.22 Reference to the Mayor’s ambition for enhanced rail access to Bromley via an extension of the

DLR has been removed. The Bakerloo Line extension remains a strategic priority for the Mayor,
with a possible extension from Lewisham to Bromley (see Appendix 1, Chapter 10, comments
on Policy T1 and T3). Bromley Town and Orpington have been identified as areas where higher
cycling minimum parking standards should apply (see Appendix 1, Chapter 10, comments on
Policy T5). There have been significant changes to parking standards. This has led to parking
standards being more restrictive in nature, and there is less flexibility for outer London
boroughs. (see Appendix 1, Chapter 10, comments on policies T6 to T6.5).

Funding

3.23 Chapter 11 ‘Funding the London Plan’ incorporates Policy Delivery of the Plan and Planning

4.1

5.1

5.2

Obligation, but chiefly in the text focuses on the London Infrastructure Plan 2050, a 2014
document which outlined investment required between 2016-2050. Featured is the aim of the
Mayor for fiscal devolution with new fiscal tools to fund infrastructure that will unlock growth and
new homes.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

When adopted, the New Draft London Plan will replace the current London Plan (2016) and will
form part of Bromley’'s Development Plan. It will therefore be used for decision making on
planning applications alongside the Local Plan (when adopted) and the Bromley Town Centre
Area Action Plan. The new London Plan will also influence any new planning policy documents
produced by Bromley (such as a reviewed Area Action Plan or a revised Local Plan) as these
are required to be “in general conformity” with it.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Although there are no financial implications at this stage, it should be noted that should a higher
housing figure be adopted in the future, this may have implications for the Council, with a
greater demand for public services due to an increased population.

There could be future costs associated with the preparation and submission of the Council’s
representation and attendance at any subsequent hearing sessions into the new London Plan.
Any costs will have to be contained within the existing planning budget.

Non-Applicable Sections: | Impact on vulnerable adults and children
Personnel Procurement

Background Documents: The London Plan (2016)
(Access via Contact https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/planning/london-
Officer) plan/current-london-plan
The London Plan — Draft for Public Consultation (December
2017)

https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/planning/london-
plan/new-london-plan

6 Page 146


https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/planning/london-plan/current-london-plan
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/planning/london-plan/current-london-plan
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/planning/london-plan/new-london-plan
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/planning/london-plan/new-london-plan

Appendix 1

London Borough of Bromley

London Plan Draft for Public Consultation — December 2017

Summary and officer comments
Development Control Committee 18" January 2018

Policy Title
Chapter 1  Planning London’s Future (Good Growth Policies)
Policy GG1 Building strong and inclusive communities
Policy GG2 Making the best use of land
Policy GG3 Creating a healthy city
Policy GG4 Delivering the homes Londoners need
Policy GG5 | Growing a good economy
Policy GG6 Increasing efficiency and resilience
Chapter 2 Spatial Development Patterns
Policy SD1 Opportunity Areas
Policy SD2 Collaboration in the Wider South East
Policy SD3 Growth locations in the Wider South East and beyond
Policy SD4 The Central Activities Zone (CAZ)
Policy SD5 Offices, other strategic functions and residential development in the
CAZ
Policy SD6 Town centres
Policy SD7 Town centre network (and Annex 1)
Policy SD8 Town centres: development principles and Development Plan
Documents
Policy SD9 Town centres: Local partnerships and implementation
Policy SD10 | Strategic and local regeneration
Chapter 3 Design
Policy D1 London’s form and characteristics
Policy D2 Delivering good design
Policy D3 Inclusive design
Policy D4 Housing quality and standards
Policy D5 Accessible housing
Policy D6 Optimising housing density
Policy D7 Public realm
Policy D8 Tall buildings
Policy D9 Basement development
Policy D10 Safety, security and resilience to emergency
Policy D11 Fire safety
Policy D12 Agent of Change
Policy D13 Noise
Chapter 4 Housing
Policy H1 Increasing housing supply
Policy H2 Small sites
Policy H3 Monitoring housing targets
Policy H4 Meanwhile use
Policy H5 Delivering affordable housing

Page 147




Appendix 1

Policy H6 Threshold approach to applications
Policy H7 Affordable housing tenure
Policy H8 Monitoring of affordable housing
Policy H9 Vacant building credit
Policy H10 Redevelopment of existing housing and estate regeneration
Policy H11 Ensuring the best use of stock
Policy H12 Housing size mix
Policy H13 Build to Rent
Policy H14 Supported and specialised accommodation
Policy H15 Specialist older persons housing
Policy H16 Gypsy and Traveller accommodation
Policy H17 Purpose-built student accommodation
Policy H18 Large-scale purpose-built shared living
Chapter 5 Social Infrastructure
Policy S1 Developing London’s social infrastructure
Policy S2 Health and social care facilities
Policy S3 Education and childcare facilities
Policy S4 Play and informal recreation
Policy S5 Sports and recreation facilities
Policy S6 Public toilets
Policy S7 Burial space
Chapter 6 Economy
Policy E1 Offices
Policy E2 Low-cost business space
Policy E3 Affordable workspace
Policy E4 Land for industry, logistics and services to support London’s
economic function
Policy E5 Strategic Industrial Locations (SIL)
Policy E6 Locally Significant Industrial Sites
Policy E7 Intensification, co-location and substitution of land for industry,
logistics and services to support London’s economic function
Policy E8 Sector growth opportunities and clusters
Policy E9 Retail, markets and hot food takeaways
Policy E10 Visitor infrastructure
Policy E11 Skills and opportunities for all
Chapter 7 Heritage and Culture
Policy HC1 Heritage conservation and growth
Policy HC2 World Heritage Sites
Policy HC3 Strategic and Local Views
Policy HC4 London View Management Framework
Policy HC5 Supporting London’s culture and creative industries
Policy HC6 Supporting the night-time economy
Policy HC7 Protecting public houses
Chapter 8 Green Infrastructure and Natural Environment
Policy G1 Green infrastructure
Policy G2 London’s Green Belt
Policy G3 Metropolitan Open Land
Policy G4 Local green and open space

Page 148




Appendix 1

Policy G5 Urban greening

Policy G6 Biodiversity and access to nature

Policy G7 Trees and woodlands

Policy G8 Food growing

Policy G9 Geodiversity
Chapter 9 Sustainable Infrastructure

Policy SI1 Improving air quality

Policy SI2 Minimising greenhouse gas emissions

Policy SI3 Energy infrastructure

Policy S14 Managing heat risk

Policy SI5 Water infrastructure

Policy S16 Digital connectivity infrastructure

Policy SI7 Reducing waste and supporting the circular economy

Policy SI8 Waste capacity and net waste self-sufficiency

Policy SI19 Safeguarded waste sites

Policy SI110 Aggregates

Policy SI111 Hydraulic fracturing (Fracking)

Policy SI12 Flood risk management

Policy S113 Sustainable drainage

Policy S114 | Waterways — strategic role

Policy SI115 Water transport

Policy SI116 Waterways — use and enjoyment

Policy SI117 Protecting London’s waterways
Chapter 10 Transport

Policy T1 Strategic approach to transport

Policy T2 Healthy Streets

Policy T3 Transport capacity, connectivity and safeguarding

Policy T4 Assessing and mitigating transport impacts

Policy T5 Cycling

Policy T6 Car parking

Policy T6.1 Residential parking

Policy T6.2 Office parking

Policy T6.3 Retail parking

Policy T6.4 Hotel and leisure uses parking

Policy T6.5 Non-residential disabled persons parking

Policy T7 Freight and servicing

Policy T8 Aviation

Policy T9 Funding transport infrastructure through planning
Chapter 11 Funding the London Plan

Policy DF1 Delivery of the Plan and Planning Obligations
Chapter 12 Monitoring

Policy M1 Monitoring

Page 149




Appendix 1

Chapter 1 — Planning London’s Future (Good Growth Policies)

Policy GG1 — Building strong and inclusive communities

In summary - Those involved in planning and development must:

e Continue to generate economic opportunities, everyone able to benefit

e Provide access to good quality services, increasing social integration

e Plan streets and public spaces for comfort and safety, foster sense of
community

e Promote town centres for social civic cultural and economic benefits, day
evening and night

e Design new buildings and spaces for legibility inclusivity resilient adaptable

e Create accessible London for all, welcoming, dignity without segregation

Comment
The policy is noted.

Policy GG2 — Making the best use of land

“To create high-density, mixed-use places that make the best use of land, those
involved in planning and development must:

A Prioritise the development of Opportunity Areas, brownfield land, surplus public
sector land, sites which are well-connected by existing or planned Tube and rail
stations, sites within and on the edge of town centres, and small sites.

B Proactively explore the potential to intensify the use of land, including public land,
to support additional homes and workspaces, promoting higher density development,
particularly on sites that are well-connected by public transport, walking and cycling,
applying a design—led approach.

C Understand what is valued about existing places and use this as a catalyst for
growth and place-making, strengthening London’s distinct and varied character.

D Protect London’s open spaces, including the Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land,
designated nature conservation sites and local spaces, and promote the creation of
new green infrastructure and urban greening.

E Plan for good local walking, cycling and public transport connections to support a
strategic target of 80 per cent of all journeys using sustainable travel, enabling car-
free lifestyles that allow an efficient use of land, as well as using new and enhanced
public transport links to unlock growth.

F Maximise opportunities to use infrastructure assets for more than one purpose, to
make the best use of land and support efficient maintenance.”

Page 150



Appendix 1

Comment

The Council strongly supports the reaffirmation that existing green space
designations should remain protected. As a borough with more than 50% open
space, Bromley has a key role to play in the achievement of the ambition.of 50%
green cover across London (para 1.2.6).

Bromley has a rich natural and cultural heritage and its distinctive places and
character are highly valued by those who live and do business in the borough. The
London Plan should give stronger protection to these valued environments where
local people proactively seek to enhance these qualities.

See also comments on draft Policies of Chapters 2, 3 and 4.

Policy GG3 - Creating a healthy city

In summary -
e Ensure coordination to improved mental and physical health
Promote activity and healthy lifestyles
Use Healthy Streets approach to priorities health in all planning decisions
Assess impacts of development on health and wellbeing
Plan improved access to green spaces and new green infrastructure
Ensure new buildings are healthy
Create healthy food environment

Comment

The green and open spaces which give Bromley it’'s special character make an
important contribution to the health and wellbeing of all Londoners — a “green lung”
vital to carbon sequestration, pollution reduction, tempering the heat island effect
and offering opportunities for formal and informal sport and recreation. The London
Plan should recognise Bromley’s unique contribution to the Capital in this respect.

See also comments on relevant policies in following Chapters.

Policy GG4 - Delivering Homes Londoners need

In summary - Those involved in planning and development must

e ensure that more homes are delivered.

e support the delivery of the strategic target of 50 per cent of all new homes
being genuinely affordable.

e create mixed and inclusive communities

¢ identify and allocate a range of sites, including small sites, to deliver housing
locally,

e establish ambitious and achievable build-out rates at the planning stage,

Para 1.4.3 states that “The 2017 London Strategic Housing Market Assessment has
identified a significant overall need for housing, and for affordable housing in

Page 151



Appendix 1

particular. London needs 66,000 new homes each year, for at least twenty years and
evidence suggests that 43,000 of them should be genuinely affordable if the needs
of Londoners are to be met. This supports the Mayor’s strategic target of 50 per cent
of all new homes being genuinely affordable.”

Comment

See comments on Chapter 4, Housing Policies.

Policy GG5 — Growing a good economy

In summary - To conserve London’s competitiveness and ensure success is shared,
those involved in planning and development should:

Promote strength and potential of the wider city region

Diversify and share benefits

Plan for sufficient employment space in the right locations

Ensure housing and infrastructure are provided to support growth

Ensure leadership and innovation

Promote and support rich heritage and cultural assets

Maximise public transport, walking and cycling network, town centres to
support agglomeration and economic activity

Comment
The policy is broadly supported. See also comments on Chapter 6, economy.

Policy GG6 Increasing efficiency and resilience

In summary - To help London become a more efficient and resilient city, those
involved in planning and development should:

e Seek to improve energy efficiency and move to low carbon circular economy
e Ensure buildings and infrastructure adapt to changing climate
e Create safe and secure environment
e Integrated approach to infrastructure
Comment

See comments on Chapter 9 — Sustainable Infrastructure.

Page 152



Appendix 1

Chapter 2 — Spatial Development Patterns

Chapter 2 sets out the strategic development framework for London over the life of
the London Plan.

Strategic Framework

Para 2.0.2 states that “London’s green and open spaces are a vital part of the
capital. Its parks, rivers and green open spaces are some of the places that people
most cherish and they bring the benefits of the natural environment within reach of
Londoners. London’s Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land designations (see
Chapter 8) serve to protect these strategically-important open spaces, prevent urban
sprawl and focus investment and development on previously developed land.”

However, Para 2.0.3 states that “If London is to meet the challenges of the future, all
parts of London will need to embrace and manage change. Not all change will be
transformative — in many places, change will occur incrementally. This is especially
the case in outer London, where the suburban pattern of development has significant
potential for appropriate intensification over time, particularly for additional housing.”

Comment

Bromley supports the recognition of the value of open spaces and the focus on
previously developed land. However, there is limited capacity for intensification of
suburban areas without detrimental effects upon local communities, heritage,
character and green infrastructure. It could also lead to a loss of much needed
family housing and necessary amenity space for residents, particularly children.
Intensification in areas without high levels of public transport would lead to additional
pressure on the road network. This strategy does not accord with Para 1.2.7 which
recognises the benefits of “distinctive character and heritage”.

Opportunity Areas

Policy SD1 - Opportunity Areas

Updates existing Policy 2.13 — Opportunity Areas and Intensification Areas

The new policy includes more of a focus on the role that Opportunity Areas should
have on enabling regeneration and reducing inequality, specifically mentioning
affordable housing. Boroughs should set out how they will encourage and deliver
the growth potential of Opportunity Areas. They should support development which
creates employment opportunities and housing choice for Londoners, plan for the
necessary social and other infrastructure, include ambitious transport modal share
targets and support wider regeneration in the surrounding areas.

Comment
The current London Plan designates Bromley Town Centre as an Opportunity Area

and the Council is committed to taking this forward through the Area Action Plan and
the Local Plan. Draft Policy 90 states that the Council will prepare an Opportunity

Page 153



Appendix 1

Area Planning Framework to deliver a minimum of 2,500 homes and an indicative
2,000 jobs. The intention is that this framework will form an early review of the Area
Action Plan.

Supporting London’s Growth

Para 2.13 states that “The Mayor has concluded that an extension to Lewisham via
Old Kent Road and New Cross Gate is the best option for an initial Bakerloo Line
Extension. There is also the potential for future extensions of the scheme beyond
Lewisham. Planning frameworks should identify the development opportunities which
are made possible as a result of the Bakerloo Line Extension, as well as how this
would be phased to reflect the connectivity and capacity benefits it unlocks.

Figure 2.4 shows an indicative extension plan including Bromley Town Centre
Opportunity Area.

Comment

Whilst the DLR extension to Bromley no longer forms part of TfL’s current Business
Plan, it remains Bromley’s preferred option from Lewisham/Catford to Bromley South
via Bromley North. This extension will form part of continuing discussions with TfL
regarding the next draft of the Business Plan, and the Council will continue to press
TfL to secure funding for this extension.

See also comment on Policy T3, Chapter 10.

The “Wider South East”

Policy SD2 — Collaboration in the Wider South East

Updates existing Policy 2.2 — London and the Wider Metropolitan Area

The Mayor will work with partners across the Wider South East to address
“appropriate regional and sub-regional challenges and opportunities through recently
developed strategic coordination arrangements”

Policy SD3 — Growth Locations in the Wider South East and Beyond

Updates existing Policy 2.3 - Growth Areas and co-ordination corridors.

Para 2.3.1 states that “This Plan aims to accommodate all of London’s growth within
its boundaries without intruding on its Green Belt or other protected open spaces. As
with any successful urban area this does not mean that in- and out-migration will
cease, but that as far as possible sufficient provision will be made to accommodate
the projected growth within London.”

Para 2.3.4 states that “Given the pressure for growth in both London and the WSE,

the barriers to housing delivery that need to be overcome to avoid a further increase
of the backlog, and potential changes to projections over time, it is prudent to plan

Page 154



Appendix 1

for longer-term contingencies. Therefore, the Mayor is interested in working with
willing partners beyond London to explore if there is potential to accommodate more
growth in sustainable locations outside the capital.”

Comment

With the risks to existing communities and the environment of accommodating of an
ever-growing population within the bounds of the Capital, Bromley supports
collaborative working with the Wider South East area. However, it is questioned how
the Mayor, through these policies, can significantly influence authorities outside
London without any power to direct changes.

(Policy SD4 and SD5 relate to the Central Activity Zone (CAZ) in central London)

Town Centres

Town Centres are addressed in the current London Plan in Policy 2.15 — Town
Centres, Annex 2 and Policy 4.7 — Retail and Town Centre Development. The New
London Plan puts a greater emphasis on the role of town centres in helping to deliver
its vision — an extension of the “Town Centres First” approach. There is greater
emphasis on identifying the potential for additional residential capacity in town
centres whilst ensuring the network continues to meet the needs of London and its
economy.

Policy SD6 — Town Centres

Town centres should be promoted and enhanced as hubs for a diverse range of
uses, including “locations for mixed use or housing-led intensification and higher
density renewal, securing a high-quality environment and complementing local
character and heritage assets”. Clause “C” states that “The potential for new
housing within and on the edges of town centres should be realised through higher-
density mixed-use or residential development”. Town centres need to able to adapt
and diversify in light of changes in retail patterns and an increase in surplus retail
floorspace.

Comment

The continued focus on town centres for multiple uses is supported however it is
important to recognise that not all town centres can accommodate higher density
development without irrevocably changing their character. Boroughs should be able
to determine which town centres are suitable for higher density development rather
than there being a blanket assumption.

Page 155



Appendix 1

Policy SD7 — Town Centre Network

The draft policy sets out the requirement to proactively manage town centres to
promote sustainable economic growth and the continued need to monitor changing
uses though health checks. Clause E notably mentions District Centres and their
“‘potential for higher density mixed-use residential development” as well as other
viable functions.

The existing Town Centre Hierarchy is retained, with Bromley as a Metropolitan
centre, Orpington a Major centre and District Centres of Petts Wood, Beckenham,
Penge, West Wickham and Crystal Palace.

Annex 1 contains descriptions of the characteristics of the network levels — which
remain unchanged - and indicates the growth potential of commercial, residential
(informed by the SHLAA) and office uses for each centre. This has changed from
the current London Plan which has a general growth potential indicator, office
guidelines and does not include residential potential.

Bromley is attributed with “high” potential for commercial and residential growth and
level “b” in the office guidelines, that is, having “the capacity, demand and viability to
accommodate new office development, generally as part of mixed-use developments
including residential use”. The definition of level “b” in the current London Plan
suggests that there would likely be an overall loss of office floorspace.

Orpington is given “low” commercial growth potential, and “medium” residential. All
District centres are given “low” potential for commercial growth, Beckenham and
Penge are given “incremental” potential for residential and Petts Wood and West
Wickham “medium”.

Lewisham is identified as a potential Metropolitan centre, which would put it on the
same level as Bromley Town Centre.

Comment

The “high” potential for residential and commercial growth in Bromley Town Centre is
noted. This reflects the area’s status as an Opportunity Area.

Policy SD8 — Town Centres: development principles and Development Plan
Documents

This policy reiterates the “Town Centre First” approach of the current London Plan
and continues to require a sequential approach to accommodating town centre uses
Out-of-centre development of town centre uses other than viable office locations in
outer London should be resisted. The full potential of out-of-centre retail and leisure
parks should be realised to deliver housing intensification without a net increase in
retail or leisure floorspace. Boroughs should develop policies for the edge and
fringes of town centres, revising shopping frontages where surplus to introduce
greater flexibility and identify centres that have particular scope to accommodate
new commercial development and higher density housing.

Page 156



Appendix 1

Comment
Whilst the sequential approach to town centre uses is supported, there are concerns

about introducing residential development into out-of-centre retail and leisure parks
due to the less accessible nature of these areas and their parking pressures.

Policy SD9 — Town centres: Local partnerships and implementation

This policy introduces the requirement for each town centre to have a Town Centre
Strategy “produced in partnership at the local level in a way that is inclusive and
representative of the local community”. Para 2.9.2 goes on to say that these should
cover a broad remit “co-ordinating a tailored approach to planning, environmental
health, licensing, Healthy Streets, transport strategy, highways management,
logistics and servicing, regeneration, air quality, investment and projects. They
should be developed with input from relevant stakeholders, including TfL,
commercial landlords and investors, Business Improvement Districts and business
associations, social infrastructure providers, Historic England, and community and
amenity groups.” Article 4 Directions should be introduced where appropriate to
remove permitted development rights for conversion to residential in order to sustain
vitality and viability and maintain flexibility.

Comment

With 7 potential town centres (listed in Annex1) which would require Town Centre
Strategies, there is concern about the resource implications of this requirement in
Bromley. It is suggested that boroughs should be allowed to decide which town
centres will benefit from this approach.

Strategic and Local Regeneration

Policy SD10 — Strategic and Local Regeneration

Boroughs should identify Strategic Areas for Regeneration (set out in Figure 2.19)
and see to identify Local Areas for Regeneration. Policies and proposals should
contribute to regeneration by tackling spatial inequalities and environmental
economic and social barriers.

Comment

The policy is noted. Bromley has established its own “Renewal Areas” in the Draft
Local Plan in response to the current London Plan Policy 2.14.

Page 157



Appendix 1

Chapter 3 — Design

Policy D1 — London’s form and characteristics

Incorporates elements of several existing policies including Policy 7.1 — Lifetime
neighbourhoods, Policy 7.4 — Local character, Policy 7.6 — Architecture.

The policy requires Development Plans and proposals to address a wide range of
matters in shaping places and developments, including:

e Using land efficiently by optimising density
e Providing conveniently located open and green spaces
Preventing or mitigating the impacts of noise and poor air quality

e Responding to local character
e Aiming for high sustainability standards
e Respecting and enhancing heritage assets and architectural features
e Maximising opportunities for urban greening
Comment

The policy is generally supported but see also comments on Policy D6 below.

Policy D2 — Delivering good design

The Policy sets a requirement for Development Plans to identify an area’s capacity
for growth which strengthens what is valued in a place. This should be based on an
evaluation covering a range of elements including:

Socio-economic data

Housing type and tenure

Urban form and structure

Transport networks

Air quality and noise levels

Open space networks

Historical evolution and heritage assets

Topography

Land availability

Existing and emerging Development Plan designations
Existing and future uses and demand for new development

The findings of the evaluation taken together with other policies should inform
sustainable options for growth and be used to establish the most appropriate form of
development for an area. The outcome must ensure that development on all sites is
optimised.

Design analysis and visual modelling should be undertaken where appropriate.
Masterplans and design codes should be used. Design review should be used to

Page 158



Appendix 1

assess and inform design options early in the planning process in addition to
planning advice.

Comment
The policy largely sets out the normal considerations to be taken into account in
preparing a Local Plan. See also Policy H2 — Small Sites for the relevance of

preparing “design codes”.

Policy D3 — Inclusive Design

Similar to existing Policy 7.2 — An inclusive environment

The aim of the policy remains the same — to ensure development is designed from
the outset to be as inclusive as possible. An “inclusive design statement” is
specifically required as part of a design and access statement to demonstrate how
the principles have been addressed.

Comment

The policy is broadly supported.

Policy D4 — Housing guality and standards

Incorporates elements of existing Policy 3.5 — Quality and Design of Housing
Developments and the Housing SPG.

The current space standards are retained unchanged, with the addition of 6 bed, 8
person properties. The standards apply to all tenures and all residential
accommodation that is self-contained. Guidance from the SPG including minimum
standards for private outdoor open space has been brought into the actual Policy.

Comment

An important element of Policy 3.5 has been lost — that is the presumption against
development on back gardens or other private residential gardens. Gardens have
been completely missed from the Consultation Draft Plan and do not even feature in
the Green Infrastructure section. These spaces should be recognised and protected
for their contribution to amenity, healthy lifestyles, biodiversity and habitat corridors,
flood risk management, heritage and character.

The Council supports minimum dwelling size standards in principle but remains
concerned that is not possible to apply this policy to conversions made under Prior
Approval (particularly office to residential). Some residential units coming forward
under the Government’s scheme are well below the London Plan standard.

Page 159



Appendix 1

Policy D5 — Accessible housing

The policy reflects current London Plan Housing choice Policy 3.8c) and d).

The supporting text para 3.5.4 advises that M4(3) wheelchair accessible housing
should be applied only ‘where the local authority is responsible for allocating or
nominating the resident’.

The supporting text advises that wheelchair user dwellings M4(2) and M4(3), which
require ‘step free’ access, should be provided throughout developments (including
floor levels). Guidance is provided regarding the limited circumstances where
flexibility with regard to the requirement for lift access to dwellings without ground
level entrance may be applied, including the implications of service charges for on-
going maintenance.

Comment

The Council supports the policy which reflects draft Policy 4 Housing design, but
gueries the language in para 3.5.4 which reflects that within the draft Local Plan para
2.1.59 to which the GLA objected to in prompting a proposed modification which has
been submitted to examination. The clarification regarding lift provision is noted.

Policy D6 — Optimising Housing Density

Replaces Policy 3.4 — Optimising Housing Potential, and the Sustainable Residential
Quality matrix table 3.2

“‘Development proposals must make the most efficient use of land and be developed
at the optimum density. The optimum density of a development should result from a
design-led approach to determine the capacity of the site.

Particular consideration should be given to:

1) the site context

2) its connectivity and accessibility by walking and cycling, and existing
and planned public transport (including PTAL)

3) the capacity of surrounding infrastructure.

Proposed residential development that does not demonstrably optimise the housing
density of the site in accordance with this policy should be refused.”

Para 3.6.1

“For London to accommodate growth in an inclusive and responsible way every new
development needs to make the most efficient use of land. This will mean developing
at densities above those of the surrounding area on most sites. The design of the
development must optimise housing density. A design-led approach to optimising
density should be based on an evaluation of the site’s attributes, its surrounding
context and capacity for growth and the most appropriate development form, which
are determined by following the process set out in Policy D2 Delivering good design.
Policy H1 Increasing housing supply, Policy H2 Small sites and Policy H3 Monitoring

Page 160



Appendix 1

housing targets set out requirements for increasing housing supply across London
and identify locations where increased housing capacity can be achieved.”

Para 3.6.3

“The surrounding infrastructure of all types is a key element in determining the
optimum density of a site. The capacity of existing and future public transport
services, and the connections they provide, should be taken into consideration, as
should the potential to increase this capacity through financial contributions and by
joint working with Transport for London. Boroughs and infrastructure providers
should also consider the cumulative impact of multiple development proposals in an
area. In general, the higher the public transport access and connectivity of the site,
and the closer it is to a town centre or station, the higher the density and the lower
the car parking provision should be.”

Para 3.6.6

“Masterplans and strategic frameworks should be used when planning large-scale
development to create welcoming and inclusive neighbourhoods, promote active
travel, enable the successful integration of the built form within its surrounding area,
and deliver wider benefits to residents, such as access to shared amenity space and
high-quality public realm.”

Comment

The Council supports a design-led approach to development sites but it is concerned
that Para 3.6.1 seems to suggest that this approach will necessarily result in higher
densities. Taking the local context and character into account, as required by other
draft policies, may not lead to higher density development being the optimal solution.

Policy D7 — Public Realm

Similar to existing Policy 7.5 - Public Realm

The policy adds new objectives to the existing policy reflecting the growing demand
caused by population growth on London’s public realm to accommodate a greater
variety /intensity of uses, particularly in high density development. The definition of
the public realm is extended to include shopping malls, sky gardens, viewing
platforms, museums and stations concourses particularly important in areas of
higher density. The policy seeks to facilitate the balance between the various
functions of the public realm.

Additional objectives relate to encouraging active travel and discouraging car travel
and on street parking, creating a sense of place based on an understanding of
function of public spaces, strengthening the relationship between buildings and the
public realm, incorporating green infrastructure (SUDs) and play equipment,
providing spaces to be enjoyed by all ages, welcome open street events to improve
the public realm, identify opportunities for meanwhile uses on phased development
sites, and provide drinking water.

Page 161



Appendix 1

The supporting text references The Mayor’'s Healthy Streets Approach to the design
and management of streets.

Comment
The policy is noted.

Policy D8 — Tall Buildings

Similar to existing Policy 7.7 — Location and Design of Tall Buildings

The policy specifically emphasizes the role of tall buildings in accommodating
London’s growth and requires local plans to identify specific sites suitable for tall
buildings as part of a plan led approach. This focuses on areas of growth, change
and good transport connectivity, and where permission in principle would be suitable,
rather than identifying general appropriate, sensitive and inappropriate locations as
per the existing policy. Local Authorities are required to define what they consider as
tall buildings in various locations.

The policy sets criteria to take into consideration in the plan making process and in
deciding development proposals with emphasis being added on the various types of
impact including:

e The visual impacts of development with added references to long range, mid-
range and immediate views, in addition to design and the historic environment
Specific guidance is provided in the supporting text re: the design of the top,
middle and base of a tall building.

e The functional impacts of the design of the development on the safety of its
occupiers, the surrounding public realm, pedestrian flow, access to services
and infrastructure, the economy of the area, sky rights and
telecommunications and solar energy generation.

e Environmental impacts of the design of the development on the enjoyment of
adjoining open spaces and street level conditions.

e The cumulative visual functional and environmental impacts of tall buildings
and integration of adequate mitigation measures.

Clause D of the policy specifically includes the requirement for tall buildings to
incorporate publicly accessible areas.

In areas of substantial change such as Opportunity Areas, the definition of tall
buildings is stated to depend on the context. Tall Building applications referable to
the Mayor are identified as including buildings more than 30 m in height. The Mayor
commits to work with Boroughs to provide a strategic overview of tall building
locations across London and assisting with consultations.

Comment

The policy is noted.

Page 162



Appendix 1

Policy D9 — Basement development

New Policy

“Boroughs... should establish policies to address the negative impacts of large-scale
basement development beneath existing buildings”

Whilst small-scale basement developments can help make more efficient use of
land, there have been problems, particularly in inner London, with large
subterranean developments. Some boroughs have implemented Article 4 Directions
to restrict permitted development rights. The Mayor supports boroughs in restricting
large scale basement excavations where it is likely to cause unacceptable harm.

Comment

To date the Council is not aware of negative issues resulting from so called “mega
basement” development in the Borough, however it supports the spirit of the policy in
protecting people and property and will review the need for local restrictions in the
future.

Policy D10 — Safety security and resilience to emergency

The policy is broadly the same as existing Policy 7.13 — Safety, Security and
Resilience to Emergency

Boroughs should work with the Metropolitan Police and other agencies to identify
community safety needs. Development proposals should maximise building
resilience and minimise potential risks, and include proportionate measures to deter
terrorism, assist in detection and help mitigate impacts. These measures should be
considered at the start of the design process and be aesthetically integrated into the
development and wider area.

Comment
The policy is supported.

Policy D11 - Fire safety

New policy.

Development proposals must achieve the highest standards of fire safety and ensure
they incorporate appropriate features which reduce risk to life, minimise fire spread,
provide escape routes, an evacuation strategy and access for firefighting.

All major development proposals should be submitted with a Fire Statement.

Comment

Whilst Building Regulations set out fire safety requirements, this policy intends to
ensure ‘the highest standards” or fire safety through incorporating it into the design

Page 163



Appendix 1

process in a more holistic way. Whilst improvements in fire safety checks are to be
supported, evaluating statements for all major developments would put pressure on
resources.

Policy D12 — Agent of change NEW POLICY

The “Agent of Change” principle (included in the NPPF at Para 123) puts the
responsibility for mitigating impacts from existing noise-generating activity on the
proposed new noise-sensitive development. Development proposals should ensure
good acoustic design, explore mitigation early in the design process and separate
new noise-sensitive development where possible from existing noise-generating
businesses. Development should ensure that existing noise-generating venues can
remain viable. New noise-generating development should put in place measures to
mitigate and manage any impacts for neighbouring residents and businesses.
Boroughs should refuse proposals that have not demonstrated how noise impacts
will be mitigated and managed.

Comment
The policy is welcomed and it is noted that the Council will be able to take this policy
into account in some permitted development applications, including conversion of

office to residential.

Policy D13 - Noise

This policy largely repeats existing Policy 7.15 — Noise. It does not cover aviation
related noise which is addressed in draft Policy T8 - Aviation.

Development proposals should manage noise by:

avoiding adverse noise impacts on health and quality of life

reflecting the Agent of Change principle

mitigating and minimise existing and potential adverse impact without placing
unreasonable restrictions on development

improving and enhancing the acoustic environment

e separating new noise-sensitive development from major noise sources
through the use of distance in preference to insulation

Comment

The policy is noted.

Page 164



Appendix 1

Chapter 4 Housing

Policy H1 Increasing housing supply

Policy H1 deals with Increasing Housing Supply. The current London Plan policy is
3.3 Increasing Housing Supply.

Policy H1 presents new ten-year targets for net housing completions (2019/20 —
2028/29) in Table 4.1, page 145. The ten year target for the Borough is_14,240
homes and annualised the net target is 1424 homes.

The large site target (sites > 0.25ha) is 395 homes per annum compared to 289
homes per annum at present.

Table 4.2 of the Draft London Plan sets out 10 year targets (2019/20 — 2028/29) for
net housing completions on small sites (below 0.25ha in size). The net target for
Bromley is 1029 homes per annum compared to 352 at present for small sites.

Policy H1 Increasing housing supply sets out criteria for boroughs to ensure ten year
housing targets are achieved. In summary this includes:

Clause B, 1 a-c

o Boroughs should prepare delivery-focused Development Plans;

o Allocate an appropriate range and number of sites suitable for residential and
mixed use development and intensification;

o Encourage development on other appropriate windfall sites not identified within
Development Plans;

o Ensure delivery of housing capacity identified in Opportunity Areas working
closely with the GLA.

Clause B, 2 a-f

To increase housing supply boroughs should optimise potential for housing delivery
on all suitable and available brownfield sites through Development Plans and
planning decisions.

Different brownfield sites are listed and include:

o Sites with existing or planned public transport access levels (PTALS) 3-6 or
which are located 800m of a Tube station, rail station or town centre boundary;

o Mixed-use redevelopment of car parks and low-density retail parks;

o Housing intensification on other low-density sites in commercial, leisure and
infrastructure uses;

o Redevelopment of surplus utilities and public sector owned sites;

o Small housing sites;

o Industrial sites that have been identified through the processes set out in Policy
E4 Land for industry, logistics and services to support London’s economic
function, Policy E5 SIL, Policy E6 LSIS and E7 Intensification, co-location and

Page 165



Appendix 1

substitution of land for industry, logistics and services to support London’s
economic function.

The policy sets out four additional clauses (C-F):

o Boroughs should proactively use brownfield registers and permission in
principle to increase certainty for those wishing to build new homes;

o Boroughs should publish and annually update housing trajectories based on
the targets in Table 4.1 which identify the sources of housing capacity
(including windfall) expected to contribute towards achieving housing targets
and should work with the Mayor to resolve any anticipated shortfalls;

o Where new sustainable transport infrastructure is planned, boroughs should re-
evaluate the appropriateness of land use designations and the potential to
accommodate higher-density residential and mixed-use development, taking
into account future public transport capacity and connectivity levels;

o On sites allocated for residential and mixed-use development there is a general
presumption against single use low-density retail and leisure parks. These
developments should provide a mix of uses including housing on the same site
in order to make the best use of land available for development.

Paragraphs 4.1.1 and 4.1.2 highlight that the Mayor has carried out a London-wide
Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) and a Strategic Housing Land
Avalilability Assessment (SHLAA). For the purposes of the Draft Plan London is
considered as a single housing market area. Because of London’s ability to plan
strategically boroughs are not required to carry out their own needs assessment
(although footnote 36 references that if boroughs wish to do so they are encouraged
to carry them out sub-regionally).

Paragraph 4.1.2 specifies that the advantage of strategic planning is that it allows
London to focus development in the most sustainable locations, allowing all of
London’s land use needs to be planned for with an understanding of how best to
deliver them across the capital.

The SHMA has identified need for 66,000 additional homes per year compared to
49,000 in the current London Plan.

Paragraph 4.1.3 states that to achieve the housing targets set out in Table 4.1 the
overall average rate of housing delivery on both large and small sites will need to
approximately double compared to current average completion rates. Recognition is
given to the fact that development of this scale will require not just an increase in the
number of homes approved but also a fundamental transformation in how new
homes are delivered. The London Plan, London Housing Strategy and Mayor’s
Transport Strategy together provide a framework to help achieve this ambition but
achieving this step change in delivery will require increased levels of funding to
support the delivery of housing and infrastructure.

Paragraph 4.1.4 — the London Housing Strategy sets out Mayor’s proposals for
working with boroughs and other partners to deliver the step change in housing
supply through:

Page 166



Appendix 1

o Proactive intervention in London’s land market to unlock and accelerate
housing delivery including on public land and through CPO and other forms of
land assembly;

o Increased and better-targeted investment to de-risk development and maximise
opportunities for new transport infrastructure;

o Diversification of the housebuilding industry through increased Build-to-Rent
development, more support for small and medium sized builders and more
supply of Council’s and housing associations;

Paragraph 4.1.8 states that the allowance for windfall sites is considered appropriate
given the policy framework set out in the Plan, the capitals reliance on recycled
brownfield sites on other active land uses, number of additional homes expected
through increases in density of existing homes through small housing developments.
Boroughs are encouraged to identify as many sites as possible (including small
sites) in Development Plans and on Registers. Boroughs are supported in using
windfall assumptions in their five-year housing trajectories based on the numbers set
out in Table 4.2. In contrast with recent annual trends on small sites the figures in
Table 4.2 are considered to better reflect the step change in housing delivery
through presumption in favour of small housing developments (Policy H2) and the
package of measures in London Housing Strategy.

Comment

The Draft Local Plan sets out in Draft Policy 1 that the Council will make provision for
a minimum average of 641 additional homes per annum over the ten year plan
period and where possible over the fifteen year plan period.

Appendix 10.1 Housing Trajectory sets out a trajectory total of 10,645 units from
2015/16 — 2029/30, the fifteen year plan period.

Over the ten year period 2020/21 — 2029/30 Appendix 10.1 identifies 6959 units
which contrasts significantly with the 14,240 units identified for Bromley in Table 4.1
of the 2017 Draft London Plan.

The Council has objections to the 677 unit per annum uplift for small sites.
Paragraph 4.1.3 refers to a fundamental transformation that is required to deliver this
significant step change in delivery. Of significant concern is the fact that the
timescale for commencement of such delivery is April 2019.

Through participation in the London-wide SHLAA officers assessed sites of 0.25 ha
or larger. This exercise resulted in realistic assumptions for sites of this size
depending on a variety of site characteristics. All sites that are currently designated
as Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Urban Open Space were excluded
(unless an extant planning permission existed for the site). Paragraph 4.1.7 states
that the differences between different borough targets are a reflection of the
variations in the constraints and opportunities affecting development on large sites
and the capacity for development on small sites. As set out in paragraph 4.1.7 this
exercise was undertaken by officers in partnership with the GLA.

Page 167



Appendix 1

The Council has objections to the methodology used by the GLA to generate the
small site target for boroughs which differs to that used in the 2013 SHLAA. The
methodology uses a combination of trend data for certain types of development and
an estimate of potential intensification in existing residential areas (paragraph 4.1.7).
As set out above the small site ‘target’ for the borough has increased three-fold as a
result of the revised methodology.

Use of the small site target in boroughs five year supply could result in challenges in
appeal situations if previous targets have not been met. This could result in an
increase in Public Inquiries and puts at risk sites that are currently designated as
open space (previously omitted from the SHLAA methodology for large sites),
residential character, amenity and heritage assets.

The phasing of large sites in the 2017 SHLAA (Appendix E) is based on when sites
may be completed. It is considered that this does not adequately reflect the phasing
submitted to the GLA by officers and is misleading compared to borough documents
that include housing trajectories. It would be beneficial for the evidence to include
the general phasing of whole sites to give a more detailed account of delivery on
large sites.

See also below Council’s response to Policy H2.

NEW POLICY - Policy H2 Small sites (<0.25ha)

The new policy on small sites emphasises in Clause A the small sites should play a
much greater role in housing delivery and boroughs should pro-actively support well-
designed new homes on small sites through planning decisions and plan-making.
The policy links to Policy H1 Increasing Housing Supply. In the case of Bromley the
small site target has increased from 352 units to 1029 units in the 2017 Draft London
Plan. The policy refers to the need for boroughs to recognise in their Development
Plans and planning decisions that local character evolves over time and will need to
change, in appropriate locations, to accommodate additional housing at a higher
density.

Clause B states that Boroughs should prepare area-wide design codes to promote
good design, encouraging increased housing provision and higher residential
densities on small housing developments. Additionally, boroughs should increase
planning certainty by identifying and allocating small sites, listing these on brownfield
registers and grant permission in principle on specific sites or prepare local
development orders.

Clause D states that to assist in delivering small site development boroughs should
apply a presumption in favour of small housing development (1-25 homes through
residential conversions, extensions, demolition and redevelopment of existing
buildings and infill development within the curtilage of a house) on:

o Infill development on vacant or underused sites;

o Proposals to increase density of existing homes in PTAL 3-6 or within 800m of
a Tube station, rail station or town centre boundary;

o Redevelopment or upward extension of flats and non-residential buildings.

Page 168



Appendix 1

Clause E highlights that development should be in accordance with a prepared
design code, where there is no design code the presumption means approving small
housing development unless it can be demonstrated that the development would
give rise to an unacceptable level of harm to residential privacy, designated heritage
assets, biodiversity or a safeguarded land use that outweighs the benefits of
additional housing. The Mayor will set out design principles as part of his review of
GLA design guidance which boroughs should draw upon when preparing design
codes.

Clause G specifies that on sites providing 10 or less dwellings or have a maximum
combined gross floor space of no more than 1,000 sgm should only require
affordable housing requirements as a tariff approach to off-site contributions rather
than on-site contributions.

Comment
See also above comments for Policy H1 Increasing Housing Supply

The Council has objections in relation to the proposed policy direction for sites of
less than 0.25ha (or sites for 1-25 homes) based on the 2017 GLA SHLAA
methodology as referred to in paragraph 4.2.4 of the Draft London Plan. The policy
approach results in the Borough’s small site target increasing from 352 units per
annum to 1029 units per annum. The change in methodology used to calculate
small site targets was not consulted upon with the boroughs. The previous
methodology used in 2013 was based on past trends of completions on sites of less
than 0.25ha over an eight year period. During the most recent SHLAA process
boroughs were aware that the methodology might be subject to change, possibly
relating to the number of trend years used, but were not aware of the significant
changes proposed as set out in the 2017 SHLAA evidence that have resulted in a
three-fold increase of the figure for Bromley.

Reference is made to the need for design codes but no advice is given in the
supporting text on the status of such codes. Where a design code is not in place the
presumption is in favour of approving small housing development unless there is an
unacceptable level of harm to residential privacy, heritage assets, biodiversity or a
safeguarded land use. It is considered that other relevant policies in the Plan
(including design policies) should be reflected in Clause E to ensure that future
development on small sites respects its surroundings and does not adversely impact
upon the residential amenity of existing and future occupiers.

Clause D, 2) d) specifies that one of the types of small housing development could
be the infill development within the curtilage of a house. It is considered that this
could include the development of backland or garden land. The Council considers
that this type of development should be assessed in relation to: the impact on
character, appearance and context of an area, no unacceptable loss of landscaping,
natural habitats, play space or amenity space and no adverse impact upon the
residential amenity of future or existing occupiers. If a design code is not in place
the criteria set out in clause E would not cover the latter aspects.

Page 169



Appendix 1

See also comments in relation to Draft Policy D4 and the lack of reference in the
consultation Draft Plan to any presumption against backland / private garden
development in borough local plans.

Clause H refers to boroughs seeking affordable housing contributions on sites of 10
units or less. It is considered that reference should be made to whether or not this is
a viable option for boroughs within the supporting text.

Policy H3 Monitoring housing targets

The current London Plan policy 8.4 Monitoring and Review is a general policy
covering the whole of the Plan.

Policy H3 sets out the Mayor’s approach to monitoring the housing targets set out in
Table 4.1. The policy specifies that the housing targets should be monitored as
follows; in net terms taking into account homes lost through demolition or changes of
use, delivery on sites of less than 0.25ha should contribute towards achieving the
small sites targets in Table 4.2, net non-self-contained accommodation for students
and shared living should count on the basis of a 3:1 ratio with 3 bedrooms counting
as a single home and net non-self-contained accommodation for older people (C2)
should count on a 1:1 ratio with each bedroom counting as a single home.

Paragraph 4.3.1 refers to targets in Table 4.1 as annual averages, providing a
benchmark for assessing the direction of travel towards ten-year housing targets
both across London and by borough. The Mayor will monitor both housing
completions and the net pipeline of approved homes when assessing progress
towards delivering targets. Paragraph 4.3.2 refers to the Mayor working closely with
boroughs on their housing trajectories and Development Plans to ensure targets are
planned for effectively particularly where issues are identified in terms of completions
and the pipeline.

Paragraph 4.3.3 refers to the fact that targets have increased significantly to address
need. It is the Mayor’s view that the Governments proposed housing delivery test
should not unfairly penalise boroughs where housing delivery has been constrained
for factors outside of their control. Reference is made to small sites delivery
increasing over time so this should be taken into account when monitoring housing
delivery during the early years of the Plan.

Comment

The Council has objections relating to the uplift in the Borough’s housing target as
set out above.

A new policy relating to the monitoring of targets and support from the Mayor for
boroughs is supported in principle. Of importance though is how the potential
significant uplift in the housing target for the borough could impact upon the
Council’s five year housing land supply position in the early years following adoption
of the Draft London Plan.

Page 170



Appendix 1

As drafted the supporting text does not adequately provide enough guidance to
boroughs on how a five year housing land supply could be calculated taking into
account the significant uplift in small site targets.

It is acknowledged in paragraph 4.3.3 that the increased small site targets will take
time to be delivered. It is therefore considered inappropriate and unrealistic for
boroughs to be monitored against these targets until there is more certainty over the
methodology that has calculated them and if housing delivery will occur along the
lines envisaged in the 2017 SHLAA.

NEW POLICY - Policy H4 Meanwhile use

Boroughs are encouraged to identify opportunities (on land in public and private
ownership) for the ‘meanwhile use’ of sites for housing to make efficient use of land
while it is awaiting longer-term development.

o Opportunities for the meanwhile use of land for housing on large-scale phased
developments should be identified during the planning process;

o The parameters, particularly its longevity (which may vary) and associated
obligations, should be established from the outset and agreed by all parties;

o Meanwhile housing can be provided in the form of ‘precision-manufactured
homes’ which can potentially be reused at a later date on another site.

Comment
The Council welcomes this policy which reflects its approach [involving inviting bids
from providers to build modular homes on Council land for homes offsite for

homeless households of various sizes].

Confirmation should be provided in the supporting text with regards to if the source
of “meanwhile use” contributes to the housing targets in Table 4.1.

Policy H5 Delivering affordable housing

Clause A specifies that the strategic target of 50% of all new homes across London
should be affordable. Measures to achieve this aim include:

e Residential and mixed-use developments to provide affordable housing through
threshold approach (see Policy H6);

e Use grant to increase affordable delivery beyond that which would otherwise be
provided;

e Affordable housing providers with agreements with the Mayor to deliver at least
50% affordable across portfolios;

e Public sector land delivering at least 50% affordable across its portfolio;

e Strategic partners with agreements with Mayor to aim to deliver at least 60%
affordable across their portfolio.

Page 171



Appendix 1

Clause B sets out that affordable housing should be provided on site except in
exceptional circumstances [where provision could be in the form of payment in lieu
or off-site provision].

Paragraph 4.5.1 identifies that delivering more affordable housing is a key strategic
issue for London with the Strategic Housing Market Assessment identifying the need
for 43,500 affordable homes per year. This requires an increase of affordable
housing from all sources.

Paragraph 4.5.2 specifies that past approaches have not adequately met levels of
housing need. To increase certainty, speed up the planning process and increase
delivery the Mayor is adopting a threshold approach to viability. Schemes meeting
or exceeding the threshold without public subsidy [and consistent with Policy H6] are
not required to submit viability information. Schemes that do not meet this threshold
or require public subsidy to do so will be required to submit viability information that
will be scrutinised. Review mechanisms will be applied to schemes that do not meet
the requirements of Policy H6. Threshold approach has been introduced through the
Mayor’s Affordable Housing and Viability SPG [August 2017].

Paragraph 4.5.9 states that to avoid incentivising off-site provision or in lieu
contributions agreements for this should provide no financial benefit to the applicant
relative to on-site provision and should include review mechanisms. Policy target for
off-site or cash-in-lieu contributions is 50% affordable housing across the main site
and any linked sites when considered as a whole.

Comment

The Council notes the overall approach in aiming to deliver an increased level of
affordable housing across London, especially if grant is made available for relevant
schemes / providers listed in the policy. This is crucial in light of schemes needing to
demonstrate that they have sought to increase the level of affordable housing
beyond the level that would otherwise be provided. Reference to the levels of
funding likely to be made available or relevant programmes should be included
within the supporting text of the policy.

There is some uncertainty though whether the fast-track route will incentivise
developers not to enter into the viability tested route which could result in the
planning process not being sped up.

Additional guidance is required in relation to off-site and cash-in-lieu circumstances.

Policy H6 Threshold approach to applications

Affordable housing thresholds are dealt with under Policy 3.11 and 3.13 of the
current 2016 London Plan.

Clause A specifies that the threshold approach to planning applications applies to
proposals capable of delivering more than 10 units or which have a combined floor
space greater than 1,000sgm (paragraph 4.6.14 identifies exclusions and 4.6.15
scheme types with bespoke approaches).

Page 172



Appendix 1

Clause B sets out that threshold level of affordable housing is initially set at:

1) minimum 35%

2) 50% for public sector land

3) 50% for SIL, LSIS and other industrial sites deemed appropriate to release for
other uses;

35% will be reviewed in 2021 and if appropriate increased through SPG.

Clause C sets out the approach to the Fast Track Route, applications must meet all
of the following:

1) Meet or exceed relevant threshold level on site without public subsidy;

2) Consistent with relevant tenure split;

3) Meet other relevant policy requirements / obligations to satisfaction of borough
and Mayor;

4) Demonstrate taken account of strategic 50% target in Policy H5 and have
sought grant where required to increase affordable housing beyond 35%.

A summary of Clause D states that fast tracked applications are not required to
provide a viability assessment at application stage. To ensure applicants intend to
build out the permission the requirement for an Early Stage Viability Review will be
triggered if an agreed level of progress on implementation is not made within 2 years
of the permission being granted (or a period agreed by the borough).

Clause E specifies that where an application does not meet the requirements in
Clause C it must follow the Viability Tested Route. This requires detailed supporting
viability evidence to be submitted in a standardised and accessible format as part of
the application. Information should be scrutinised by the borough and Mayor where
relevant to ascertain the maximum level of affordable housing. Viability tested
schemes should be subject to; an Early Stage Review (relating to progress of
implementation within 2 years of planning permission), Late Stage Viability Review
(based on when 75% units in a scheme are sold or let or period agreed by borough)
and Mid Term Reviews (prior to implementation of phases for larger phased
schemes).

Clauses G-J deal with circumstances where amendments are made to schemes and
how these will be treated in relation to their assessment of affordable housing
provision.

Paragraph 4.6.1 sets out applicants are strongly encouraged to take the Fast Track
Route by providing the threshold level of affordable housing and meeting other
Development Plan requirements.

Paragraph 4.6.2 highlights that where applicants do not provide the threshold level of
affordable housing [or where fixed or minimum affordable housing requirements are
not in place] the Viability Tested Route will assess the maximum level of affordable
housing that a scheme can deliver. The viability assessment, using the detailed
methodology in the Affordable Housing and Viability SPG could find a greater

Page 173



Appendix 1

affordable housing contribution than the threshold level could be viable and thus
would be required.

Paragraph 4.6.4 states that the Draft London Plan thresholds have been informed by
viability testing. This will help to embed affordable housing requirements into land
values and create consistency and certainty across London. The 35% threshold
level will be reviewed in 2021 with changes consulted on as part of an update to the
SPG.

Paragraph 4.6.5 relates to public sector land. It states the Mayor recognises that
public sector land can play a significant role in meeting affordable housing need.
Threshold for public sector land is set at 50% to be considered under the Fast Track
Route. This is because these sites represent an opportunity to meet a range of
objectives including making better use of sites, improving services and delivering
more affordable housing. Moreover, as public assets, these landholdings should be
used to deliver development and outcomes that are most needed by the public.
Where there is agreement with the Mayor to deliver at least 50% across the portfolio
of sites, then 35% threshold should apply to individual sites.

Paragraph 4.6.6 states that in light of the difference in land values between industrial
and residential development a higher level of affordable housing is expected.
Therefore to follow the Fast Track Route industrial sites will need to meet the 50%
threshold.

Paragraph 4.6.9 highlights that all schemes are expected to maximise delivery of
genuinely affordable housing and make most efficient use of available resources to
achieve this. Where grant or public subsidy is available this should be utilised.

Paragraph 4.6.13 states that in Opportunity Areas boroughs may want to consider
applying a localised affordable housing threshold for the Fast Track Route or fixed
affordable housing requirements. These should increase the affordable housing
provision where possible.

Comment

The Council considers that Clause D should make reference to the need for details
of the Early Stage Review to be set out in a S106 agreement.

Application of Clause E could increase the need to use of independent consultants to
assess viability on relevant schemes depending on the split of schemes between the
Fast Track Route and the Viability Tested Route.

Reference should be made in paragraph 4.6.5 that where the 50% affordable
housing threshold is not proposed then schemes will be subject to viability
assessments. Clarification is need in relation to the last sentence that refers to 35%
being an appropriate threshold on public land where 50% is agreed with the Mayor
across the whole portfolio of sites. It may be appropriate in this instance to refer to
the fact that some sites could be contributing more than 50% [as opposed to at least
50%].

Page 174



Appendix 1

Paragraph 4.6.9 highlights that applications for schemes of 150 units or more must
evidence that they have sought to increase levels of affordable housing. Clause C 4)
also refers to grant in relation to fast tracked schemes. It is suggested that grant is
also referred to within Clause E. Clarification should also be made within paragraph
4.6.9 on whether it is only schemes that are 150 units or more that should seek grant
or if this is relevant to all relevant schemes.

Policy H7 Affordable housing tenure

Affordable housing tenure is dealt with under Policy 3.11 Affordable Housing Targets
and Policy 3.13 Affordable Housing Thresholds in the current 2016 London Plan
(60% affordable and social-rent and 40% intermediate on schemes of 10 units or
more.

Clause A of the policy states that the Mayor is committed to delivering genuinely
affordable housing. The following tenure split is set out for relevant schemes:

e Minimum 30% low cost rented homes allocating according to need and for
Londoners on low incomes (social-rented/London affordable rent);

e Minimum 30% intermediate products which meet the definition of affordable
housing including London Living Rent and London Shared ownership;

e 40% to be determined by the borough based on identified need provided they
are consistent with the definition of affordable housing.

e Only schemes delivering threshold level of affordable housing with a tenure split
that meets the above can follow the Fast Track for viability.

Paragraph 4.7.1 highlights that Table 4.3 of the Draft London Plan shows there is a
significant need for low cost rental housing (social-rented/affordable rent). The Table
illustrates the overall annual need (2017 London-wide SHMA):

Market 23,037 homes
Intermediate 11,869 homes
Low-cost rent 30,972 homes

The paragraph highlights that the current national funding programme is focused on
intermediate products that limits the Mayor’s ability to require higher levels of low-
cost rented accommodation. The Mayor considers that Policy H7 provides sufficient
flexibility to be tailored to meet local needs ensuring a minimum level of affordable
homes can be delivered. A review is expected in 2021 and updated through the
SPG.

Paragraph 4.7.2 highlights that there is a presumption that the 40% to be decided by
the borough will focus on Social Rent/Affordable Rent given the level of need across
London. It is recognised that for some boroughs a broader mix may be more
appropriate due to viability constraints or because it would deliver a more mixed and
inclusive community. Appropriate tenure splits should be determined through the
Development Plan process or supplementary planning guidance.

Paragraphs 4.7.3 — 4.7.6 define the Mayor’s preferred affordable housing tenures
London Affordable Rent, London Living Rent (Intermediate) and London Shared

Page 175



Appendix 1

Ownership (Intermediate). Other affordable housing products may be acceptable if
as well as meeting the broad definition of affordable housing they also meet the draft
London Housing Strategy definition of genuinely affordable housing and are
considered genuinely affordable by boroughs.

Paragraph 4.7.8 highlights that all intermediate rented products (London Living Rent
and Discounted Market Rent) should be affordable to households on incomes of up
to £60,000. Intermediate ownership products (London Shared Ownership and
Discounted Market Sale where they meet the definition of affordable housing) should
be affordable to households on incomes of up to £90,000. The GLA Annual
Monitoring Report will update thresholds and update information on income
thresholds.

Paragraph 4.7.10 specifies that where boroughs set their own eligibility criteria for
intermediate units below those stated above these will cascade to London-wide
criteria within three months to ensure units are not left vacant. Re-sales and re-lets
should be made available to those meeting the London-wide income caps.

Paragraphs 4.7.11 — 4.7.12 elaborate on the tenure mix for schemes including
affordable housing. To follow the fast track route schemes must adhere to the
tenure split set out in Policy H7. Where a scheme is delivering more affordable than
set out in the policy threshold, the additional affordable housing tenure is flexible,
and should be agreed by the borough, Registered Provider and applicant. Where a
scheme is assessed under the Viability Tested Route and evidence demonstrates
the threshold cannot be met the affordable housing split in H7 is the starting point for
negotiations. It will be for the borough and the Mayor to decide if there should be a
greater number of affordable homes or fewer homes at a deeper discount. S106
agreements should stipulate tenure mix and be consistent with the viability
assessment.

Paragraph 4.7.13 highlights that schemes that are largely affordable may be
considered under the Fast Track Route but affordable units should be genuinely
affordable and the tenure mix supported by the borough and where appropriate the
Mayor.

Comment

The Council supports the tenure breakdown and flexibility to determine 40% of
affordable provision based on identified need. Flexibility is provided within
paragraph 4.7.2 which is also supported.

There is concern that the level of affordable housing needed and specified in Draft
Policy H5 may not be able to be delivered with grant if national funding is focussed
on intermediate products compared to affordable rent/social rent products.

The Council supports the description of London Affordable Rent that specifies the
Mayor expects rents charged for homes let for London Affordable Rent to be set at
benchmarks substantially below this level [80% of market rent] based on traditional
social rents. Paragraph 4.7.4 specifies that more detail is contained in the Mayor’s

Page 176



Appendix 1

Homes for Londoners Affordable Homes Programme 2016-21 funding guidance but
it may be useful to elaborate on this in the SPG or update via the Annual Monitoring
Report in terms of what is considered to be acceptable rent levels by bedroom size.

Intermediate unit eligibility specified in paragraphs 4.7.8 and 4.7.10 accords with the
current London Plan and Annual Monitoring Reports.

Paragraphs 4.7.11 — 4.7.13 noted.

Policy H8 Monitoring of affordable housing

Overall monitoring of the current 2016 London Plan is dealt with under Policy 8.4
Monitoring and Review. Draft Policy H8 is specifically related to affordable housing.

The policy sets out 4 main clauses as follows:

A. Boroughs are required to have clear monitoring processes to ensure affordable
housing secured on or off site is delivered in line with the S106;

B. Monitoring processes should ensure cash in lieu is used to deliver additional
affordable housing;

C Boroughs should ensure review mechanisms (where appropriate) are
implemented and the number of extra homes delivered or cash in lieu secured
is recorded;

D  Boroughs must publish monitoring information annually to ensure transparency
in the planning process so the public know how funds are being spent. This
information should be shared with the GLA so it can form part of the monitoring
process.

Comment

The Council supports the above policy that will ensure affordable housing delivery

will be monitored effectively.

Policy H9 Vacant building credit = NEW POLICY

The London Plan notes that the Vacant Building Credit (VBC), which applies to sites
where a vacant building is brought back into any lawful use, or is demolished to be
replaced by a new building, and reduces the requirement for affordable housing
contributions accordingly has significant implications for delivery of affordable
housing in London.

The policy advises that in most circumstances, its application will not be appropriate
in London advising that where the VBC could provide an incentive for development

Page 177



Appendix 1

on sites containing vacant buildings that would not otherwise come forward for
development, it should only be applied where all of the following criteria are met:

1. the building is not in use at the time the application is submitted

2. the building is not covered by an extant or recently expired permission

3. the site is not protected for alternative land use

4. the building has not been made vacant for the sole purpose of redevelopment.
[involving the demonstration of at least five years continuous vacancy, of which
at least two years with active marketing]

Comment

The Council notes the policy which assists in ensuring the delivery of affordable
housing and welcomes the clarity with regard to the application of VBC.

Policy H10 Redevelopment of existing housing and estate regeneration -

The policy reflects current London Plan Policy 3.14 Existing Stock resisting the loss
of housing (including the loss of hostels, staff accommodation, and shared and
supported accommodation that meet an identified housing need) unless replaced at
existing or higher densities with at least the equivalent level of overall floorspace.,
unless the existing floorspace.

The policy is expanded with regard to

e the raising from supporting text (para 3.82 London Plan 2016) to policy of the
requirement for existing affordable housing loss to be replaced by equivalent
or better quality accommodation, providing at least an equivalent level of
affordable housing floorspace, (clause B),

e the requirement for existing affordable housing in estate regenerations to be
reprovided on an equivalent basis with regard to social rented floorspace, with
rental levels based on the replaced provision, (clause C),

e Schemes replacing existing affordable / estate regenerations required to
follow the Viability Tested Route (Policy H6)

Comment
The Council notes the policy but considers that the appropriate density will be
dependent upon the detail of any scheme and the local environment.

Policy H11 Ensuring the best use of stock

The policy reflects current London Plan Policy 3.14 Existing Stock, clause D in
seeking to reduce the number of vacant dwellings. The policy supports mechanisms
which seek to ensure stock is occupied in boroughs with identified issues of homes
being left empty as ‘buy to leave’.

The policy introduces a new clause requiring boroughs to take account of the impact

on the housing stock of applications for homes to be used as holiday rentals for more
than 90 days a year.

Page 178



Appendix 1

Comment
The Council notes the policy and is itself exploring potential for conversion of vacant
properties for use as temporary or settled provision.

Policy H12 Housing Size Mix

The policy significantly expands on current London Plan Policy 3.8 Ba and brings
into policy elements of the Mayoral Housing SPG (2016) Standard 7

The policy states that Boroughs should not set prescriptive dwelling size mix
requirements (in terms of number of bedrooms) for market and intermediate homes,
although it and sets out the criteria to which regard should be had in considering the
appropriate mix of unit sizes. These criteria include the potential for custom-build
and community-led housing schemes and the role of one and two bed units in
freeing up family housing, whilst advising that generally, schemes consisting mainly
of one-person units and/or one-bedroom units should be resisted.

It adds further criteria with regard to low cost rent to ensure affordable housing
meets identified local needs with regard to local issues of overcrowding, the impact
of welfare reform and the cost of delivering larger units and the availability of grant.
Comment

The Council notes the criteria within the policy which local authorities should ‘have

regard to’, and will consider these criteria as appropriate on a site by site basis in the
determination of planning applications.

Policy H13 Build to Rent = NEW POLICY

The policy sets the criteria for schemes of at least 50 units to qualify as a Build to
Rent schemes, where the affordable housing need not include social rent. Rather it
can be secured, in perpetuity, solely as Discounted Market Rent (genuinely
affordable, preferably London Living Rent level).

The policy details how schemes which are partly build to rent are to be assessed and
allows for Boroughs to set their own thresholds to reflect local housing market
circumstances and affordable housing need, subject to stipulations in the guidance.

Note the Mayoral Housing SPG (2016) build to rent section has been previously
deleted.

Comment

The Council notes the policy and the advice in para 4.13.1 that the planning system
should take a ‘positive approach’ to the build to rent sector.

Page 179



Appendix 1

Policy H14 Supported and specialised accommodation

The policy expands on current London Plan Housing choice Policy 3.8 c) d) and g)
relating to accessible housing and ‘other supported housing’. It supports the
delivery, retention and refurbishment of supported and specialised housing which
meets an identified need and notably provides 8 examples of such accommodation:

1. move-on accommodation for people leaving hostels, refuges and other
supported housing, to enable them to live independently

2. accommodation for young people

3. re-ablement accommodation (intensive short-term) for people who are ready to
be discharged from hospital but who require additional support to be able to
return safely to live independently at home, or to move into appropriate long-
term accommodation

4. accommodation for disabled people (including people with physical and
sensory impairments and learning difficulties) who require additional support or
for whom living independently is not possible.

5. accommodation (short-term or long-term) for people with mental health issues
who require intensive support

6. accommodation for rough sleepers

7. accommodation for victims of domestic abuse

8. accommodation for victims of violence against women and girls.

Comment
The policy reflects the Council’s support for specialist housing generally (Draft Local
Plan Policy 11). The Strategic Housing Market Assessment and the Council’s

Homelessness and other strategies identify supported and specialised housing
needs in Bromley.

Policy H15 Specialist older persons housing

The policy expands on current London Plan Policy 3.8 Housing Choice e) and sets
into policy the requirement for Boroughs to ‘work positively and collaboratively with
providers to identify sites which may be suitable for specialist older persons housing
taking account of: 1.local and strategic housing needs information and the indicative
benchmarks set out in Table 4.4 ¢

Table 4.4 sets an annual benchmark of 210 units per annum for Bromley an increase
of 5 on the figure currently within Annex 5 (Table A5.1).

Table 4.4 no longer sets out a tenure split but advises that where a split differing
from the affordable housing policy is proposed this should be set out in DPD or
supplementary planning guidance. However the Mayoral Housing SPG (2016)
already acknowledges that most specialist housing for older Londoners is in the
social rented sector whilst more than 60% of older people in London are home
owners.

Page 180



Appendix 1

Para 4.15.5. advises that boroughs should ‘plan proactively to meet the identified
need for older persons but that the benchmarks are to inform local level
assessments.

The supporting text (para 4.15.3) seeks to clarify the definitions of C2 and C3 to be
applied in London. Advising that extra care accommodation providing 24 hr
emergency support and range of domicilary care packages are Use Class C3 and
that residential nursing care accommodation which provides non-self contained
residential accommodation is Use Class C2. However units of self contained
nursing care still appear to fall between the two classes

Note — under draft London Plan Policy H3C each C2 care bed counts towards the
housing target as a single home.

Comment
The Council notes that the benchmarks within Table 4.4 are not targets and this
should be confirmed within the supporting text para 4.15.5.

The Council considers that the Policy should provide further clarify regarding the Use
Class interpretation for self contained nursing care units

Policy H16 Gypsy and Traveller accommodation - NEW POLICY

Previously incorporated within London Plan Policy 3.8 Housing Choice i), traveller
accommodation is now a stand-alone policy. The new policy introduces a new and
different definition for Gypsies and Travellers than the Governments Planning
definition, notably including those whose ‘cultural preference not to live in bricks and
mortar’ makes their current accommodation unsuitable. The draft policy requires
that Boroughs, such as Bromley, who have undertaken a needs assessment should
update it, as part of the Development Plan review process to take account of the
proposed London Plan definition.

Where Boroughs have not undertaken a needs assessment since 2008 they will be
required to adopt targets set out in the GLA Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation
Topic Paper 2017.

Comment

The Council objects to the London specific definition of Gypsies and Travellers which
will artificially increase the need within London compared to neighbouring authorities
outside London. By addressing this higher need the effect will be to overprovide
traveller pitches within London’s boundaries relative to the surrounding area. Given
the land intensive nature of traveller pitches relative to other forms of residential
development this relative overprovision would be contrary to the sustainable use of
land and detrimental to the requirements of the London Plan to deliver housing
targets.

The Bromley Traveller Accommodation Assessment (2016) was prepared to support
the draft Local Plan (currently at examination), in line with “Gypsy and Traveller

Page 181



Appendix 1

Accommodation Needs Assessments Guidance (2007)” and the Governments
Planning definition of Gypsies and Travellers.

Subject to the findings of the Inspector sets targets for Bromley over the next 10
years which can be accommodated from within the proposed Local Plan allocations.
The Council objects, as it did in 2009, to the proposed ‘fall back’ targets for Boroughs
who have not undertaken an assessment are set within the GLA Gypsy and Traveller
Accommodation Topic Paper 2017. The targets based on the 2008 GTANA and are
skewed by a formulaic approach to psychological aversion which does not reflect the
need experienced through Council waiting lists. The ‘mid point approach’, which was
considered, subsequently reduced and ultimately rejected altogether in the
development of the London Plan 2010, produces artificially high targets.

Policy H17 Purpose-built student accommodation — NEW POLICY

The policy expands on current London Plan Policy 3.8 Housing Choice j) stating that
boroughs should seek to ensure that local and strategic need for purpose-built
student accommodation is addressed, subject to a number of criteria. Notably it
requires units to be occupied by students and that accommodation is secured for
occupation by members of one or more specified higher education institutions
(clause A3). Proposals not meeting these criteria will be considered as large-scale
purpose-built shared living and assessed against draft Policy H18.

Units of Purpose-built student accommodation (PBSA) are an element of housing
need and every three student bedrooms equals a single conventional housing unit
for the purposes of housing targets.

Comment

The Council notes the policy and the housing target contribution and welcomes the
required link to a specific institution

Policy H18 Large-scale purpose-built shared living = NEW POLICY

The policy advises that Large-scale purpose-built shared living Sui Generis use
developments, where of good quality and design, may have a role in meeting
housing need if, at the neighbourhood level, the development contributes to a mixed
and inclusive neighbourhood. The policy requires a management plan, and that the
development meet a numbers detailed criteria, notably:

e it meets an identified need and is well connected to local services and
employment

e units are all for rent with minimum tenancy lengths of no less than three
months it is under single management

e communal facilities and services are provided that are sufficient to meet the
requirements of the intended number of residents and include 7 elements
including

e communal facilities (kitchen, lounge, outdoor space, laundry /drying
facilities)at least:

e aconcierge & community management

Page 182



Appendix 1

e bedding and linen changing and/or room cleaning services.

The private units must provide adequate functional living space and layout but do not
themselves contribute to affordable housing (not self contained and fail to meet
minimum standards) however, a cash in lieu contribution towards conventional C3
affordable housing will be sought, either as an upfront cash in lieu payment to the
local authority for the provision of new C3 off-site affordable housing or, as an in-
perpetuity annual payment to the local authority.

Comment

The Council notes the policy. The supporting text should clarify the contribution of
Large-scale purpose-built shared living to the housing target figures in line with the
draft London Plan Policy H3C.

Page 183



Appendix 1

Chapter 5 Social Infrastructure

Policy S1 Developing London’s Social Infrastructure

The policy includes requirements similar to current London Plan Policy 3.16
expanded with respect to

¢ An emphasis on area-based planning to deliver Social Infrastructure, including
Opportunity Area Planning Frameworks, Area Action Plans, Development
Infrastructure Funding Studies, Neighbourhood plans or masterplans. (clause
B)

e The encouragement of the best use of public sector estate, including co-
location (Clause D)

Comment

The Council proposes to review the Bromley Town Centre AAP which will address
the social infrastructure to support the increase in residents and employees of the
town centre. Similarly the Draft Local Plan Development Briefs may be produced in
Renewal Areas (draft Policy 14)

The Council supports the co-location of services with draft Local Plan Policy 21c
specifically encouraging ‘hubs’.

Policy S2 Health and Social Care

The policy includes requirements similar to current London Plan Policy 3.17
expanded with respect to

e Greater emphasis on working with CCG’s and other NHS / community groups
to deliver

e The need to support ‘new models of care’

e Opportunities for co-location / reconfiguration

Comment
The Council engages with health stakeholders and Bromley Adult Social Care
The Council supports the co-location of services with draft Local Plan Policy 21c

specifically encouraging ‘hubs’.

Policy S3 Education and Childcare Facilities

The policy moves away from the position of ‘strong support for establishment new
schools’ the current London Plan Policy 3.18. The supporting text no longer
acknowledges the extant August 2011 joint policy statement by the Secretary of
State for Communities and Local Government and the Secretary of State for
Education and Policy 3.18 clause D is proposed to be deleted. 3.18D currently
advises that ‘free schools should only be refused where there are demonstrable
negative local impacts which substantially outweigh the desirability of establishing a

Page 184



Appendix 1

new school which cannot be addressed through the appropriate use of planning
conditions or obligations’.

The draft policy adds a series of requirements for site selection, notably, entrances
away from busy roads, suitable accessible outdoor space.

Comment

The Council is concerned that the policy fails to acknowledge the difficulty of finding
sites for schools, particularly in a legislative environment where the Local Authority is
no longer the provider of schools. The Council notes the site requirements in section
B of the policy, but considers that these site specific requirements are most
appropriately assessed by the Local Council who ultimately retain the duty to ensure
the provision of places.

Policy S4 Play and Informal Recreation

The policy expands on the requirements of the current London Plan Policy 3.6
‘Children and Young People’s Play and Informal Recreation Facilities’ by raising to
policy a number of features from the Mayoral SPG ‘Shaping Neighbourhoods : Play
and Informal Recreation’, notably the requirement for at least 10 square metres of
play provision per child. The supporting text allows for the play needs of
predominantly older children to be addressed through the enhancement existing
provision (within 400m of the development) by appropriate financial contribution.
Additionally the policy resists the net loss of play provision unless it can be
demonstrated that there is no ongoing or future demand.

Comment

The Council supports the provision of appropriate amenity space for new residential
development.

Note — Improved open space and leisure provision are listed as within the emerging
scope of Bromley’s Regulation 123 list, and ‘Upgrading of park playground facilities’
set out within the Infrastructure Delivery Plan Schedule (draft Local Plan Appendix
10.13)

Policy S5 Sports and Recreation Facilities

The policy includes requirements similar to current London Plan Policy 3.19 Sports
Facilities and Policy 6.10 Walking (split between policy S5 and draft Policy T2
Healthy Streets in Chapter 10 Transport). The requirement to regularly assess the
need for sports and recreational facilities is retained and the supporting text
highlights recent Sport England data with regard to swimming pools, artificial grass
pitches and sports halls. [Note : The Council’'s ‘Open Space, Sport and Recreation
Assessment’ 2017 is published and available on the Council’'s website.]

Clause C omits reference to the Green Belt and relevant chapter (only references
the new Metropolitan Open Land policy) and reference to the 2009 Mayoral Sports
Legacy Plan is also deleted.

Page 185



Appendix 1

Comment

There are numerous facilities in Bromley which are within the Green Belt. The
Council is therefore concerned that the policy no longer cross references Green Belt
policies.

Policy S6 Public Toilets = NEW POLICY

The policy requires large scale commercial developments that are open to the public
to provide and secure the future management of free publically—accessible toilets
during opening hours, or 24 hours a day in areas of public realm.

The policy also expects ‘Changing Places’ toilets (BS 8300 for people with profound /
multiple impairments) in larger developments where users are expected to spend a
long time or where there is no other local provision.

Comment

The Council welcomes the approach to accessible toilets. This reflects Bromley’s
Community toilet scheme, which is a joint venture with local businesses.

Policy S7 Burial Space

The policy replaces Policy 7.23 Burial Spaces. It supports proposals for new
cemetery provision and it takes a clearer position with regard to protecting
cemeteries and re-using burial spaces. The policy continues to require that
boroughs ensure provision is made for burial needs of the different communities but
the previous emphasis on proximity to communities has been replaced by the
encouragement of cross borough / sub regional working to address sub-regional
shortages.

Comment
The Council supports the protection of cemeteries and the reuse of burial space but
has concerns regarding the implications of a sub-regional approach and the pressure

that might place on Bromley’s open spaces, particularly with regard to built
development (chapels and crematoria)

Page 186



Appendix 1

Chapter 6 — Economy

Office uses

Policy E1 Offices

Policy E1 Offices combines and updates current London Plan Policies 4.2 Offices
and 4.3 Mixed Use Development and Offices.

The new policy retains a number of priorities for office development, including
retention and expansion of office floorspace in town centres and other sustainable
locations (including, where appropriate, through mixed use developments) and
diversification of the offer to accommodate a wider range of businesses. This range
now includes “micro enterprises”, in addition to small, medium and larger business.

Bromley Town Centre retains its existing town centre status of Metropolitan Centre
and office guideline of B (found in Annex One Town Centre Network). However, the
new policy also solely assigns Croydon Town Centre the status of “strategic outer
London office location”. The current London Plan advises boroughs to monitor the
impacts of changes to Permitted Development Rights for conversion of offices to
residential use. Under the new London Plan, there is now strategic level support to
implement Article 4 Directions removing these Permitted Development Rights in
viable locations with clear geographic boundaries. There is also greater support for
affordable workspace in an office context.

Comments

The policy framework as it relates to office provision in Bromley remains largely
unchanged in new London Plan, although it is noted that there is now greater
emphasis on the role of Croydon Town Centre, a competitor with Bromley Town
Centre in the South London office market. Strategic level support for boroughs to
implement new Article 4 Directions where viable is supported in principle, allowing
the Council greater management over the development outcomes of proposals on
office sites.

Low-cost workspace

Policy E2 Low-cost business space

This is a new policy including requirements for proposals which would result in the
loss of Class B1 space in an area identified as having a shortage of “lower cost
space”. The new policy also encourages proposals for “large scale” B1 uses to
consider scope for providing smaller units for small and medium-sized enterprises. It
defines “large scale” uses as containing floorspace greater than 2,500 sqm Gross
External Area (GEA).

Policy E3 Affordable workspace

Policy E3 is a new policy that expands upon provisions covered in a limited capacity
under current London Plan Policy 4.9 Small Shops.

Page 187



Appendix 1

It contains explicit support for the use of planning obligations to provide “affordable
workspace” at sub-market rates, for a specific social, cultural or economic
development purpose. The current London Plan Policy 4.9 includes a similar
provision but only to provide or support affordable retail units.

Comments

The increased focus in the new London Plan on supporting low-cost workspace for
small and medium-sized enterprises through various planning mechanisms is noted.

Industrial and related uses

Policy E4 Land for industry, logistics and services to support London's
economic function

Policy E4 updates current London Plan Policy 4.4 Managing Industrial Land and
Premises.

Under Policy E4, the borough-level groupings for release of industrial land (now
referred to as categorisations) have been reimagined, demonstrating a shift away
from release/protect groupings under the current London Plan, to a broader release-
retain-provide spectrum. This reflects an improved outlook for the industrial land
market identified in the new London Plan’s evidence base, as well as a rate of
release for non-industrial uses above what was projected at the commencement of
the current London Plan. Bromley is placed in the “Retain capacity” category, which
is roughly equivalent to the “Restricted” grouping currently assigned, and should
seek to intensify industrial floorspace capacity and follow a principle of no net loss
across designated industrial areas. This is no longer the strongest category for
protection of industrial land; six boroughs have been placed in a “Provide capacity”
category, which calls for intensified capacity in existing and/or new locations.

The new policy omits the industrial land release benchmarks outlined in the current
London Plan (and specified in the Mayor’s Land for Industry and Transport SPG),
focusing instead on a general principle of no net loss of floorspace across
designated Strategic Industrial Locations and Locally Significant Industrial Sites in
London.

There is an acknowledgement of recent changes to Permitted Development Rights
for conversion of light industrial and warehouse units to residential use and strategic
level support to implement Article 4 Directions where viable. Similar to Policy E2,
there is also a new provision encouraging proposals for “large scale” industrial uses
to consider scope for providing smaller units catering to small and medium-sized
enterprises. It defines “large scale” uses as containing floorspace greater than 2,500
sgm Gross Internal Area (GIA).

The new policy also elaborates upon the wording of the current London Plan through
the following changes:

Page 188



Appendix 1

e Emphasis on “intensification, co-location and substitution” concepts which
were discussed to a lesser extent in the Land for Industry and Transport SPG.
These concepts are covered in greater detail in their own policy (Policy E7).

e Policy direction for industrial areas to make provision for waste management
is expanded to now include “secondary materials”

e Whereas Policy 4.4 makes allowance for “hybrid” space including industrial
and office space, the new policy interprets “hybrid” space as mixes of
industrial and related uses only.

Comments

The new borough wide categorisation is consistent with Draft Local Plan policy,
which seeks to retain and intensify floorspace in SIL and LSIS. Strategic level
support for boroughs to implement new Article 4 Directions where viable is supported
in principle, allowing the Council greater management over the development
outcomes of proposals on industrial and warehouse sites.

It is noted that the new policy contains a similar provision to Policy E2, with regard to
large scale business unit proposals. However, this provision measures these units as
greater than 2,500 sgm GIA, whereas the similar provision in Policy E2 measures a
large-scale unit as greater than 2,500 sgm GEA. The Council should seek
clarification from the Greater London Authority as to whether a consistent
measurement should be used in both policies.

Policy E5 Strateqgic Industrial Locations

Policy E5 updates current London Plan Policy 2.17 Strategic Industrial Locations.

The new policy carries over a requirement for Local Plans to define a SIL boundary
and include local policies, but now makes reference to the new policy direction for
“‘intensification, co-location and substitution”. As in the current London Plan, Foots
Cray and St Mary Cray are recognised as SILs wholly or partly located in the
Borough.

Comments

The new policy now includes more detailed mapping for these SILs, which includes
designated land at the Foots Cray-Ruxley Corner and St Mary Cray ends of the Cray
Business Corridor, but excludes land at Crayfields designated under the Draft Local
Plan. The Council’s proposal to define the Cray Business Corridor SIL (with Foots
Cray-Ruxley Corner and St Mary Cray as bookends of a larger employment area) is
not inconsistent with current or proposed London Plan policies for boroughs to define
their own SIL boundary through a Local Plan.

Policy E6 Locally Significant Industrial Sites

Policy EG6 is a new policy which elevates guidance for defining and preparing local
policies for LSIS contained in the Land for Industry and Transport SPG but not the
current London Plan.

Page 189



Appendix 1

Intensification, co-location and substitution of industrial and related uses

Policy E7 Intensification, co-location and substitution of land for industry,
logistics and services to support London's economic function

Policy E7 is a new policy outlining a key direction for facilitating changes in industrial
land stock to meet forecast need.

The concepts of intensifying, co-locating and substituting industrial or related land
uses are outlined to a lesser extent in the Land for Industry and Transport SPG
(under SPG 3 and 11), but the planning processes and desired development
outcomes are elaborated upon in the new London Plan. There are new criteria for
considering potential for mixed use industrial and residential (or other non-individual
uses) as part of a Local Plan-led process in designated areas or for individual
proposals on non-designated sites. The SPG outlines similar guidance but the new
policy provides clarifications on how uses could successfully co-locate. The new
policy also elaborates on the process for considering, with neighbouring authorities,
the scope for substitution of uses where it results in mutual advantage. This could
only occur through a Local Plan-led process and not through ad hoc planning
applications.

Comments

The Draft Local Plan has been prepared in response to the current London Plan and
the SPG, including designation of employment areas and identification of appropriate
mixes of uses in these areas. This new policy elevates and elaborates upon
concepts already outlined in the SPG and is broadly consistent with the Draft Local
Plan.

Sector growth opportunities and clusters

Policy E8 Sector growth opportunities and clusters

Policy E8 updates current London Plan Policy 4.10 New and Emerging Economic
Sectors is carried over into this new policy. Additionally, provisions relating to
Strategic Outer London Development Centres (SOLDCSs), currently included in
London Plan Policy 2.16 Strategic Outer London Development Centres, are now
incorporated entirely into this new policy.

Provisions relating to SOLDCs are largely carried over from the current London Plan,
although a new paragraph is included to ensure that development complements the
growth of town centres and other business locations and supports environmental and
transport objectives of the plan. This elevates guidance previously included only in
the Mayor’s Town Centres SPG.

Comments
It is noted that Biggin Hill is retained as the only recognised SOLDC under the new

London Plan. The Council supports the continued recognition of Biggin Hill SOLDC,
the retention of provisions from the current London Plan relating to SOLDCs and the

Page 190



Appendix 1

elevation of guidance only outlined in the Town Centres SPG. The new policy is
broadly consistent with the Council’s balanced approach to planning for Biggin Hill
SOLDC contained in the Draft Local Plan.

The Council seeks clarification on the status of the Crystal Palace SOLD as
identified in the current London Plan, which has been omitted from the new London
Plan.

Retail uses

Policy E9 Retail, markets and hot food takeaways

Policy E9 combines and updates current London Plan Policies 4.7 Retail and Town
Centre Development, 4.8 Supporting a successful and diverse retail sector and
related facilities and services and 4.9 Small Shops.

The new policy generally carries over provisions from Policies 4.7 and 4.8 relating to
retail development and clusters. It also introduces new detailed buffer requirements
relating to hot food takeaways and their proximity to schools. It imposes an
exclusionary buffer of 400m between new hot food takeaways and existing or
proposed schools, but allows boroughs to set a locally-determined boundary if
sufficiently justified. It also encourages boroughs to manage over-concentrations of
hot food takeaways in town centres. The policy also carries over provisions in current
London Plan Policy 4.9 for large-scale commercial proposals to support the provision
of small retail and other commercial units.

Comments

This policy mostly carries over provisions from the current London Plan and is
broadly consistent with the Draft Local Plan. One exception is the imposition of an
exclusionary buffer between new hot food takeaways and existing and proposed
schools, which adds a level of restriction above and beyond Draft Local Plan Policy
98.

Visitor Infrastructure

Policy E10 Visitor Infrastructure

Policy E10 updates current London Plan Policy 4.5 London’s visitor infrastructure.

The current London Plan Policy 4.5 includes an aspiration to achieve 40,000
additional hotel bedrooms across London by 2036. This aspiration has been omitted
from the new London Plan policy. The new policy also contains a series of detailed
requirements for considering the adequacy of design of serviced accommodation for
visitors with disabilities. This differs from the current Policy 4.5 which contained a
general requirement for visitor accommodation to ensure a certain percentage of
bedrooms are wheelchair accessible.

Page 191



Appendix 1

Comment

The policy is noted. Further clarification should be provided to differentiate between
Visitor Infrastructure and ‘Purpose Built Shared Living’ (Draft London Plan Policy
H18)

Skills and opportunities

Policy E11 Skills and opportunities for all

Policy E11 updates current London Plan 4.12 Improving opportunities for all.

The new policy acknowledges the use of planning obligations as an option for
boroughs to secure skills development opportunities in both construction and end-
use phases of a proposal and elaborates on what outcomes should be achieved
through this. The current London Plan policy relates specifically to “strategic
development proposals”, whilst the supporting text encourages boroughs and
developers to investigate local employment opportunities through individual
developments. However, it does not explicitly encourage investigating the use of
planning obligations for the purpose of improving skills development and training.

Comments

The increased focus in the new London Plan on supporting local employment and
skills development through various planning mechanisms is noted.

Page 192



Appendix 1

Chapter 7 Heritage and Culture

Policy HC1 Heritage Conservation and Growth

This new policy integrates some of the objectives identified in the adopted 2016
London Plan policies 7.8 Heritage Assets and Archeology and 7. 9 Heritage Led
Regeneration. It goes a step further by stressing the importance of the historic
environment to the regeneration of London, and of incorporating heritage assets to
the planning and design processes from the outset, explicitly building on and
referencing the principles of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) around
heritage and design.

e The policy includes the requirement to not only identify heritage assets as per
the 2016 London Plan policy 7.8 but for Local Authorities to develop evidence
in their local plans demonstrating a clear understanding of the historic
environment including sites and areas and their relationship to their
surroundings to inform planning decisions, improve access to the historic
environment and inform the integration of London’s heritage in regenerative
change. This includes the requirement in line with the NPPF to set out a clear
vision for the role of the heritage in place making, including through bringing
heritage at risk assets back into use.

e The policy references the requirement to mitigate harm to heritage assets
areas of archeological significance and landscapes in line with the tests in the
NPPF.

e Following the continued requirement for development proposals to conserve
the significance of heritage assets, Clause C adds the requirement to manage
the cumulative impact of incremental change from development on heritage
assets and their settings.

Comment

The introduction of this new policy which builds more explicitly on the aims and
principles of the National Planning Policy Framework around heritage and design
than existing policies 7.8 and 7.9 of the adopted 2016 London Plan, is welcomed.

Policy HC2 World Heritage Sites

This policy is a continuation of the London Plan policy 7.10 World Heritage Sites and
carries forward its key principles with reference being added to development
proposals being supported through the appropriate heritage assessment. Bromley’s
Darwin’s Landscape Laboratory is no longer referenced in the policy although it
remains on the UNESCO'’s tentative list of World Heritage Sites.

Comment

The policy is noted.

Page 193


https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/planning/london-plan/new-london-plan/draft-new-london-plan/chapter-7-heritage-and-culture/policy-hc1-heritage-conservation-and-growth
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/planning/london-plan/new-london-plan/draft-new-london-plan/chapter-7-heritage-and-culture/policy-hc2-world-heritage-sites

Appendix 1

Policy HC3 Strategic and Local Views

This policy was covered by the 2016 London Plan policy 7.11 and elements of 7.4
Local Character in the 2016 London Plan. Strategic Views include significant
buildings or urban landscapes identified by the Mayor that help to define London at a
strategic level and are managed through the London View Management Framework.
The London Borough of Bromley does not include any of the strategic views
identified by the Mayor and clauses A to F of policy HC3 are therefore not relevant
to Bromley in that respect.

Clause G of this policy however introduces the requirement for Borough to identify
important local views in their Local Plans and Strategies in partnership with other
relevant boroughs whenever these cross boundaries. Boroughs are advised to use
the principles of policy HC4 London View Management Framework for the
designation and management of Local Views.

Comment

The introduction of clause G of the policy is welcomed as it provides clarification
regarding the principles which should be used to designate and manage local views
and supports the approach taken by the Council in its Draft Local Plan Skyline Policy
48 which makes references to these principles for the management of local views
vistas gaps and skyline having regards to the impact of development in the
foreground, middle ground and background of these views.

Some of Bromley’s Views of Local Importance reach out to include parts of
Lewisham and Bexley Councils. Similarly, a local view starting in Croydon from
Addington Hill goes through a wide stretch of the London Borough of Bromley. The
Council will continue to work with these Boroughs with regards to the continued
management and identifications of local views across boundaries where appropriate.

Policy HC4 London View Management Framework

This policy’s equivalent is policy 7.12 Implementing the Views Management
Framework in the 2016 London Plan. The LVMF includes the views and panoramas
which reach out from viewing place in Central London towards buildings and urban
landscapes significant to London at a strategic level and identified in policy HC3
Strategic and Local Views. Bromley does not include any of these views which are
strategic to London as a whole. Policy HC4 however includes the principles for the
management of views which clause G of policy HC3 advises Local Authorities to
have regards to manage development within local views.

Comment

Policy noted although Bromley does not include any of the views within the London
Views Management Framework.

Page 194


https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/planning/london-plan/new-london-plan/draft-new-london-plan/chapter-7-heritage-and-culture/policy-hc3-strategic-and-local-views
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/planning/london-plan/new-london-plan/draft-new-london-plan/chapter-7-heritage-and-culture/policy-hc4-london-view-management-framework

Appendix 1

Policy HC5 Supporting London's Culture and Creative Industries

The policy reflects London Plan policy 4.6 Support for and Enhancement of Arts
Culture Sport and Entertainment supporting the continued growth and evolution of
London’s diverse cultural facilities and creative however is more explicitly focused on
the promotion of cultural venues and of the creative industries in creative enterprise
zones and clusters.

The measures which can be taken by Local Plans to support that growth and
evolution, are expanded with additional reference made to:

e Supporting the development of new cultural venues in places with good public
transport connectivity, in addition to town centers,

e |dentifying protecting and enhancing strategic clusters of cultural attractions,

e Considering the use of vacant properties and land for creative/cultural pop-
ups or meanwhile uses in various locations,

e Ensuring that Opportunity Areas and large-scale mixed-use developments
include new cultural venues and/or facilities and spaces for outdoor cultural
events,

The policy in Clause B encourages Local Authorities to identify Creative Enterprise
Zones (rather than designating cultural quarters as in the adopted 2016 London
Plan) in their Local Plans to strengthen existing or enhance emerging clusters in
area of deprivation.

Clause C introduces policy principles for the management of Creative Enterprise
Zones where they are identified in Local Plans to provide innovative and flexible
workspace, the right type of infrastructure and mix of uses and support the wider
objectives of the business location.

Comment

The introduction of this policy which provides more specific guidance in relation to
the promotion and management of cultural venues, clusters and enterprise zones is
noted.

Policy HC6 Supporting the Night-Time Economy

The policy expands on 2016 London Plan policy 4.6 Support for and Enhancement
of Arts Culture Sport and Entertainment with added emphasis on Local Authorities
being proactive in developing and promoting the night time economy in town centres
and areas of high transport connectivity.

e Bromley Town Centre continues to be identified as an Area of National and
International Significance and Beckenham Town Centre as an area of more
than local significance for the night time economy in London.

e Clause A introduces the requirement for Boroughs to develop a vision for the
night time economy and support growth and diversification in areas of
strategic night time activity building on the Mayors vision for a 24 hour city.
The supporting text recognises that 24 hour activities are not recognised
everywhere in London and that this should be balanced against the needs of

Page 195


https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/planning/london-plan/new-london-plan/draft-new-london-plan/chapter-7-heritage-and-culture/policy-hc5-supporting-londons-culture-and
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/planning/london-plan/new-london-plan/draft-new-london-plan/chapter-7-heritage-and-culture/policy-hc6-supporting-night-time-economy

Appendix 1

local residents and that appropriate management strategies/mitigation
measures should be considered to reduce any negative impacts.

e Clause B requires Local Plans, Town Centre Strategies and Planning
Decisions to promote the night time economy in town centres and areas well
served by public transport at night. Measures which can be taken to ensure a
successful and balanced nightlife economy are listed, including improving
access and safety across all users, diversifying the range, opening hours and
sources of night time activities, and addressing the cumulative impact and
concentration of licenced premises.

e Clause C promotes the integrated management of all aspects of the night time
economy.

e The supporting text encourages Boroughs, particularly in Outer London, to
work with TFL to identify areas of significance for the night time economy
particularly in town centres well connected to the Areas of Regeneration
identified by the Mayor. They should work with businesses, landowners and
investors to address barriers to access to the night time economy.

Comment

The Council notes the thrust of this new policy on supporting the night time economy
and welcomes the recognition in the policy that 24 hour activities are not suitable
everywhere in London and should be balanced against the needs of local residents.

The Council notes that the Crystal Palace District Centre previously identified as a
an area of more than local significance for the night-life economy in Map 4.3 of the
adopted 2016 London Plan is no longer featured in the London Plan 2018 for
consultation.

NEW POLICY: Policy HC7 Protecting Public Houses

This new policy responds to the report produced by the GLA in April 2017 London’s
public houses, GLA Economics, April 2017 which points out the decline in the
number and range of uses of Pubs in London as well as their cultural, economic and
social importance by introducing a range of new measures for their protection and
enhancement:.

e New requirement in Clause A for Boroughs to protect public houses where
they have particular significance to local communities and contribute to wider
policy objectives related to town centers/ the night time economy& enterprise
zones, and to support proposals for new pubs where they stimulate these
areas, particularly as part of mixed use development.

e Clause B sets out that loss of pubs should be refused unless authoritative
marketing evidence demonstrates long term redundancy with supporting text
setting out the stringent evidence required including demonstrating that the
pub has been marketed for 24 months in a functional condition both locally
and London wide.

Page 196


https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/planning/london-plan/new-london-plan/draft-new-london-plan/london-plan/chapter-7-heritage-and-culture/policy-hc7-protecting-public-houses
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/closing-time-pubs-final.pdf
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/closing-time-pubs-final.pdf

Appendix 1

e Clause C seeks to resist redevelopment of facilities associated to pub use or
of space within its curtilage (for example to residential) where it could
compromise its operation or viability.

In the supporting text:

e Requirement for Boroughs to take a positive approach to designating pubs as
Assets of community value and to consider the individual character/functions/
activities and potential for flexible working of pubs in developing strategies
and policies: criteria for assessing the significance of pubs are included.

e When considering proposals for new pubs Boroughs are required to take
account of potential negative and cumulative impacts.

Comment

Bromley is concerned that the policy requires a longer marketing period than
Bromley’s draft Policy 23 Public Houses and the impact this longer period may have
in respect of vacancies, the character of the locality and on the vitality and viability of
town centers.

Page 197



Appendix 1

Chapter 8 Green Infrastructure and the Natural Environment

Policy G1: Green infrastructure

The policy generally reflects the 2016 London Plan Policy 2.18 Green Infrastructure:
The Multi-functional Network of Green and Open Spaces, and the term is used other
in numerous places in the plan within both policies and supporting text.

e This sets the broad strategic approach to ‘green aspects’ of development in
London and the network of open and green spaces it contains;

e It requires Boroughs to prepare green infrastructure; and

¢ to identify green infrastructure assets

The overall tenor of the policy is not at variance with that of the current London Plan,
although it is more specific in regard to the need to produce strategies.

Comment
Whilst The Council supports the principle of this policy which protects open green

space, it is concerned that it does not address the particular contribution of private
gardens to the aim of making London 50% green.

Policy G2: London’s Green Belt

The policy reflects Policy 7.16 in the current London Plan, stating that:

e The Green Belt should be protected from inappropriate development
e Development proposals that would harm the Green Belt should be refused

e The enhancement of the Green Belt to provide appropriate multi-functional
uses for Londoners should be supported.

e The extension of the Green Belt will be supported, where appropriate. Its de-
designation will not.
Comment
The Council supports this policy which continues the GLAs approach of protecting

London’s Green Belt, in accordance with the NPPF.

Policy G3 Metropolitan Open Land

This policy broadly reflects Policy 7.17 of the current Local Plan, extending the
principles of national Green Belt policy to MOL and making reference to exceptional

Page 198



Appendix 1

circumstances having to apply in order to change the boundaries. The policy states
that:

Metropolitan Open Land (MOL) should be protected from inappropriate
development;

e The extension of MOL designations should be supported where appropriate;

e Any alterations to the boundary of MOL should be undertaken through the
Local Plan process, in consultation with the Mayor and adjoining boroughs;
and

e That Boroughs should designate MOL by establishing that the land meets at
least one of a set of criteria.

However the supporting text states in paragraph 8.3.2 that ‘“The principle of land
swaps could be applied to MOL where the resulting MOL meets at least one of the
criteria set out in the policy’ (the criteria for defining land as MOL).

Comment

The Council supports the continued protection of Metropolitan Open Land, however
has concerns regarding the operation of the land swap arrangements where
proposed through planning applications for the development, given the requirement
in Policy G3 C that any alterations to the MOL boundary should be undertaken
through the Local Plan process.

Policy G4: Local Green and Open Space

This policy is broadly a continuation of Policy 7.12 Protecting Open Space and
Addressing Deficiency of the 2016 Draft Local Plan with some significant variations:

e The policy continues to support the creation of new areas of publicly
accessible open space in areas of Open Space Deficiency although there is
no longer a requirement for this provision to be of a “local” open space
category as in the 2016 London Plan (as in the context of Bromley, this would
have been Urban Open Space or smaller urban open spaces).

e Loss of open space is no longer resisted where there is no demonstrated
deficiency in the category of open space being considered for development,
with reprovision only being required where need is being demonstrated
through the local needs assessment. Loss of open space continues to be
resisted in areas where there is a demonstrated deficiency in the relevant
category of open space.

e There is no continued reference to the London Parks and Green Spaces
Forum to facilitate the cross borough planning and management of green and
open spaces in the policy.

Page 199



Appendix 1

Comment

The Council supports the principle of G4 and clause A and welcomes the protection
of non-strategic open space, which would include Urban Open Space, open spaces
and private gardens. However this appears to conflict with other policies in the draft
London Plan that no longer presume to protect private residential gardens which
make a valuable contribution to London’s open spaces.

There is concern around the wording of the consultation London Plan policy in
Clause D which opens up the possibility of designated Open Space to be built upon
in areas where there is no deficiency in spaces in that category.

The title of the Policy may be ambiguous as it may seem to be making reference to
the Local Green Space designation as introduced in the National planning Policy
Framework and included in Bromley’s Draft Local Plan which clearly is not the
intention of this policy.

Policy G5 - Urban Greening

Urban Greening Policy 5.10 in the 2016 London Plan which together with other
policies of Chapters 5 and 7 helped deliver aspects of urban greening as set out in
this policy.

e Clause A of the policy introduces the requirement for all Major Development
Proposals to contribute to the greening of London as fundamental to site and
building design through high quality landscaping.

e Part B of the policy introduces the requirement for Boroughs to develop their
own ‘Urban Greening Factor’ based on the current GLA model provided in
Table 8.2 for assessing the type and amount of greening required to offset the
impact of development, tailored to local circumstances. The greening factor
may be applied to small developments as well and it is recognised that
residential development will require a higher standard related to its impact
than commercial development. The range of greening measures referred in
the supporting text has been increased to include rain gardens and nature
based SUDs to tackle environmental challenges and provide amenity space.

Comment

The introduction of this policy is cautiously welcomed. However, urban greening
should not be relied on to offset the loss of open space, including private gardens.
The Policy introduces a requirement for Local Authorities to apply the generic
Mayoral Urban Greening Factor to major applications. The Council welcomes the
opportunity to consider developing its own local urban greening factor which may be
applied to applications below the threshold, responding to local circumstances.

Page 200



Appendix 1

Policy G6- Biodiversity and Access to Nature

The 2016 London Plan included Policy 7.19 of the same name. The policy includes
minor variations and increases the focus on development providing biodiversity gains
and addressing deficiencies in areas of access to wildlife.

e Reference is added in Clause B to using the relevant procedures not only to
identify SINCs but green corridors as well.

e Added emphasis is being placed on enabling developments create or improve
biodiversity value through creating habitats of value in an urban context
(Clause B), positively considering developments which provide habitats which
result in positive gains for biodiversity and reduce areas of deficiency to
wildlife (Clause E), with any biodiversity enhancements to be considered from
the start of the design process (Clause D).

e Reference is no longer made to including policies and proposals in the Local
Plan for “protected species” defined through national and European legislation
but to “priority species and habitats” identified at the local level only.
Reference is no longer made to London Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) targets
for increasing species populations or as a tool to assist with planning
decisions however the supporting text clarifies that the Mayor will be
producing a London Environment Strategy to which the Biodiversity Strategy
will be appended. This will identify procedures for the identification of SINCs
as well as priority habitats.

Comment

The Council supports the policy and welcomes the Mayor’s intention to produce a
London Environment Strategy identifying procedures to identify SINCs, Green
Corridors and Priority Habitats.

It would be useful for the policy to make reference to the desirability for Local Plans
to have policies for the protection of the protected species identified in national and
European legislation in order to be comprehensive.

Policy G7 Trees and woodlands

This is a continuation of the 2016 London Plan Policy: 7.21 of the same name with
added emphasis on tree planting. Clause A of the policy adds the requirement for
‘new trees and woodlands” to be planted,” in appropriate locations to increase the
extent of London’s Urban Forest’ whilst clause B introduces the requirement for
Local Authorities in their Development Plans to “identify opportunities for tree
planting in strategic locations.” The supporting text makes reference to the Mayor’s
new target of increasing London’s tree cover by 10% by 2015.

Comment

The Council welcomes the policy and the continued protection of trees and
woodlands.

Page 201



Appendix 1

Policy G8 Food Growing

The equivalent policy in the 2016 London Plan was 7.22 Land for Food. The policy
relates to the development plans. The focus of the policy, apart for a renewed
commitment to protecting allotments, has shifted from supporting food growing in the
Greenbelt and creating new spaces through the Capital Growth scheme to
identifying food growing opportunities on specific sites through innovative
mechanisms, including on development and school sites:

e Clause A of the policy requires Local Authorities to “encourage provision of
space for community gardening, including for food growing, within new
developments”.

e There no longer is a specific requirement to encourage and support farming
and land based sectors in the Greenbelt specifically as in the former London
Plan policy 7.22. In the supporting text para.8.8.2 it is recognised that as small
scale food growing becomes harder to deliver innovative solutions should be
considered, such as green roofs and walls, re-utilising existing under-used
spaces and incorporating spaces for food growing in new schools.

Comment

The general thrust of the policy is welcomed reflecting Bromley’s approach in its
emerging Local Plan, notably draft policy 24 on allotments and leisure gardens and
the supporting text to draft Policy 123 ‘Sustainable Design & Construction which
references food growing (proposed minor modification).

Policy G9: Geodiversity

The policy is virtually unchanges from Policy 7.20 London Plan 2016.

This policy expresses the GLAs continued approach of protecting London’s
Geologically important sites, whilst unlike the current London Plan, no reference is
made to their guidance ‘London’s Foundations (2012)’, the policy itself is virtually
unchanged. The Draft Local Plan covers the points and the same sites identified on
the accompanying map (Figure 8.1 - Geodiversity sites) are shown on the Draft
Local Plan maps.

Comment

The policy and the 6 recommended RIGS and 2 potential RIGS within Bromley (as
previously identified in the London Plan 2016 are noted.

Page 202



Appendix 1

Chapter 9 — Sustainable Infrastructure

Air quality

Policy SI1 — Improving Air Quality

Updates existing Policy 7.14 — Improving Air Quality

Reflecting the Mayor’s priority, the new London Plan strategy for improving air quality
is more challenging than in the current plan. Where the current London Plan Policy
7.14 references Air Quality Management Areas (a national requirement), the new
London Plan Policy Sl1focuses on “Air Quality Focus Areas” — locations which not
only exceed the EU annual mean limit value for nitrogen dioxide, but are also
locations with high human exposure. Figure 9.1 shows two Air Quality Focus Areas
in Bromley borough — one in Bromley Town Centre and one at EImers End. Whilst all
other development should be at least “Air Quality Neutral’, development in
Opportunity Areas, and those subject to an EIA, should propose methods to achieve
“Air Quality Positive”.

Comment

Bromley has a designated Air Quality Management Area and monitors air pollution in
accordance with regulatory requirements. Whilst there may be opportunities in
Bromley Town Centre, with its planned development sites, to make improvements to
air quality, development around Elmers End would appear to be limited at this point.

Climate change and energy

Policy SI2 - Minimising greenhouse gas emissions

Combines elements of existing Policies 5.2 — Carbon reduction, 5.6 — Decentralised
energy in development proposals and 5.7 — Renewable energy

Currently Policy 5.2 of the London Plan requires all major residential developments
to be “zero carbon” and non-residential developments to reduce emissions by 35%
above Building Regulation standards, in accordance with the energy hierarchy. The
Draft London Plan policy newly proposes a minimum reduction contribution from
energy efficiency measures (10% for residential, 15% for non-residential), and
extends the “zero carbon” target to all development, not just residential.

Comment

A minimum contribution from energy efficiency is cautiously supported although
flexibility is still needed where unusual development constraints and costs occur.
The step up to “zero carbon” for non-residential proposals may cause viability
concerns and it should be clear that this should not compromise the delivery of
development.

Page 203



Appendix 1

Policy SI3 — Energy Infrastructure

Combines elements of existing Policies 5.4A — Electricity and gas supply, 5.5 —
Decentralised energy network and 5.6 - Decentralised energy

In Opportunity Areas, town centres and other growth areas, boroughs and
developers should engage at an early stage with energy companies to establish
future energy requirements and infrastructure needs. Energy masterplans should be
developed for large scale development schemes.

In Heat Network Priority Areas (areas of Bromley are identified in Figure 9.3) major
development proposals should have a communal heating system. Development
should be designed to connect to an existing network or designed for connection at a
later date.

Para 9.3.11 mentions that land will be required for energy supply infrastructure,
including energy centres.

Comment

The Area Action Plan for Bromley Town Centre already includes a policy on energy
networks. The first energy centre is to be included in the Site K (former
Westmoreland Road car park) development at Bromley South. It is not clear how the
‘land for energy centres” in the supporting text will be identified and whether this to
be within developments or additional land.

Policy Sl4 — Managing heat risk

Very similar to existing Policy 5.9 — Overheating and cooling

Development proposals should minimise internal heat gain, major development
proposals should demonstrate how they will reduce the potential for overheating on
accordance with the cooling hierarchy.

Comment

The policy is broadly supported however it should be noted that this policy would not
be able to be applied to residential conversions allowed by Prior Approval. Office
conversions — often with large windows — are of particular concern.

Policy SI5 — Water Infrastructure

Combines existing Policies 5.14 — Water Quality and Wastewater Infrastructure and
5.15 — Water Use and Supplies

Water supplies should be protected and conserved in a sustainable manner.
Development proposals should minimise the use of mains water in line with the
Optional Requirement of the Building Regulations, achieving mains water
consumption of 105 litres or less per head per day. This continues the benchmark
from the existing London Plan policy. Development Plans should promote the

Page 204



Appendix 1

protection and improvement of the water environment in line with the Thames River
Basin Management Plan. Development proposals should seek to improve the water
environment and ensure that adequate wastewater infrastructure capacity is
provided.

Comment

The water use standard is already applied and the Draft Local Plan, in response to
Thames Water advice, contains a new policy on managing wastewater.

Policy SI6 = Digital connectivity infrastructure

Updates existing Policy 4.11

Development proposals should achieve greater digital connectivity than set out in
Part R1 of the Building Regulations (at least 30mbps), ensure sufficient ducting
space, meet requirements for mobile connectivity without reducing that in the
surrounding areas and support the effective use of the public realm to accommodate
well-designed and located mobile infrastructure.

Comment

The policy is broadly supported.

Waste management

Policy SI7 - Reducing Waste and supporting the circular economy

Updates existing Policy 5.16 — Waste self-sufficiency, introducing the concept of the
Circular Economy — where materials are retained in use at their highest value for as
long as possible then re-used or recycled, leaving a minimum of residual waste.

Waste reduction, increases in material re-use and recycling and reductions in waste
going for disposal will be achieved by promoting a more circular economy,
encouraging waste minimisation, ensuring zero biodegradable or recyclable waste
goes to landfill by 2026 and meeting or exceeding the recycling targets:

e Municipal waste — 65% recycling /composting by 2030 (this is currently 60%
by 2031)
e Construction, demolition and excavation waste — 95% recycling by 2020

Referable applications should promote circular economy outcomes and aim to be net
zero waste. A “circular economy” statement should be submitted.

Policy SI8 — Waste capacity and net waste self-sufficiency

Updates existing Policy 5.17 — Waste capacity and net waste self-sufficiency. The
policy is broadly the same but the forecasts and apportionment targets have been
updated.

Page 205



Appendix 1

In order to manage London’s waste sustainably

e The equivalent of 100% of London’s waste should be managed in London by
2026

e Existing sites should be safeguarded

e Capacity of existing sites should be optimised

e New sites should be provided where required

Development Plans should

e identify how waste will be reduced
e allocate sufficient land to manage apportionment tonnages (boroughs can
collaborate to achieve this)
¢ identify the following as suitable locations
existing facilities
SILs and LSIS

Criteria for evaluating proposals for new sites, or expansions, are provided.

Consultation draft apportionment targets | Current London Plan targets
for Bromley

2021 — 192,000 tonnes 2021 — 199,000 tonnes
2041 — 204,000 tonnes 2036 — 247,000 tonnes
Comment

The Council notes the changes to the apportionment targets for the Borough and
supports the continued strategy to allow boroughs to collaborate in meeting their
apportionment requirements.

Policy SI9 — Safequarded waste sites

This is currently a clause within Policy 5.17 - Waste capacity and net waste self-
sufficiency

e Existing waste sites should be safeguarded and retained in waste
management use

e Waste facilities located in areas identified for non-waste related development
should be integrated with other uses as a first principle

e Waste plans should be adopted before considering the loss of waste sites.
The proposed loss of an existing waste site will only be supported where
appropriate compensatory capacity is made within London

Page 206




Appendix 1

Comment

There is some concern about the blanket retention of all existing permitted sites
without caveat, particularly small privately managed sites and those in the Green
Belt which include inappropriate but established uses. Should a site cease operation,
re-providing that capacity in a more suitable location may not be possible within the
Borough boundary and it is unclear how “appropriate compensatory capacity” could
realistically be achieved.

Minerals

Policy SI10 — Aggregates

The policy is very similar to existing Policy 5.20 — Aggregates

Relevant boroughs (not including Bromley) are apportioned a land bank figure of
aggregates for the life of the Plan. Boroughs should identify and safeguard
aggregate resources including recycling facilities and consider extraction
opportunities. Policies should ensure that appropriate use is made of planning
conditions for aftercare.

Comment

The policy is broadly supported.

Policy SI11 — Hydraulic Fracturing —= NEW POLICY

Development proposals for fracking should be refused
Comment

The policy is supported.

Flood risk and drainage

Policy SI12 — Flood Risk Management

Similar to existing Policy 5.12 — Flood Risk Management

Boroughs should manage flood risk in a sustainable and cost effective way in
collaboration with the Environment Agency, developers, infrastructure providers and
each other. Development Plans should be informed by Strategic Flood Risk
Assessments and development proposals by site specific assessments as
appropriate. Boroughs should identify flood risk issues and ensure development
proposals minimise flood risk and mitigate potential problems.

Policy SI13 — Sustainable drainage

Similar to existing Policy 5.13 - Sustainable Drainage, with the addition of proposals
to restrict impermeable paving.

Page 207



Appendix 1

Boroughs should identify areas where there are particular surface water flooding
issues. Development proposals should aim to achieve greenfield run-off rates and
use the drainage hierarchy. Proposals for impermeable paving should be refused
where appropriate, including on small surfaces such as front gardens and driveways.

Comment

The policies are broadly supported. The borough’s Strategic Flood Risk assessment
supports the Draft Local Plan policy in reducing problems of surface water flooding
by requiring development in contributing areas to reduce its impact. It is unclear how
useful the encouragement to refuse small impermeable areas would be given
permitted development rights, but it is agreed that the cumulative effect of paving
small areas is a concern that should be addressed and this could complement the
Council’s own policy.

Waterways

Policy SlI14 - Waterways — strateqic role

Contains elements of existing Policy 7.24 — Blue Ribbon Network and 7.29 -

Relevant Development Plans should designate Thames Policy Areas.

Policy SI15 — Water transport

Combines existing Policies 7.25 — Increasing the use of the Blue Ribbon network for
passengers and tourism, and 7.26 — Increasing the use of the Blue Ribbon network
for freight transport

Development proposals should protect and enhance passenger transport piers. The
viability of safeguarded wharves will be kept under review. Proposals should not
conflict with freight handling capacity.

Policy SI16 — Waterways — use and enjoyment

Similar to existing Policy 7.27 — Blue Ribbon network: supporting infrastructure and
recreational use

Development Plans should protect and enhance waterway infrastructure to enable
water-dependent uses and protect and enhance existing access to, and alongside,
waterways.

Policy SI17 — Protecting London’s waterways

Similar to existing Policy 7.28 — Restoration of the Blue Ribbon network

Page 208



Appendix 1

Development proposals to facilitate river restoration, including opportunities to open
culverts, naturalise river channels, protect the foreshore and increase the heritage

and habitats value should be supported.
Development proposals should support and improve the protection of the distinct
open character and heritage of waterways

Comment

The policies are broadly supported. The Council have committed, in the Draft Local
Plan, to take opportunities for improving the river channels in the borough,
particularly the River Cray, through any development that may occur.

Page 209



Appendix 1

Chapter 10 - Transport

Strategic Approach to Transport

Policy T1 - Strateqgic Approach to Transport
(and Table 10.1 Indicative Transport Schemes)

Similar to existing Policy 6.1 and Table 6.1

Policy T1 provides an overarching approach to ensure the delivery of the Mayor’s
strategic transport priorities. There is a particular focus on better integration of land
use and transport, to ensure the provision of a robust and resilient transport network
which is essential in maximising growth.

Significantly, the proposed DLR Extension to Bromley has been removed in Table
10.1.

The Policy also requires development plans and proposals to support:

e A shift from car use provides the only long-term solution to road congestion
challenges, and 80% of all trips should be made by foot, cycling, or public
transport by 2041.

e All the proposed transport schemes set out in Table 10.1.

e All development should make the most effective use of land to ensure that
any impacts on London’s transport networks and supporting infrastructure are
mitigated.

e Rebalancing the transport system towards walking, cycling and public
transport, including ensuring high quality interchanges, will require sustained
investment.

Comments

The Council is concerned that reference to the Mayor’s ambition for enhanced rail
access to Bromley via an Extension of the DLR has been removed in Table 10.1 and
is not included in TfL’s current Business Plan up to 2021. The Council will continue
to press TfL to secure funding for this extension.

Policy T2 - Healthy Streets

This is a new policy.

Development proposals should deliver patterns of land use that facilitate residents
making shorter, regular trips by walking or cycling. Opportunities should also be
identified to improve the balance of space given to people to dwell, cycle, walk, and
travel on public transport, so space is used more efficiently and streets are greener
and more pleasant.

Page 210



Appendix 1

In Opportunity Areas, new and improved walking, cycling, and public transport
networks should be planned at an early stage. Proposals should:

e Demonstrate how they deliver improvements that support the ten HS
indicators in line with TfL guidance;

e Reduce the dominance of vehicles; and

e Be permeable by foot and cycle and connect to local networks as well as
public transport.

Comment
The policy is noted.

Policy T3 - Transport Capacity Connectivity & Safequarding

Combines and updates existing policies 6.2 and 6.4

Development Plans should ensure the provision of sufficient and suitably located
land for the development of the current and expanded public and active transport
system to serve London’s needs, including by:
e Safeguarding existing land and buildings used for transport or support
functions; and

e I|dentifying and safeguarding new sites and route alignments, as well as
supporting infrastructure, in order to provide transport functions and planned
changes to capacity (including proposals in Table 10.1).

Priority should be given to delivering upgrades to Underground lines, and securing
the Bakerloo Line Extension.

Comment

The Council is concerned that reference to the Mayor’s ambition for enhanced rail
access to Bromley via an Extension of the DLR has been removed in Table 10.1 and
is not included in TfL’s current Business Plan up to 2021. The Council is intending to
safeguard land and route alignments for the DLR from Catford to Bromley South via
Bromley North as per Draft Local Plan Policy 36 and will continue to press TfL to
secure funding for this extension.

Bakerloo Line Extension - Supporting London’s Growth (page 34)

Transport for London submitted a representation on Bromley’s Draft Local Plan in
December 2016. TfL confirmed it was currently developing plans for a Bakerloo Line
Extension, and whilst noted that the phase one extension from Elephant and Castle
to Lewisham is included in TfL’s business plan for delivery by 2028/9, the Council

Page 211



Appendix 1

should reference the extension in Draft Local Plan Policies 35 and 36 to assist the
onward delivery of the extension to the town centre and to Hayes alongside the
safeguarding of land for the extension where new track is needed. This was
reaffirmed in TfL’'s Hearing Statement in November 2017, which acknowledged that
although the timescale for a potential extension beyond Lewisham is beyond the
Local Plan period (2030), it would be appropriate to safeguard land and the route
alignment where required.

Bromley responded by stating that TfL’s current focus is an extension of the
Bakerloo line to Lewisham. Beyond 2030 a future phase may be considered but this
is outside the life of the Draft Local Plan. However, Metroisation of services may
influence any future phase.

The Council also acknowledged it has been working closely with TfL to identify parts
of the network which will benefit from improvements which will reduce bus journey
times. However, no projects have been identified in the Infrastructure Delivery
Schedule (appendix 10.3) to be delivered over the life of the draft Local Plan.

Whilst the DLR extension to Bromley no longer forms part of TfL’'s current Business
Plan, it remains Bromley’s preferred option from Lewisham/Catford to Bromley South
via Bromley North. This extension will form part of continuing discussions with TfL
regarding the next draft of the Business Plan, and the Council will continue to press
TfL to secure funding for this extension.

Policy T4 Assessing and Mitigating Transport Impacts

Similar to existing policy 6.3

e Transport assessments should be submitted with development proposals to
ensure that any impacts on the capacity of the transport network are fully
assessed.

e Travel plans, parking design and management plans, construction logistics
plans and delivery and servicing plans will be required in accordance with
relevant Transport for London guidance.

e Mitigation, either through direct provision of facilities and improvements, or
through financial contributions, will be required to address any adverse
impacts that are identified.

e Cumulative impacts of development on public transport and the road network
capacity including walking and cycling, as well as associated impacts on
public health should be taken into account and mitigated.

Comment

The policy is noted.

Page 212



Appendix 1

Parking

Policy T5 Cycling and Table 10.2 Minimum Cycling Parking Standards

Updates existing Policy 6.9 and Table 6.3

Cycling Parking Standards remain consistent with existing London Plan policy except
for:

e Bromley Town and Orpington have been identified as areas where higher
minimum cycle parking standards apply (Fig. 10.2).

e Long-stay spaces for Use Class C3-C4 1 bed dwellings increased from 1
space per unit to 1.5 spaces per unit.

DPDs should support the delivery of a London-wide network of cycle routes, with
new roles and improved infrastructure and should provide cycle parking in
accordance with the minimum standards set out in Table 10.2 and Figure 10.2.

Comment

The policy is noted. Local Plan Draft Policy 30 states that minimum cycle parking
standards must be met as per London Plan requirements. Bromley Town and
Orpington have been identified as areas where higher minimum cycle parking
standards apply (Fig. 10.2).

Policy T6 Parking

Policy T6.1 Residential Parking

Table 10.3 Maximum Residential Parking Standards

Updates existing Policy 6.13 and Table 6.2

e Car parking should be restricted in line with levels of existing and future public
transport accessibility and connectivity.

e Car-free development should be the starting point for all development
proposals in places that are (or plan to be) well connected by public transport.

e The Maximum car parking standards set out in Policy T6.1 and T6.5 should
be applied to development proposals and used to set local standards within
Development Plans.

e Quter London boroughs wishing to adopt minimum residential parking
standards must only do so for parts of London that are PTAL 0-1.

e Where sites are redeveloped, existing parking provision should be reduced to
reflect the current approach and not be re-provided at previous levels that
exceed the standards set out in this policy.

Page 213



Appendix 1

e Differences in car use and ownership between inner and outer London are
recognised, with trip distances and trip patterns sometimes making walking
and cycling difficult in outer London.

e New residential development should not exceed the maximum parking
standards set out in table 10.3. These standards are in a hierarchy with the
more restrictive standard applying when a site falls into more than one
category.

e All residential car parking spaces must provide infrastructure for electric or
ultra-low emission vehicles. At least 20 percent of spaces should have active
charging facilities.

e In a development with 10 or more units, at least one designated disabled
persons parking bay per dwelling for three percent of dwellings is available
from the offset (3:10).

Notable Changes/Potential Issues with Draft Local Plan

Comparison of Previous and Proposed Maximum Residential Car Parking Provision

Outer London PTAL London Plan 2016 Draft London Plan 2017
0-1 2 1.5

2 1.5 1

3 1.5 0.75

4 (and Opportunity Areas) 15 0.5

5-6 1 Car Free

e Flexibility for minimum residential parking standards has been constrained to
PTAL 0-1, now not applicable for parts of PTAL 2*.

Comment

Policy T6 Point A - “car parking should be restricted in line with levels of existing and
future public transport accessibility and connectivity.”

e This is a concern for the Council as there is potential for significant under-
provision of car parking. If car parking provision for new residential
development were to be based on potential transport investment, then should
that provision fail to materialise, developments will be built with abysmal levels
of parking. As a result, residents will be forced to park in surrounding roads
and will exacerbate parking misery.

Policy T6 Point H - “Outer London boroughs wishing to adopt minimum residential
parking standards through a Development Plan Document (within the maximum
standards set out in Policy T6.1 Residential parking) must only do so for parts of
London that are PTAL 0-1.”

Page 214



Appendix 1

This should go beyond PTAL 0-1 and be extended to PTALs 2 and 3.
Minimum levels of parking for residential development are required in order to
ensure new developments do not generate additional intrusive or obstructive
on-street parking as a result of inadequate provision.

Table 10.3 Maximum Residential Parking Standards -

The proposed Table 10.3 is a particular concern for the Council. Bromley has
a higher car ownership per household than the Outer London average.
Bromley exceeds the average of households owning 2 or more cars by 5%,
and 3 or more cars by 1%. Compared to the Greater London average, there
are 10% more households in Bromley with two or more cars. The Council
therefore maintains its position that boroughs are best placed to decide the
appropriate parking standards for their areas given their detailed knowledge
and understanding of the issues, and the nature of the localities.

Bromley’s parking survey also found that car ownership across the
developments surveyed was 1.18 cars per household (higher than the 1.15
Borough average from the 2011 census). There is a higher car ownership in
wards with lower average levels of public transport accessibility. Wards in the
south of the borough, including Biggin Hill, Darwin, and Chelsfield & Pratts
Bottom, have the highest levels of car ownership at above 1.5 cars per
household. When considering PTAL zones, previous surveys have found that
the average range of vehicle ownership in the Borough falls between 0.7 (6a)
and 1.1 (2). With no underground stations within the Borough, and PTALsS
failing to reflect the accessibility for the journeys that the local residents need
to undertake to local facilities and services, they are a poor indicator of public
transport accessibility for residents in these areas.

Policy T6.2 Office Parking

Table 10.4 Maximum Office Parking Standards

Updates existing Policy 6.13 and Table 6.2

Maximum parking standards set out in Table 10.4 should be applied to all new
office development.

Standards for B2 and B8 employment uses should also have regard to these
standards.

Outer London Boroughs wishing to adopt more generous standards are
required to do so through an evidence-based policy in their DP that identifies
parts of the borough in which higher standards will be applied, along with
justification.

Boroughs should not seek to adopt more generous standards borough wide.

Page 215



Appendix 1

e Non-residential disabled persons parking should be provided as set out in

Policy T6.5.

e Maximum parking provision more restricted to encourage non-car use modes

of travel.

Comparison of Previous and Proposed Maximum Office Car Parking Provision (GIA)

Location London Plan 2016 Draft London Plan 2017
Outer London 1 space per 100-600sgm 1 space per 100sgm
Outer London Generous | 1 space per 50-100sgm 1 space per 50sgm
Standards

Outer London Opportunity 1 space per 600sgm

Areas

e Maximum parking provision more restricted to encourage non-car use modes

of travel.
Comment

The Council is concerned about the proposed parking provision applied to Outer

London Opportunity Areas.

Policy T6.3 Retail Parking and Table 10.5 Maximum Retail Parking Standards

Updates existing Policy 6.13 and Table 6.2

e The maximum parking standards set out in Table 10.5 should be applied to
new retail development.

Opportunities should be taken to make the most of all existing parking.

If on-site parking is justified it should be publicly-available.

Disabled persons parking should be provided as set out in Policy T6.5.

PTAL 5 and 6 now has a blanket provision irrespective of retail use.

Outer London retail either in an Opportunity Area or that is less than 500sgm

in PTAL 0-4 provides up to 1 space per 75sgm (prev. 30-50sgqm).
e All other retail in PTAL 0-4 provides up to 1 space per 50sgm (prev. 15-

50sgm).

Comparison of Previous and Proposed Maximum Retail Car Parking Provision (GIA)

Location

London Plan 2016

Draft London Plan 2017

All Areas of PTAL 5-6

1 space per 25-75sgm
(depending on use)

Car Free

Outer London retail below
500sgm

1 space per 75sgm

Outer London Opportunity Areas

1 space per 75sgm

Rest of Outer London

1 space per 50sgm

PTAL 1-4 Only

Food: up to 500sgm

1 space per 30-50sgm

Food: up to 2500sgm

1 space per 18-30sgm

Food: over 2500sgm

1 space per 15-25sgm

Non-Food

1 space per 30-50sgm

Page 216




Appendix 1

Garden Centre 1 space per 25-45sgm

Town Centre/Shopping 1 space per 30-50sgm
Mall/Department Store

Comment

The policy is noted. Local Plan Draft Policy 30 states that, with the exception of
residential parking standards, all other parking standards must be met as per London
Plan requirements.

Policy T6.4 Hotel and Leisure Uses Parking

Updates existing Policy 6.13 and Table 6.2

e In locations with a PTAL 4-6, any on-site provision should be limited to
operational needs, disabled persons parking and parking required for taxis,
coaches and deliveries or servicing.

¢ In locations with a PTAL 0-3, schemes should be assessed on a case by case
basis and provision should be consistent with in the Healthy Streets
Approach.

e All operational parking must provide infrastructure for electric or other Ultra-
Low Emissions vehicles, including active charging points.

e Disabled persons parking should be provided as set out in Policy T6.5.

Comment
The policy is noted. Local Plan Draft Policy 30 states that, with the exception of
residential parking standards, all other parking standards must be met as per London

Plan requirements.

Policy T6.5 Non-Residential Disabled Persons Parking

Table 10.6 Non-Residential Disabled Persons Parking Standards

Updates existing Policy 6.13 and Table 6.2

e All non-residential elements of a development should provide at least one on
or off-street disabled persons parking bay.

e Disabled persons parking should be provided in accordance with the levels
set out in Table 10.6.

e Inclusion of non-residential disabled persons parking standards to
Education Use Class.

¢ No other change to parking standards.

Comment

Page 217




Appendix 1

The policy is noted. Local Plan Draft Policy 30 states that, with the exception of
residential parking standards, all other parking standards must be met as per London
Plan requirements.

Policy T7 Freight and Servicing

Updates existing Policy 6.14

Area based plans, such as OAPFs and AAPs should include freight and servicing
strategies, and proposals should facilitate sustainable freight and servicing, including
through the provision of adequate space for servicing and delivery off-street. To
support carbon-free travel from 2050, the provision of hydrogen refuelling stations
and rapid electric vehicle charging points at logistics and industrial locations is
supported.

Comment
The policy is noted.

Policy T8 Aviation

Similar to existing Policy 6.6

The Mayor supports the role of London’s airports in enhancing London’s spatial
growth, particularly within Opportunity Areas. Proposals that would lead to changes
in airport operations or air traffic movements must take full account of their
environmental impacts and the views of affected communities. Development of
business and general aviation activity should generally be supported providing this
would not lead to additional environment harm.

Comments

The Council cautiously supports this policy in line with the retention of Biggin Hill as
a recognised SOLDC in the Draft London Plan.

Policy T9 Funding Transport Infrastructure through Planning

Updates existing Policy 6.5

e The Mayor will charge MCIL to secure funding towards transport infrastructure
of strategic importance such as Crossrail 2.

e Planning obligations, including financial contributions, will be sought to
mitigate impacts from development, which may be cumulative.

¢ In the absence of an agreement on Crossrail 2, the Mayor will still collect the
charge and fund other strategic transport projects for which there is a
significant funding gap.

Comments

Page 218



Appendix 1

Currently there is a second round of public consultation on proposals to increase the
developer contribution through Mayoral CIL collection in Bromley to £60 from £35
per square metre to which (last summer) the Council has objected.

Page 219



Appendix 1

Chapter 11 — Funding the London Plan

Existing Policies 8.1, 8.2 and 8.3

Chapter 11 sets out the policy framework for viability and planning obligations and
broader issues of investment and the importance of a major part of that investment
coming forward from the public and private sector. It also sets out the need for a
more supportive regulatory environment where private sector investment is involved,
requiring new fiscal tools for the Mayor. “The most critical areas for investment to
achieve the step change in housing delivery that London needs are increased
investment in transport infrastructure and fundamental changes to the housing
market. There is also a need to invest in enabling infrastructure, such as green
infrastructure, water, energy, digital connectivity and social infrastructure.” The
supporting develops aims of ‘London Infrastructure Plan 2050’ (GLA) on fiscal
devolution and the supporting text states the London Finance Commission
recommended the full devolution of property taxes, including council tax, business
rates and stamp duty, as well as permissive powers to develop new mechanisms,
subject to consultation. This would allow for the development of a consistent
approach with Section 106 payments and the Mayoral and borough Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL).

Policy DF1 - Delivery of the Plan and Planning Obligations

New Policy DF1 Delivery of the Plan and Planning Obligations replaces existing
Policy 8.2 Planning Obligations. Where obligations are proven unviable in a
development the policy advises applicants and decision-makers prioritise affordable
housing and necessary public transport improvements then health and education
infrastructure, and after those affordable workspace, culture and leisure facilities.
Previously focus was given to climate change and air quality, social infrastructure (as
a grouping) and provision of small shops. Encourages boroughs to take account the
impact on health, education, affordable workspace and culture and leisure facilities,
when developing a local CIL Charging Schedule and Regulation 123 list.

Comment

Existing policy 8.1 ‘Implementation’ is a higher strategic level policy with
consideration given to creation of Mayoral Development Corporations and Housing
Zones, and encouraging the Boroughs in developing their own Community
Infrastructure Levy’s to ensure provision of infrastructure; the thrust of these aims
has been fulfilled. Again the specific previous policy 8.3 ‘Community Infrastructure
Levy’ is now subsumed into DF1 whereby boroughs are encouraged to consider the
Mayors priorities when setting out their Regulation 123 lists. This Borough is
developing a local CIL and authorisation has been given by Executive for the first
public consultation to begin in January 2018. Whilst the Borough has an emerging
scope for the local Regulation 123 list developed directly from the Infrastructure
Delivery Schedule list of topic areas for projects, the specific list will not be confirmed
until the next consultation phase later in 2018.

In response to the 2050’ consultation in 2014 the Leader Clir Carr stated the
importance ‘to make long term plans for the Capital to ensure infrastructure in Outer
South East London is provided in full so as to realise opportunities for growth’.

Page 220



Appendix 1

Chapter 12 Monitoring

Policy M1 — Monitoring and Appendix 10.12 Proposed Monitoring Framework

Existing Policy 8.4

Monitoring is now included as its own chapter within the London Plan and is no
longer integrated with funding and implementation. The policy ensures that the
implementation of the London Plan will be kept under review using the Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs) set out in Table 12.1. The measure for each indicator
shows the direction and scale of change that the London Plan policies are seeking to
achieve. They do not themselves represent additional policy. Performance against
the KPIs will be reported in the GLA’s Authority Monitoring Report (AMR).

There are only 12 proposed KPIs compared with the current London Plan’s 24 KPls -
streamlined and easier to monitor.

Comment

The policy is noted.

Page 221



This page is left intentionally blank



Agenda Item 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 223



This page is left intentionally blank



Agenda Iltem 16

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 231



This page is left intentionally blank



	Agenda
	4 TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 10TH JANUARY 2018
	Executive 100118 Appendix A Public Questions and Oral Replies
	Executive 100818 Public Questions Oral Reply 5 Appendix
	Executive 100118 Appendix B Public Questions Written Replies
	Executive 100118 Written Question 3 Reply Appendix
	Executive 100118 Appendix C Ward Councillor Comments
	MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS

	6 2018/19 COUNCIL TAX
	7 CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING Q3 2017/18 & CAPITAL STRATEGY 2018 TO 2022
	Enc. 1 for CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING Q3 2017/18 & CAPITAL STRATEGY 2018 TO 2022
	APPENDIX A - VARIATION SUMMARY
	APPENDIX B REPHASING
	APPENDIX C - NEW SCHEMES
	Appendix D - FINANCING
	Appendix E - Investment&Growth
	Appendix G - Feasibility Studie


	8 LOCALLY ADMINISTERED BUSINESS RATES RELIEF SCHEME
	9 BROMLEY MARKET REORGANISATION UPDATE
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	10 SCADBURY PARK MOATED MANOR
	Executive 070118 Scadbury Appendix 1 Statement of Significance
	Executive 070218 Appendix Scadbury Plan
	Executive 070218 Scadbury Appendix layout plan

	11 MAYORAL COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (MCIL2) DRAFT CHARGING SCHEDULE CONSULTATION
	12 BROMLEY'S RESPONSE TO THE DRAFT LONDON PLAN CONSULTATION
	Executive 070218 London Plan Consultation Appendix

	15 UPDATE ON COMMUNITY CONTRACT AWARD
	16 CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING Q3 2017/18 AND ANNUAL CAPITAL STRATEGY 2018 TO 2022 - APPENDIX F: CAPITAL RECEIPTS



